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Commissioner of Trademarks
P.O. Box 1451
Alexandria, Virginia 22313-1451
REQUEST FOR REMAND
AND FOURTH REQUEST FOR RECONSIDERATION
Applicant Starbucks Corporation (“Starbucks” or “Applicant”) submits the following
remarks in response to the Office Action dated May 20, 2016 and in response to the Denial of
Request for Reconsideration dated October 19, 2017.
REMARKS
This Fourth Request for Reconsideration is largely a duplicate of Applicant’s Second
Request for Reconsideration as filed with the USPTO on November 21, 2016. Applicant’s
Second Request for Reconsideration was apparently no considered by the PTO before
jurisdiction was restored to the Board on or before June 6, 2017.
The procedural history of this application file is complicated. On May 20, 2016, the
USPTO issued an office action maintaining its refusal to register the mark subject to this
application (the “Applied-for Mark”) for the following stated reasons:
(1) The mark description needs additional clarification (description refusal),
1

(2) Applicant’s specimen for Class 43 does not show use of the Applied-for Mark in
commerce (use in commerce refusal),
(3) Applicant’s specimens for Classes 30 and 43 do not match the drawing (specimen
refusal),
(4) The Applied-for Mark is a nondistinctive background design (background refusal),
and
(5) Applicant has not proved acquired distinctiveness (distinctiveness refusal).
In that Office Action, the Examining Attorney provided that “Applicant is afforded 6
months to respond to this subsequent final refusal. If applicant does not satisfy and/or overcome
all outstanding refusals and requirements, the appeal will resume.” See page capture below:
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On November 21, 2016, following the express instruction of the Examining Attorney and
in recognition of the fact that jurisdiction had not been restored to the Board, Applicant filed a
Second Request for Reconsideration in which it addressed each of the refusals with argument
and additional evidence, and amended the description of its mark. At the time Applicant filed its
Second Request for Reconsideration, jurisdiction remained with the Examining Attorney. Filing
a Request for Remand was neither appropriate nor possible given that jurisdiction had not been
restored to the Board.
On June 6, 2017, without action on Applicant’s Second Request for Reconsideration, the
Trademark Trial and Appeal Board resumed the Appeal, originally filed on November 17, 2015.
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Following calls with, and at the suggestion of, Eric McWilliams of the Trademark Trial and
Appeal Board, on August 3, 2017, Applicant filed a Request for Remand attaching a Third
Request for Reconsideration which contained all the arguments and evidence incorporated in its
Second Request for Reconsideration and added arguments based upon the Board’s intervening
decision in In re University of Miami, 123 USPQ2d 1075 (TTAB 2017).
On August 10, 2017, the Trademark Trial and Appeal Board restored jurisdiction to the
Examining Attorney in light of Applicant’s request that he “review an amendment and
additional evidence in light of the Board’s recently decided precedential decision In re
University of Miami, 123 USPQ2d 1075 (TTAB 2017).” TTABVUE 8 (emphasis added).
On October 19, 2017, the Examining Attorney denied Applicant’s Third Request for
Remand and Reconsideration, making final the following four bases for refusal:


Sections 1, 2, 3, and 45 -- Non-distinctive/2(f) Claim Insufficient



Sections 1 and 45 -- Mark Materially Differs in the Drawing and Specimens for
Classes 30 and 43



Sections 1 and 45 - Use in Commerce Refusal for Class 43;



Description of the Mark Refusal pursuant to 37 CFR § 2.52(a) and TMEP
§ 807.10

Contrary to the Board’s August 8, 2017 Order, the Examining Attorney chose to treat
Applicant’s Request for Remand as “limited to the impact of the University of Miami” decision
and to ignore “arguments and evidence not related to that case” including “the most recent third
supplemental declaration of Katherine Jean Seawell.”
By this Request for Remand and Fourth Request for Reconsideration, Applicant
respectfully requests that the Examining Attorney reconsider and enter into the record for
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purposes of the Appeal on this application all of the arguments detailed within and all of the
evidence accompanying this Fourth Request for Reconsideration. This Fourth Request reiterates
the same arguments and attaches the same evidence originally contained in Applicant’s Third
and Second Requests.
Applicant believes that given the importance of the underlying policy issues addressed by
the PTO’s treatment of this Application, all parties would benefit from a full and complete record
of all arguments and all evidence in the Appeal.
Argument
A.

Description Refusal: Applicant’s Description Adequately Describes the
Applied-for Mark

The Examining Attorney contends that, absent an express statement that the Applied-for
mark is three-dimensional, the Applied-for Mark runs afoul of Sections 1 and 45 of the Lanham
Act because it is not limited to one mark. Office Action at 3-4. According to the Examining
Attorney, a two-dimensional “pictorial representation of a cup with a green circle” creates a
separate and distinct commercial impression from a three-dimensional rendition of the same and,
as such, the two cannot be the subject of the same application. This position is not supported by
established trademark law.
Nothing in the Lanham Act or other authority carrying the force of law supports the
Examining Attorney’s view that a mark which may appear in commerce both two- or threedimensionally violates the “one mark per application” rule. Indeed, the description of the mark
must merely provide sufficient information to define the elements claimed for protection by the
trademark owner. The express purpose of federal registration is to provide notice of the
“trademarks and service marks in which others have claimed rights.” In re Old Glory Condom
Corp., 26 USPQ2d 1216, 1220 n.3 (TTAB 1993). Accordingly, the USPTO has consistently

5

approved trademark applications with descriptions, drawings and specimens similar to
Applicant’s. In contrast, courts that have rejected trademarks under the “one mark per
application” rule have done so with respect to marks with missing or variable elements, i.e.
“phantom marks,” because such marks do not provide notice of registrant’s ownership of a mark.
See, e.g., Levi Strauss & Co. v. GTFM, Inc., 196 F. Supp. 2d 971, 979 (N.D. Cal. 2002); In re
The Upper Deck Company, 59 USPQ2d 1688, 1690 (TTAB 2001) (“We find applicant’s present
attempt to register a hologram which may have a myriad of shapes, sizes, contents and the like to
encompass an even larger number of combinations than the XXXX-containing word marks in In
re International Flavors . . . .” Here as in Presley, applicant is attempting to register an idea or
concept, rather than a single mark.”). On the contrary, no court has determined that a mark that
could be rendered in two or three dimensions violates that rule. However, where a mark is
sufficiently limited and any possible variation conveys the same commercial impression, the
“one mark one application” rule is not violated. In Levi Strauss & Co., one of the plaintiff’s
trademarks stated, in part:
The trade-mark consists of a small marker or tab of textile material or the like, colored
red, appearing on or affixed permanently to the exterior of the garment in a position that
the red tab is visible while the garment is being worn. . . . In practice, the trade-mark is
applied to the goods by stitching an end of a red marker or tab into one of the
rectangular structural seams of the garment so that the stitching of said seam secures one
end of the red tab to the garment with a portion thereon extending visibly from the edge
of the seam.
Id. at 980. Arguing the plaintiff’s registrations were “phantom marks,” the defendant claimed it
was not clear: (1) what was meant by “small,” “tab,” or “small marker”; (2) whether these terms
referred to the same thing or different things; (3) what shape the tab or marker was meant to be;
or (4) what was meant by “or the like” with reference to “textile.” See id. Examining prior cases
involving phantom marks, the court noted that such cases typically involve “one in which the
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description of the mark contains a missing element, such as a word, an alpha-numeric
designation, or other component, which is subject to change.” Id. at 978-79. By contrast, the
court found that the plaintiff’s registrations contained “no dashes or blanks or missing elements.”
Id. at 978. Instead, plaintiff’s registrations were “specific, definite, and clear. The Tab
trademark is limited by material, location, type of garment, and relative size.” Id. at 981.
Accordingly, the court held that the registrations did not constitute “phantom marks” because
“[t]he words of the registrations, taken in conjunction with the drawings, provide clear notice of
the scope of the Tab mark.” Id.
The TTAB recently addressed this issue in In re University of Miami, 123 USPQ2d 1075
(TTAB 2017). In that case, the Examining Attorney refused registration of

as a phantom mark because the applicant’s specimens included a “U” on
the ibis’s hat and MIAMI on its sweater such that the sweater “operates as a blank slate for
whatever additional elements the applicant, in its sole discretion, sees fit to include.” 123
USPQ2d at 1079. The Board reversed the Examining Attorney, finding that “neither the drawing
nor the mark description (‘The mark consists of an ibis wearing a hat and a sweater.’) identifies a
changeable or missing element in Applicant’s mark.” Id. at 1080. The Board further
distinguished this case from those prohibiting registration of phantom marks because the U and
MIAMI elements present in the specimens “[were] not independent terms, but independent
indicators of source,” which the applicant claimed no rights to in the drawing or description. Id.
As such, the applicant had not applied to register multiple marks.
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Like the marks in Levi Strauss and University of Miami, Applicant has met the
description requirements and has not run afoul of the “one mark per application rule” because the
application is sufficiently specific, definite, and clear. Notably, the description is specific and
clear namely, a “green circle placed centrally on the front exterior side of a white cup.”
Applicant has further limited and defined the scope of the application consistent with the
Examiner’s recommendations: “The broken lines depict the outline of the white cup and show
the relative placement of the green circle. No claim is made to the portions of the drawing
represented by the dotted lines nor the overall shape or size of the cup.” The Applied-for Mark
is limited not only by shape (“a green circle . . . on . . . a white cup”), color (“green and white”),
and location (“centrally on the front exterior side of a white cup”), but also by the size of the
green circle relative to the white cup shape. And, like the mark in University of Miami, the siren
element present in Applicant’s specimen but not its drawing is an independent indicator of
source (which Applicant claims no rights to in the Applied-for Mark). As shown by the drawing,
the Applied-for Mark contains no missing or changeable elements.
Moreover, the cases cited by the Examining Attorney do not support his position. For
example, In re Int’l Flavors & Fragrances, Inc. dealt primarily with applications for “phantom”
word marks with missing variable elements (e.g., LIVING [variable element]). 183 F.3d 1361
(Fed. Cir. 1999). The Federal Circuit ruled such marks left the public without notice of all the
possible marks encompassed by the applications, many of which might make different
commercial impressions (e.g., “LIVING FRAGRANCE,” “LIVING FRUIT,” “LIVING
RASPBERRY,” etc.). Id. at 1366-68. In that case, unlike the one at hand, the applicant
expressly tried to claim rights in all phrases starting with one specific word.
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Similarly, in In re Hayes, the applied-for mark was a grid comprised of three colors that
varied in pattern. 62 USPQ2d 1443 (TTAB 2002). The Board held the application sought to
register more than one mark because no claim was made as to any particular pattern of the three
colors. Id. Comparing the case to In re Presley Enterprises Inc., which dealt with an application
for all different poses of Elvis Presley, the Board noted:
The Presley case dealt with a similar situation to that presented
herein, namely, an applicant that wishes to register a variety of
poses (in that case) or patterns (in this case) in a single application.
In both cases, the various poses and/or patterns can convey very
different commercial impressions—of Elvis Presley at different
ages and in different costumes and poses in one case, and of
different grid patterns, as indicated above, in the present case.
See In re Hayes, 62 USPQ2d at 1445, citing In re Elvis Presley Enters. Inc., 50 USPQ2d 1632
(TTAB 1999). Applicant here has submitted a drawing and description that limit the mark to one
particular combination and placement of colors and shapes.
Finally, the Examining Attorney cites In re Supreme Steel Framing Sys. Ass’n, 105
USPQ2d 1385 (TTAB 2012), which is also inapposite. There, the applied-for mark was SSFSA
CERTIFIED CODE COMPLIANT, but on the specimen, “SSFSA” and “CERTIFIED CODE
COMPLIANT” appeared in two separate stylized carriers (see specimen below) and thus did not
convey one distinct commercial impression.
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Here, the Examining Attorney identifies no aspects of Starbucks’ specimens that
engender a unique and distinct commercial impression when portrayed in two versus three
dimensions. Nor can he, as the Applied-for Mark carries the same commercial impression
whether in two-or three-dimensional form: that of a green circle located centrally on the exterior
of a white cup. Indeed, the Principal Register contains numerous examples of similar marks that
(1) do not contain a “dimensional” limitation, (2) can be and are represented both two-and threedimensionally in the specimens, and (3) do not violate the “one mark per application” rule.
Similar to those trademarks, Applicant’s Applied-for Mark should register without the addition
of “three-dimensional” to its description and its specimens should be accepted whether in two or
three-dimensional form.
For example, the USPTO approved Registration No. 3175941 as a mark consisting of “a
series of five concentric circles in the colors green, white, green, white, and black placed
centrally on the exterior of a cup. The portions of the drawing represented by dotted lines are
not claimed as elements of the mark.” (See below, emphasis added.) The description contains no
specific reference to being a three-dimensional configuration, and the specimens submitted in
connection with that registration included both a photograph of a three-dimensional cup, as well
as two-dimensional representations of a cup used on packaging. Further examples include:
Table 1
Marks Depicted in Two and Three Dimensions
Registration, Drawing, and
Specimen(s)
Description

Reg. No. 3175941
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Table 1
Marks Depicted in Two and Three Dimensions
Registration, Drawing, and
Specimen(s)
Description
Description: “Color is not a claimed
feature of the mark. The mark consists
of a series of five concentric circles in
the colors green, white, green, white, and
black placed centrally on the exterior of
a cup. The portions of the drawing
represented by dotted lines are not
claimed as elements of the mark.”
(Emphasis added.)
(Oct. 18, 2002)

(May 17, 2012)

(Nov. 30, 2015)
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Table 1
Marks Depicted in Two and Three Dimensions
Registration, Drawing, and
Specimen(s)
Description

Reg. No. 3251144
Description: “Color is not claimed as a
feature of the mark. The mark consists of
two parallel bands, which extend around
an electronic battery. The dashes used
to form the outline of a battery are not
part of the mark, but are used to show
the position of the mark on the goods.”
(Emphasis added.)

(Mar. 21, 2006)

(Oct. 16, 2012)

(Oct. 16, 2012)
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Table 1
Marks Depicted in Two and Three Dimensions
Registration, Drawing, and
Specimen(s)
Description

(Apr. 2, 2008)
Reg. No. 1207580
Description: “The drawing is lined for
the colors orange and black.”

(May 3, 2012)
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Table 1
Marks Depicted in Two and Three Dimensions
Registration, Drawing, and
Specimen(s)
Description

(Jan. 8, 2008)
Reg. No. 1107558
Description: None.

(Aug. 20, 2008)

(Aug. 20, 2008)
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Table 1
Marks Depicted in Two and Three Dimensions
Registration, Drawing, and
Specimen(s)
Description

Reg. No. 972622
Description: None.

(Aug. 21, 2008)

(Aug. 21, 2008)

(Jan. 14, 2014)
15

Table 1
Marks Depicted in Two and Three Dimensions
Registration, Drawing, and
Specimen(s)
Description

Reg. No. 1702048
Description: “The color(s) red, white,
and blue is/are claimed as a feature of
the mark. The mark consists of a
rectangular background used on real
estate listing signs and in images
thereof containing three horizontal,
rectangular bars. The top rectangular bar
is red and contains the words ‘For Sale’
in white, and the bottom rectangular bar
is blue. The middle bar is white and is
bounded on the left and right by dotted
lines to show its location; the dotted
lines are not part of the mark and no
claim is made to such dotted lines.”
(Emphasis added.)

(Oct. 10, 2007)

(Oct. 27, 2011)

(Dec. 31, 2001)

Reg. No. 2582918
Description: “The mark consists of a
translucent credit card face with a stripe
across the upper portion of the card lined
for the color gray; a partially
overlapping square with rounded corners
in the center of the card lined for the
color blue; a lined and substantially
rectangular shape with rounded corners

(Sept. 19, 2007)
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Table 1
Marks Depicted in Two and Three Dimensions
Registration, Drawing, and
Specimen(s)
Description
on the left hand side of the card lined for
the color silver; and a translucent
background with a gradation of stippling
in white, heaviest at the top of the card
and running through to the lightest of
stippling at the bottom of the card. The
broken line representation around the
perimeter of the overall rectangular
shape of the card is intended to show
placement of the mark and is not claimed
as a feature of the mark. The stippling
(June 8, 2012)
shown on the drawing is a feature of the
mark and is claimed for the color white.”

Reg. No. 4130437
(Jul. 14, 2010)
Description: “The mark consists of the
overall appearance of the trade dress for
the packaging of the goods comprised of
a geometric pattern of blue and silver
quadrilaterals above a second row of
alternating silver and blue quadrilaterals
such that a blue quadrilateral is above a
silver quadrilateral, and a silver
quadrilateral is above a blue
quadrilateral. Similarly, below the two
rows are two narrow bands of
quadrilaterals in blue and silver such that
a blue segment is below a silver
quadrilateral, and a silver segment is
below a blue quadrilateral.”
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Table 1
Marks Depicted in Two and Three Dimensions
Registration, Drawing, and
Specimen(s)
Description

Reg. No. 4594093
Description: “The mark consists of an
outlined image of a castle with the word
‘SMITHWICK’S’ appearing on the
inside upper half of the castle.”

(June 30, 2014)

Reg. No. 3250376
Description: The mark consists of the
placement of labels on a bottle. The top
label is a rectangle positioned diagonally
from the lower left to the upper right on
a bottle face just under the neck. The
bottom label is a rectangle positioned
horizontally across a bottle face. Both
labels appear across the bottle face and
extend onto the sides of the bottle. The
dotted lines in the drawing are not a
feature of this mark, but are intended to
show the position of this mark on the
goods.”

(June 5, 2013)

True and correct printouts of the TESS/TARR records for each of the above registrations
are attached as Exhibit A hereto. Applicant respectfully requests that same be made of record for
purposes of the Appeal.
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These registrations show that the USPTO routinely does not require two- or threedimensional limitations in a mark description because such renditions do not create separate and
distinct commercial impressions. For example, the drawing of the Energizer registration is very
clearly two-dimensional, yet the specimens submitted are all three-dimensional renditions of the
mark as used on in-store displays and the batteries themselves. The Cincinnati Bengals, Green
Bay Packers, and Detroit Lions helmet marks are all depicted as two-dimensional in the
respective drawings. Yet the USPTO has accepted both two- and three-dimensional renderings
of the helmets as specimens over the years. The drawing for the Remax registration is twodimensional and its description even contemplates two- and three-dimensional renderings (“The
mark consists of a rectangular background used on real estate listing signs and in images
thereof . . . .”). Not surprisingly, the USPTO accepted images of three-dimensional signs as
specimens. Similarly, the drawing of the American Express credit card face is two-dimensional,
and the USPTO has accepted two-dimensional (December 21, 2001 and June 8, 2012 specimen)
and three-dimensional (September 19, 2007 specimen) depictions of the mark. The USPTO also
accepted three-dimensional renderings of Red Bull’s, Smithwick’s, and Johnnie Walker’s marks
(depicted in two dimensions in the drawings) on their respective beverage cans and bottles.
These examples all show that a change in perspective does not create a separate and distinct
commercial impression such that a single application would violate the “one mark per
application” rule.
The Examining Attorney has given no supportable reason why the Applied-for Mark
should be treated differently. Applicant’s description of the Applied-for Mark adequately
notifies the public of its claimed rights: Applicant claims rights in a green circle located centrally
on the exterior of a white cup, regardless of whether said cup is depicted in two or three
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dimensions. A two-dimensional cup creates the same commercial impression as a threedimensional one, similar to the aforementioned registered marks. Applicant has appropriately
applied for one mark and need not limit its description to three-dimensional renderings.
B.

Use in Commerce Refusal: The Specimen Shows the Applied-for Mark Used
in the Rendering of Applicant’s Services

The Examining Attorney has also refused registration in Class 43 on the ground that
Applicant’s specimen (a photograph of the Applied-for Mark displayed in a Starbucks store)
“does not serve as an indicator or source for the services listed in Class 43. Instead, coffee cups
indicate the source of the goods provided within them.” Office Action at 4. In so doing, the
Examining Attorney has misapplied the Lanham Act and mischaracterized Applicant’s specimen
as an advertisement, which he contends must show a “direct association” between the mark and
the services. Id. This is not a statutory requirement for registration.
The Lanham Act provides that a service mark is used in commerce when it is “used or
displayed in the sale or advertising of services . . . .” 15 U.S.C. § 1127. A specimen need not
“refer explicitly to the services identified” in the application so long as it shows “use of the mark
in the rendering, i.e., sale, of the services.” In re Metriplex Inc., 23 USPQ2d 1315, 1316 (TTAB
1992). In Metriplex, the Board rejected a similar mischaracterization of a specimen as
advertising materials. In that case, the mark GLOBAL GATEWAY was for the service of
“transmission of data in various fields (commercial as well as personal) to subscribers to the
service by means of information entry software, radio data transmission and portable terminal
interface with such subscribers.” Id. The specimens submitted were an example of a computer
screen display that appeared on a computer terminal in the course of the applicant’s rendering of
the service. The applicant stated that the screen was observed by potential subscribers in the
course of demonstrations of the applicant’s services, and by customers who saw the screen on the
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terminal as the service was being rendered. Id. at 1316. The Examining Attorney refused
registration on the basis that the specimens did not make reference to the service identified in the
application, “specifically, they do not indicate that GLOBAL GATEWAY is used in connection
with the transmission of data to subscribers.” Id. The Board reversed the refusal to register,
finding that the specimen—even though it did not explicitly refer to the services identified—
showed use of mark in connection with the rendering/sale of services. Id.
The same is true here. Applicant’s specimen is a photograph of the Applied-for Mark as
it appears on a beverage cup on a countertop display at the register in a Starbucks store. It
encourages consumers to order early and pick up their beverage in the café. It very clearly
shows use of the mark in connection with the rendering of Applicant’s restaurant services.
The Examining Attorney’s refusal is also at odds with the USPTO’s treatment of prior
registrations. Applicant previously submitted (and the USPTO accepted) photographs of its
beverage cups as specimens for restaurant services:

Registration

Table 2
Applicant’s Prior Circular Design Registrations
Specimen

Reg. No.: 3175941
Services: Restaurants, cafes,
cafeterias, snack bars and coffee
bars; carry-out restaurant and
food preparation services in
Class 43 (cancelled in 2012)
Owner: Starbucks Corporation
Reg. Date: November 28, 2006
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Registration

Table 2
Applicant’s Prior Circular Design Registrations
Specimen

Reg. No.: 3070042
Services: Restaurants, cafes,
cafeterias, snack bars and coffee
bars; carry-out restaurant and
food preparation services in
Class 43
Owner: Starbucks Corporation
Reg. Date: March 21, 2006
The reasoning behind the USPTO’s prior acceptance of these specimens is clear, namely, they
adequately show “use of the mark in the rendering, i.e., sale, of the services.” In re Metriplex

22

Inc., 23 USPQ2d at 1316. In keeping with USPTO practice, Applicant’s specimen is similarly
adequate and this refusal should be withdrawn.
Moreover, as Applicant has amply and repeatedly demonstrated, Applicant has used the
Applied-for Mark in myriad ways in connection with its goods and services. Additional
examples of such uses are displayed below to supplement the existing application record on this
point:
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Table 3
Additional Uses of the Applied-for Mark

April 2016 announcement of “Automatic Gold” offer for Starbucks Rewards members
https://news.starbucks.com/news/rewards-automatic-gold

Starbucks Rewards user landing page
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Table 3
Additional Uses of the Applied-for Mark

June 2016 Cold Brew promotion on www.starbucks.com

Starbucks mobile app
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Table 3
Additional Uses of the Applied-for Mark
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Table 3
Additional Uses of the Applied-for Mark

Gift cards and tags

Advertisement for Starbucks Rewards program on www.starbucks.com
27

Table 3
Additional Uses of the Applied-for Mark

Starbucks mobile ordering app
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Table 3
Additional Uses of the Applied-for Mark
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Table 3
Additional Uses of the Applied-for Mark

Videos promoting Starbucks Rewards program include:
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=-FalnLT5irs
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=EaiNlAQ5v9k&list=PLLt7Vrrx9E2BDUdeDsVfeR4Qx0FD
LTo7v&index=1
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=AyCYtOK0pZk&list=PLLt7Vrrx9E2BDUdeDsVfeR4Qx0F
DLTo7v&index=2
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=b5msbusA2Go&index=5&list=PLLt7Vrrx9E2BDUdeDsVfe
R4Qx0FDLTo7v
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Sh7aN3xHygM&index=6&list=PLLt7Vrrx9E2BDUdeDsVf
eR4Qx0FDLTo7v
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Table 3
Additional Uses of the Applied-for Mark

Starbucks mobile app, as shown on The Late Show with Stephen Colbert
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=muBZk76UuRk
Third parties also use the Applied-for Mark to refer to Applicant, including Thrillist, as
shown below:
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https://www.thrillist.com/travel/nation/what-a-starbucks-caffe-latte-costs-in-china-japan-franceand-italy
Applicant respectfully requests that all of the above additional evidence of Applicant’s
use of the applied for mark be entered into the record in advance of the Appeal.
C.

Specimen Refusal: The Drawing Matches the Specimens

The Examining Attorney attempts to ground an additional refusal citing a purported
mismatch between the drawing and the specimen in Sections 1 and 45 of the Lanham Act,
neither of which even mention drawings or specimens, nor delineate any requirements for them.
Again, the Lanham Act allows for registration of any mark used in commerce “in any manner on
the goods or their containers or the displays associated therewith” or “when it is used or
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displayed in the sale or advertising of services,” so long as registration is not prohibited under
Section 2. 15 U.S.C. §§ 1051-53, 1127.
Again, the Board’s recent decision in University of Miami is instructive. The table
below compares the applied-for mark in that case with the submitted specimens.

Drawing

Table 4
University of Miami
Specimens
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The Examining Attorney refused registration because the specimens included additional
elements: (1) a U on the ibis’s hat, (2) MIAMI on the ibis’s sweater, and (3) stripes on the ibis’s
sweater. 123 USPQ2d at 1078. In effect, the Examining Attorney was asserting that the
applicant “mutilated its mark by severing part of it and seeking registration of only that part.” Id.
In reversing the Examining Attorney, the Board found that the ibis drawing created a separate
and distinct commercial impression from the U and MIAMI elements in the specimens. Id. at
1079. The Board also found that the stripes on the ibis’s sweater were “minor alterations,”
which did not have “any significance for the scope of Applicant’s statutory rights in its appliedfor mark, which are based on its drawing.” Id. As a result, the Board held that the applicant’s
specimens were substantially exact representations of the applied-for mark and reversed the
refusal to register. Id.
Here, the Examining Attorney has rejected the application based on his “position[s] that
the stylized siren design is so integrated within the circle as to not create two separable elements”
and that “[t]he green circle does not create a distinct commercial impression apart from the siren
design with which the mark is used on the specimen.” Office Action at 5 (emphasis added). Yet
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tellingly, the Examining Attorney later asserts the exact opposite when describing one of
Applicant’s specimens:
“The detail of the logo on the center of the cup is not discernable even when the
photograph is enlarged digitally.” Id. at 7.
If the “detail” of Applicant’s logo is so difficult to see, then the overall commercial impression is
that of the readily discernable green circle, not of the siren. And, as discussed many times over,
Applicant has provided survey evidence that consumers overwhelmingly and uniquely associate
the Applied-for Mark, with the white cup and unadorned green circle, with Starbucks. The
Applied-for Mark, like the ibis in University of Miami, creates a separate and distinct commercial
impression from the siren and is therefore registrable standing alone.
The Examining Attorney has also rejected the specimens due to the presence of a lid and
whipped toppings. These specimens are substantially exact representations of the Applied-for
Mark, as discussed in the TMEP, and accomplish the broader goal of the trademark registration
system by giving others “as comprehensive a notice as possible . . . of the trademarks and service
marks in which [Applicant] claim[s] rights.” In re Old Glory Condom Corp., 26 USPQ2d 1222
n.3. The presence of a lid or whipped toppings does not make it any less obvious from the
drawing, specimens, and mark description precisely what trademark rights Applicant is claiming.
Like the sweater stripes in University of Miami, a lid and whipped toppings do not have “any
significance for the scope of” Applicant’s rights in the Applied-for Mark. 123 USPQ2d at 1079.
Moreover, as the broken lines in the drawing indicate the placement of the green circle on the
cup, the addition of a beverage or a lid to that cup will not change the mark of the consumers’
perception of it.
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Next, the Examining Attorney contends that one of the specimens (shown below) is
inadequate because “the mark is being used in a way that conveys information on a
promotion . . . .” Office Action at 5.

Trademarks by their very nature are designed to convey information, specifically sourceidentifying information. The above specimen conveys much more than the Examining Attorney
posits. The specimen does not simply tell consumers that they can receive any latte; it conveys
that, with the Starbucks promotion, consumers receive Starbucks brand latte. This is precisely
the type of source-identifier that is protectable under the Lanham Act.
Finally, the Examining Attorney dismisses Applicant’s evidence of third-party
registrations, claiming that “the borders are clearly shown” in those registrations. The
Examining Attorney did not even address the eleven third-party registrations Applicant presented
in its November 17, 2015 Request for Reconsideration whose specimens have obscured borders.
Office Action at 6; November 17, 2015 Request for Reconsideration at 15-21. Moreover, the
Examining Attorney has also recognized that, from some vantage points, it is not even possible
to determine whether any “borders” in Applicant’s logo are “obscured.” See Office Action at 7
(“The detail of the logo on the center of the cup is not discernable even when the photograph is
enlarged digitally.”). Applicant has already provided ample evidence that the green circle carries
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a separate and distinct commercial impression that consumers associate uniquely with Applicant.
The Examining Attorney’s rejection on the ground that the border of the circle is obscured is
improper, contrary to the USPTO’s practice with respect to similar third-party marks, and at odds
with Applicant’s evidence of the Applied-for Mark’s commercial impression. This rejection
must therefore be withdrawn.
D.

Failure to Function Refusal: Applicant’s Mark Is Not Merely a Background
Design

Here again, the Examining Attorney attempts to ground his refusal in Sections 1-3 and 45
of the Lanham Act, none of which concern “background designs.” In support of this refusal, the
Examining Attorney states that “the common basic circle shape” is “not unique or unusual in the
field . . . .” Office Action at 9. Applicant has previously addressed the serious flaws in this
argument. See February 15, 2015 Office Action Response at 65-67.
As for the Examining Attorney’s claim that Applicant “has not shown that the public
views the circle design on the cup, apart from the mermaid or siren design, as a source
indicator,” the Examining Attorney has again ignored Applicant’s survey evidence showing that
two thirds of respondents associate a green circle on a white cup with Applicant.
E.

Acquired Distinctiveness Refusal: Applicant Has Provided Substantial
Evidence of Acquired Distinctiveness

Section 2(f) of the Lanham Act expressly states that “nothing in this chapter shall prevent
the registration of a mark used by the applicant which has become distinctive of the applicant’s
goods in commerce.” 15 U.S.C. § 1052(f). Yet the Examining Attorney, in direct contradiction
of this statutory directive, refuses registration despite Applicant’s overwhelming evidence of
acquired distinctiveness. The Examining Attorney summarily discounts Applicant’s substantial
showing, claiming that “[t]he only evidence attached to the applicant’s response that shows a
solid green circle would not be viewed as a source indicator and is merely artist’s renderings or
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digital images in the nature of two dimensional [sic] drawings . . . .” Office Action at 11
(emphasis added). Applicant again cites the survey evidence submitted over two years ago that
overcomes this objection.
Similarly, the Examining Attorney dismisses Applicant’s media evidence based on
conjecture that “[i]t is more likely that the references are to the applicant’s green and white siren
design and ornamental usage on advertising and promotional products, not a plain green circle.
There is no evidence that the excerpts starting on page 38 and which point to a solid green circle
are instead more likely intended to be shorthand for the green and white siren design.” Id. at 12.
Not only is the Examining Attorney’s contention unsupported, it is directly contradicted by the
articles themselves. And, even if the articles are “shorthand” for Applicant’s logo, they only
strengthen Applicant’s argument that the Applied-for Mark carries a unique commercial
impression and is thus entitled to registration.
Although the evidence submitted in connection with Applicant’s prior office action
responses and request for reconsideration readily show the Applied-for Mark’s acquired
distinctiveness, the Third Supplemental Declaration of Katherine Seawell and the Declaration of
Anne Enright show updated sales figures and detail additional unsolicited media attention of the
Applied-for Mark attached hereto as Exhibit B. Applicant respectfully requests that these
Declarations be made of record, and considered by the PTO in evaluating the registrability of the
subject mark. Applicant likewise requests that the Examining Attorney made this evidence of
record so that it can be duly evaluated by the Board on appeal.
F.

The Examining Attorney’s Refusals Counter Sound Trademark Policy
1.

The Examining Attorney’s Refusals are Inconsistent with USPTO
Practice
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Although Applicant appreciates the need to evaluate applications on their own merits, the
competing need for consistency is equally as strong, particularly here, where the Applied-for
Mark has received markedly different treatment from nearly identical marks Applicant registered
more than a decade ago, and where a federal court has characterized Applicant’s nearly-identical
marks as famous. See, e.g., Reg. No. 3175941 (issued 11/28/2006) and Reg. No. 3070042
(issued 3/21/2006). See also, Starbucks Corp. v. Heller, CV 14-01383, at *2 n.3, *13 (C.D. Cal.
Nov. 26, 2014) (finding that “[t]he Starbucks Marks [defined to include Application Serial
Number 85/792,872] are famous and highly distinctive.”).
The rationales behind the Examining Attorney’s refusals are similarly contradicted by the
USPTO’s treatment of third-party marks. In addition to the marks already discussed at length in
Applicant’s prior responses, the USPTO accepted a specimen showing “whipped toppings”—
which the Examining Attorney here contends is a material alteration of the Applied-for Mark
(Office Action at 5)—for marks without said toppings depicted in the drawing:
Drawing

Specimen

Reg. No. 4072993
True and correct printouts of the TESS/TARR records for the above registration is
attached as Exhibit C hereto. Applicant respectfully requests that same be made of record for
purposes of the Appeal.
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Trademark practitioners rely on the USPTO register as an indication of the Office’s likely
disposition of proposed marks when they counsel clients on mark selection. Not only are
resources wasted when arguments finding support in the existing register are disregarded,
important rights are lost or foregone as well. Without recourse to consistent treatment of
trademark registrations, providing sound legal advice on the results of a proposed registration
becomes little more than a guessing game. 1
In short, the fact that every trademark application must be evaluated on its own merits
does not give the Examining Attorney carte blanche to reject evidence of prior registrations
where there is no statutory basis to do so, and where, as here, there is evidence that either (1) is
probative of the mark’s registrability, or (2) demonstrates that the objections are inconsistent
with USPTO practice. As previously noted, the Examining Attorney offers no statutory
objection to Applicant’s registration and fails to follow the statutory directive of Section 2(f).
Nor does he give any reason why Applicant’s evidence of prior registrations should be ignored
or why Applicant’s present application should be distinguished and treated differently.
1

The inconsistency between trademark examiners has not gone unnoticed by commentators.
See, e.g., Bill Donahue, Brand Battles: Gov’t Fights Bid To Own Army Gun Acronym, Law360,
April 11, 2016, available at http://www.law360.com/articles/782790/brand-battles-gov-t-fightsbid-to-own-army-gun-acronym (calling the examination of trademark applications “notoriously
case-by-case”); Lawrence E. Apolzon, Coming to America: A guide to extending registrations
via the Madrid protocol, World Trademark Review, April/May 2015, available at
http://www.frosszelnick.com/sites/default/files/press_upload_file/WTR_coming-to-america.pdf
(“Any frequent user of the US system has likely encountered inconsistent treatment between two
applications. One examiner may be satisfied with an identification, while another might require
further specificity or take an entirely different approach to a particular wording of the same
identification. This is maddening to US practitioners and frustrating, wasteful, time consuming
and very expensive for all concerned.”).
To improve this state of affairs, in 2008, the USPTO launched the Consistency Initiative
whereby applicants can bring to the attention of the Office situations where the Office has acted
inconsistently in its treatment of pending applications or recent registrations. The USPTO made
this program permanent in 2012. See https://www.uspto.gov/trademark/trademark-updates-andannouncements/consistency-initiative.
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2.

The USPTO Is Charged with Registering Valid Marks That Serve as
Source Identifiers

“The duty of [the USPTO] under the Trademark Act is nothing more and nothing less
than to register those marks that are functioning to identify and distinguish goods and services in
the marketplace, as long as those marks do not run afoul of any statutory provision that would
prohibit registration.” In re Old Glory Condom Corp., 26 USPQ2d at 1220 n.3 (emphases
added). In executing this duty, examining attorneys are charged with being an advocate of both
the public and brand owners. “[W]here the owner of a trade-mark has spent energy, time, and
money in presenting to the public the product, he is protected in his investment from its
misappropriation by pirates and cheats.” 1 J. THOMAS MCCARTHY, MCCARTHY ON
TRADEMARKS AND UNFAIR COMPETITION § 2:33 (4th ed. 2014), quoting S. Rep. No. 79-1333
(1946). In accomplishing these dual goals, “the registration scheme of the Trademark Act is one
more inclined to inclusion than exclusion, the obvious idea being to give as comprehensive a
notice as possible, to those engaged in commerce, of the trademarks and service marks in which
others have claimed rights.” In re Old Glory Condom Corp., 26 USPQ2d 1222 n.3. Viewing the
application from this perspective, the Examining Attorney has an obligation to approve this
application for publication.
3.

The Examining Attorney Has No Statutory Basis for Refusal

While the Examining Attorney couches some of his refusals as statutory refusals, they
have no basis in the Lanham Act, which allows for the registration of trademarks that are used in
commerce, provided they do not run afoul of the statutory grounds for refusal enumerated in
Section 2 of the Lanham Act. 15 U.S.C. §§ 1051-53, 1127. Here, the refusals are, at best, based
on the Examining Attorney’s unsupported interpretations of the Trademark Manual of
Examination Procedure (“TMEP”), which does not carry the force of law. Other refusals are
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entirely unsupported conjecture. See Office Action at 6 (“It is the examining attorney’s position
that the stylized siren design is so integrated within the circle as to not create two separable
elements.”); Office Action at 12 (“It is more likely that the [media] references are to the
applicant’s green and white siren design and ornamental usage on advertising and promotional
products, not a plain green circle. There is no evidence that the excerpts starting on page 38
point to a solid green circle but are more likely intended to be shorthand for the green and white
siren design.”).
The Examining Attorney disputes the adequacy of Applicant’s specimen per his
interpretation of the standards set forth in the TMEP. See Office Action at 4 (refusing
registration because the “specimen does not show the applied-for mark in use in commerce . . .”)
(emphasis added). And, while the Examining Attorney frames the “failure to function” refusals
with reference to Sections 1-3 and 45 of the Lanham Act, he does not argue that the Applied-for
Mark runs afoul of the language in those portions of the statute. Nor can he, as the Lanham Act
itself does not set standards for the adequacy of specimens or otherwise discuss them.
The USPTO and its reviewing courts have been very clear that the TMEP does not trump
the Lanham Act. See In re Sones, 590 F.3d 1282, 1288 (Fed. Cir. 2009) (“We note that the
TMEP is instructive, but ‘is not established law.’”) (quoting In re Pennington Seed, Inc., 466
F.3d 1053, 1059 (Fed. Cir. 2006)); TMEP Introduction (“The provisions of statutes cannot be
changed or waived by the USPTO.”). With unprecedented and unsupportable interpretations of
the TMEP’s administrative guidelines, the Examining Attorney created elevated registration
requirements. Without a valid statutory basis for refusal, this application should be approved for
publication. Indeed, the one statutory provision at issue here—Section 2(f)—requires
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registration. 15 U.S.C. § 1052(f) (“nothing in this chapter shall prevent the registration of a mark
used by the applicant which has become distinctive of the applicant’s goods in commerce . . . .”).
In short, the Examining Attorney’s rejections are inconsistent with the USPTO’s
treatment of similar registrations, do not have a basis in any statutory provision (or the common
law or other authority carrying the force of law), and run counter to sound trademark policy.
Applicant has shown all that the statute requires for a mark to qualify for registration: use of a
source-identifier in association with its goods and services. Accordingly, Applicant requests that
the Trademark Examiner’s refusals be withdrawn and that the application be immediately
approved for publication.
Respectfully submitted,
Starbucks Corporation d/b/a
Starbucks Coffee Company

Dated: November 21, 2017

By:

Julia Anne Matheson
Morgan E. Smith
Attorneys for Applicant
Finnegan, Henderson, Farabow,
Garrett & Dunner, L.L.P.
901 New York Avenue, NW
Washington, D.C. 20001
Telephone: 202-408-4000
Facsimile: 202-408-4400
4835-5116-0918, v. 2
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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This Annual Report on Form 10-K includes "forward-looking" statements within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-looking statements can be identified by the fact that they do not relate strictly to
historical or current facts. They often include words such as "believes," "expects," "anticipates," "estimates," "intends," "plans,"
"seeks" or words of similar meaning, or future or conditional verbs, such as "will," "should," "could," "may," "aims," "intends,"
or "projects." A forward-looking statement is neither a prediction nor a guarantee of future events or circumstances, and those
future events or circumstances may not occur. You should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements, which speak
only as of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. These forward-looking statements are all based on currently available
operating, financial and competitive information and are subject to various risks and uncertainties. Our actual future results and
trends may differ materially depending on a variety of factors, including, but not limited to, the risks and uncertainties
discussed under "Risk Factors" and "Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations". Given these risks and uncertainties, you should not rely on forward-looking statements as a prediction of actual
results. Any or all of the forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and any other public
statement made by us, including by our management, may turn out to be incorrect. We are including this cautionary note to
make applicable and take advantage of the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 for
forward-looking statements. We expressly disclaim any obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether
as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.
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PART I
Item 1. Business
General
Starbucks is the premier roaster, marketer and retailer of specialty coffee in the world, operating in 75 countries. Formed in
1985, Starbucks Corporation’s common stock trades on the NASDAQ Global Select Market ("NASDAQ") under the symbol
"SBUX." We purchase and roast high-quality coffees that we sell, along with handcrafted coffee, tea and other beverages and a
variety of fresh food items, including snack offerings, through company-operated stores. We also sell a variety of coffee and tea
products and license our trademarks through other channels such as licensed stores, grocery and foodservice accounts. In
addition to our flagship Starbucks Coffee brand, we sell goods and services under the following brands: Teavana, Tazo,
Seattle’s Best Coffee, Evolution Fresh, La Boulange and Ethos.
Our objective is to maintain Starbucks standing as one of the most recognized and respected brands in the world. To achieve
this, we are continuing the disciplined expansion of our global store base, adding stores in both existing, developed markets
such as the U.S., and in newer, higher growth markets such as China, as well as optimizing the mix of company-operated and
licensed stores in each market. In addition, by leveraging the experience gained through our traditional store model, we
continue to offer consumers new coffee and other products in a variety of forms, across new categories, diverse channels and
alternative store formats. We also believe our Starbucks Global Responsibility strategy, commitments related to ethically
sourcing high-quality coffee, contributing positively to the communities we do business in and being an employer of choice are
contributors to our objective.
In this Annual Report on Form 10-K ("10-K" or "Report") for the fiscal year ended October 2, 2016 ("fiscal 2016"), Starbucks
Corporation (together with its subsidiaries) is referred to as "Starbucks," the "Company," "we," "us" or "our."
Segment Financial Information
We have four reportable operating segments: 1) Americas, which is inclusive of the U.S., Canada, and Latin America; 2) China/
Asia Pacific ("CAP"); 3) Europe, Middle East, and Africa ("EMEA") and 4) Channel Development. We also have several nonreportable operating segments, including Teavana, Seattle's Best Coffee and Evolution Fresh, as well as certain developing
businesses such as the Starbucks Reserve® Roastery & Tasting Rooms, which are combined and referred to as All Other
Segments. Revenues from our reportable segments and All Other Segments as a percentage of total net revenues for fiscal 2016
were as follows: Americas (69%), CAP (14%), EMEA (5%), Channel Development (9%) and All Other Segments (3%).
Our Americas, CAP, and EMEA segments include both company-operated and licensed stores. Our Americas segment is our
most mature business and has achieved significant scale. Certain markets within our CAP and EMEA operations are still in the
early stages of development and require a more extensive support organization, relative to their current levels of revenue and
operating income, than our Americas operations. The Americas, CAP and EMEA segments also include certain foodservice
accounts, primarily in Canada, Japan and the U.K.
Our Channel Development segment includes roasted whole bean and ground coffees, premium Tazo® teas, Starbucks- and
Tazo-branded single-serve products, a variety of ready-to-drink beverages, such as Frappuccino®, Starbucks Doubleshot® and
Starbucks Refreshers® beverages and other branded products sold worldwide through channels such as grocery stores,
warehouse clubs, specialty retailers, convenience stores and U.S. foodservice accounts.
Starbucks segment information is included in Note 16, Segment Reporting, to the consolidated financial statements included in
Item 8 of Part II of this 10-K.
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Revenue Components
We generate nearly all of our revenues through company-operated stores, licensed stores, consumer packaged goods ("CPG")
and foodservice operations.
Company-operated and Licensed Store Summary as of October 2, 2016

Americas

Company-operated
stores
Licensed stores
Total

9,019
6,588
15,607

As a % of
Total
Americas
Stores

58 %
42 %
100%

CAP

2,811
3,632
6,443

As a
% of
Total
CAP
Stores

44 %
56 %
100%

EMEA

523
2,119
2,642

As a
% of
Total
EMEA
Stores

20 %
80 %
100%

All Other
Segments

358
35
393

As a % of
Total
All Other
Segments
Stores

91 %
9%
100%

Total

12,711
12,374
25,085

As a % of
Total
Stores

51 %
49 %
100%

The mix of company-operated versus licensed stores in a given market will vary based on several factors, including our ability
to access desirable local retail space, the complexity and expected ultimate size of the market for Starbucks and our ability to
leverage the support infrastructure in an existing geographic region.
Company-operated Stores
Revenue from company-operated stores accounted for 79% of total net revenues during fiscal 2016. Our retail objective is to be
the leading retailer and brand of coffee and tea in each of our target markets by selling the finest quality coffee, tea and related
products, as well as complementary food and snack offerings, and by providing each customer with a unique Starbucks
Experience. The Starbucks Experience is built upon superior customer service, as well as clean and well-maintained stores that
reflect the personalities of the communities in which they operate, thereby building a high degree of customer loyalty.
Our strategy for expanding our global retail business is to increase our market share in a disciplined manner, by selectively
opening additional stores in new and existing markets, as well as increasing sales in existing stores, to support our long-term
strategic objective to maintain Starbucks standing as one of the most recognized and respected brands in the world. Store
growth in specific existing markets will vary due to many factors, including the maturity of the market, economic conditions,
consumer behavior and local business practices.
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Company-operated store data for the year-ended October 2, 2016:
Stores Open
as of
Sep 27, 2015

Stores Open
as of
Opened

Closed

Transfers

Net

Oct 2, 2016

Americas:
U.S.

7,559

358

(37)

—

321

7,880

Canada

1,009

45

(19)

—

26

1,035

103

3

(2)

—

1

104

8,671

406

(58)

—

348

9,019

China

1,026

253

(7)

—

246

1,272

Japan

1,073

85

(18)

—

67

1,140

Thailand

237

38

(2)

—

36

273

Singapore

116

13

(3)

—

10

126

2,452

389

(30)

—

359

2,811

428
76
56
18
10
149
737

3
—
1
—
—
1
5

(12)
(2)
(1)
(1)
—
(3)
(19)

(53)
—
—
—
—
(147)
(200)

(62)
(2)
—
(1)
—
(149)
(214)

366
74
56
17
10
—
523

371
3

3
—

(19)
(1)

—
—

(16)
(1)

355
2

1
375
12,235

—
3
803

—
(20)
(127)

—
—
(200)

—
(17)
476

1
358
12,711

Brazil
Total Americas
China/Asia Pacific:

Total China/Asia Pacific
(1)

EMEA :
U.K.
France
Switzerland
Austria
Netherlands
Germany
Total EMEA
All Other Segments:
Teavana
Evolution Fresh
Starbucks Reserve® Roastery
& Tasting Rooms
Total All Other Segments
Total company-operated
(1)

EMEA store data includes the transfer of 144 Germany company-operated retail stores to licensed stores as a result of the
sale to AmRest Holdings SE in the third quarter of fiscal 2016.

Starbucks® company-operated stores are typically located in high-traffic, high-visibility locations. Our ability to vary the size
and format of our stores allows us to locate them in or near a variety of settings, including downtown and suburban retail
centers, office buildings, university campuses and in select rural and off-highway locations. We are continuing the expansion of
our stores, inclusive of Drive Thru formats that provide a higher degree of access and convenience, and alternative store
formats, which are focused on an elevated Starbucks Experience for our customers.
Starbucks® stores offer a choice of coffee and tea beverages, as well as other premium coffee, tea and related products,
including distinctively packaged roasted whole bean and ground coffees, a variety of premium single-serve and ready-to-drink
coffee and tea products, juices and bottled water. Starbucks® stores also offer an assortment of fresh food and snack offerings,
including selections focusing on high-quality ingredients, nutritional value and great flavor. A focused selection of beveragemaking equipment and accessories are also sold in our stores. Each Starbucks® store varies its product mix depending upon the
size of the store and its location. To complement the in-store experience, our company-operated Starbucks® stores in the U.S.,
Canada and certain other international markets also provide customers free access to wireless internet.
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Retail sales mix by product type for company-operated stores:

Fiscal Year Ended

Beverages
Food
Packaged and single-serve coffees and teas
Other(1)
Total
(1)

Oct 2,
2016

Sep 27,
2015

Sep 28,
2014

74%
19%
3%
4%

73%
19%
3%
5%

73%
18%
4%
5%

100%

100%

100%

"Other" primarily consists of sales of ready-to-drink beverages, serveware and coffee-making equipment, among other
items.

Stored Value Cards
The Starbucks Card and our other branded stored value card programs are designed to provide customers with a convenient
payment method, support gifting and increase the frequency of store visits by cardholders, in part through the related Starbucks
Rewards™ (previously My Starbucks Rewards®) loyalty program where available, as discussed below. Stored value cards are
issued to customers when they initially load them with an account balance. They can be obtained in our company-operated and
most licensed stores in North America, Japan, China, Brazil, and many of our markets in the EMEA segment, as well as online, via the Starbucks® mobile app, and through other retailers, including a number of other international locations. Customers
may access their card balances by utilizing their stored value card or the Starbucks® mobile app in participating stores, which
also include certain Teavana® and Evolution Fresh® locations. Using the Mobile Order and Pay functionality of the Starbucks®
mobile app, customers can also place orders in advance for pick-up at certain participating locations in the U.S. and Canada.
Customers who register their card in the U.S., Canada, and certain other countries are automatically enrolled in the Starbucks
Rewards™ program and can receive various benefits depending on factors such as the number of reward points ("Stars") earned.
Refer to Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, included in Item 8 of Part II of this 10-K, for further discussion
of our stored value cards and loyalty program.
Licensed Stores
Revenues from our licensed stores accounted for 10% of total net revenues in fiscal 2016. Licensed stores generally have a
lower gross margin and a higher operating margin than company-operated stores. Under the licensed model, Starbucks receives
a reduced share of the total store revenues, but this is more than offset by the reduction in our share of costs as these are
primarily incurred by the licensee.
In our licensed store operations, we leverage the expertise of our local partners and share our operating and store development
experience. Licensees provide improved, and at times the only, access to desirable retail space. Most licensees are prominent
retailers with in-depth market knowledge and access. As part of these arrangements, we sell coffee, tea, food and related
products to licensees for resale to customers and receive royalties and license fees from the licensees. We also sell certain
equipment, such as coffee brewers and espresso machines, to our licensees for use in their operations. Employees working in
licensed retail locations are required to follow our detailed store operating procedures and attend training classes similar to
those given to employees in company-operated stores. For Teavana® and Starbucks® stores within certain international markets,
we also use traditional franchising and include these stores in the results of operations from our other licensed stores.
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Licensed store data for the year-ended October 2, 2016:
Stores Open
as of
Sep 27, 2015

Stores Open
as of
Opened

Closed

Transfers

Net

Oct 2, 2016

Americas:
4,962

430

(100)

—

330

5,292

Mexico

506

58

(1)

—

57

563

Canada

349

23

(8)

—

15

364

Other

315

55

(1)

—

54

369

6,132

566

(110)

—

456

6,588

China

785

330

(5)

—

325

1,110

South Korea

831

129

(8)

—

121

952

Taiwan

356

45

(9)

—

36

392

Philippines

264

29

—

—

29

293

Indonesia

214

48

(2)

—

46

260

Malaysia

199

28

(1)

—

27

226

Other

361

51

(13)

—

38

399

3,010

660

(38)

—

622

3,632

414

71

(6)

53

118

532

260
131
10
104
89
77
71
469
1,625

63
18
6
6
8
19
24
118
333

(9)
(1)
(2)
(3)
(1)
(1)
(3)
(13)
(39)

—
—
147
—
—
—
—
—
200

54
17
151
3
7
18
21
105
494

314
148
161
107
96
95
92
574
2,119

35
6
41
10,808

—
—
—
1,559

(1)
(5)
(6)
(193)

—
—
—
200

(1)
(5)
(6)
1,566

34
1
35
12,374

U.S.

Total Americas
China/Asia Pacific:

Total China/Asia Pacific
(1)

EMEA :
U.K.
Turkey
United Arab Emirates
Germany
Russia
Spain
Kuwait
Saudi Arabia
Other
Total EMEA
All Other Segments:
Teavana
Seattle's Best Coffee
Total All Other Segments
Total licensed
(1)

EMEA store data includes the transfer of 144 Germany company-operated retail stores to licensed stores as a result of the
sale to AmRest Holdings SE in the third quarter of fiscal 2016.

Consumer Packaged Goods
Revenues from sales of consumer packaged goods comprised 8% of total net revenues in fiscal 2016. Our consumer packaged
goods business includes both domestic and international sales of packaged coffee and tea as well as a variety of ready-to-drink
beverages and single-serve coffee and tea products to grocery, warehouse clubs and specialty retail stores. It also includes
revenues from product sales to and licensing revenues from manufacturers that produce and market Starbucks-, Seattle’s Best
Coffee- and Tazo-branded products through licensing agreements.
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Foodservice
Revenues from foodservice accounts comprised 3% of total net revenues in fiscal 2016. We sell Starbucks® and Seattle’s Best
Coffee® roasted whole bean and ground coffees, a selection of premium Tazo® teas, Starbucks VIA® Ready Brew, and other
coffee and tea-related products to institutional foodservice companies that service business and industry, education, healthcare,
office coffee distributors, hotels, restaurants, airlines and other retailers. We also sell our Seattle’s Best Coffee® through
arrangements with national accounts. The majority of the sales in this channel come through national broadline distribution
networks with SYSCO Corporation, U.S. Foodservice and other distributors.
Product Supply
Starbucks is committed to selling the finest whole bean coffees and coffee beverages. To ensure compliance with our rigorous
coffee standards, we control coffee purchasing, roasting and packaging and the global distribution of coffee used in our
operations. We purchase green coffee beans from multiple coffee-producing regions around the world and custom roast them to
our exacting standards for our many blends and single origin coffees.
The price of coffee is subject to significant volatility. Although most coffee trades in the commodity market, high-altitude
arabica coffee of the quality sought by Starbucks tends to trade on a negotiated basis at a premium above the "C" coffee
commodity price. Both the premium and the commodity price depend upon the supply and demand at the time of purchase.
Supply and price can be affected by multiple factors in the producing countries, including weather, natural disasters, crop
disease, general increase in farm inputs and costs of production, inventory levels and political and economic conditions. Price is
also impacted by trading activities in the arabica coffee futures market, including hedge funds and commodity index funds. In
addition, green coffee prices have been affected in the past, and may be affected in the future, by the actions of certain
organizations and associations that have historically attempted to influence prices of green coffee through agreements
establishing export quotas or by restricting coffee supplies.
We buy coffee using fixed-price and price-to-be-fixed purchase commitments, depending on market conditions, to secure an
adequate supply of quality green coffee. Price-to-be-fixed contracts are purchase commitments whereby the quality, quantity,
delivery period, and other negotiated terms are agreed upon, but the date, and therefore the price, at which the base "C" coffee
commodity price component will be fixed has not yet been established. For most contracts, either Starbucks or the seller has the
option to "fix" the base "C" coffee commodity price prior to the delivery date. For other contracts, Starbucks and the seller may
agree upon pricing parameters determined by the base "C" coffee commodity price. Until prices are fixed, we estimate the total
cost of these purchase commitments. Total green coffee purchase commitments as of October 2, 2016 were $1.1 billion,
comprised of $466 million under fixed-price contracts and an estimated $641 million under price-to-be-fixed contracts. As of
October 2, 2016, approximately $7 million of our price-to-be-fixed contracts were effectively fixed through the use of futures
contracts. All price-to-be-fixed contracts as of October 2, 2016 were at the Company’s option to fix the base "C" coffee
commodity price component. Total purchase commitments, together with existing inventory, are expected to provide an
adequate supply of green coffee through fiscal 2017.
We depend upon our relationships with coffee producers, outside trading companies and exporters for our supply of green
coffee. We believe, based on relationships established with our suppliers, the risk of non-delivery on such purchase
commitments is remote.
To help ensure the future supply of high-quality green coffee and to reinforce our leadership role in the coffee industry,
Starbucks operates eight farmer support centers. The farmer support centers are staffed with agronomists and sustainability
experts who work with coffee farming communities to promote best practices in coffee production designed to improve both
coffee quality and yields.
In addition to coffee, we also purchase significant amounts of dairy products, particularly fluid milk, to support the needs of our
company-operated stores. We believe, based on relationships established with our dairy suppliers, that the risk of non-delivery
of sufficient fluid milk to support our stores is remote.
Products other than whole bean coffees and coffee beverages sold in Starbucks® stores include tea and a number of ready-todrink beverages that are purchased from several specialty suppliers, usually under long-term supply contracts. Food products,
such as La Boulange™ pastries, breakfast sandwiches and lunch items, are purchased from national, regional and local sources.
Our food program continues to develop, and we expect the amount of food products purchased to impact our operations. We
also purchase a broad range of paper and plastic products, such as cups and cutlery, from several companies to support the
needs of our retail stores as well as our manufacturing and distribution operations. We believe, based on relationships
established with these suppliers and manufacturers, that the risk of non-delivery of sufficient amounts of these items is remote.

Starbucks Corporation

2016 Form 10-K

7

Competition
Our primary competitors for coffee beverage sales are specialty coffee shops and quick-service restaurants. In almost all
markets in which we do business, there are numerous competitors in the specialty coffee beverage business. We believe that our
customers choose among specialty coffee retailers primarily on the basis of product quality, service and convenience, as well as
price. We continue to experience direct competition from large competitors in the U.S. quick-service restaurant sector and the
U.S. ready-to-drink coffee beverage market, in addition to well-established companies in many international markets. We also
compete with restaurants and other specialty retailers for prime retail locations and qualified personnel to operate both new and
existing stores.
Our coffee and tea products sold through our Channel Development segment compete directly against specialty coffees and teas
sold through grocery stores, warehouse clubs, specialty retailers, convenience stores and U.S. foodservice accounts and
compete indirectly against all other coffees and teas on the market.
Trademarks, Copyrights, Patents and Domain Names
Starbucks owns and has applied to register numerous trademarks and service marks in the U.S. and in other countries
throughout the world. Some of our trademarks, including Starbucks, the Starbucks logo, Tazo, Seattle’s Best Coffee, Teavana,
Frappuccino, Starbucks VIA, Evolution Fresh and La Boulange are of material importance. The duration of trademark
registrations varies from country to country. However, trademarks are generally valid and may be renewed indefinitely as long
as they are in use and/or their registrations are properly maintained.
We own numerous copyrights for items such as product packaging, promotional materials, in-store graphics and training
materials. We also hold patents on certain products, systems and designs. In addition, Starbucks has registered and maintains
numerous Internet domain names, including "Starbucks.com," "Starbucks.net," "Tazo.com," "Seattlesbest.com" and
"Teavana.com."
Seasonality and Quarterly Results
Our business is subject to moderate seasonal fluctuations, of which our fiscal second quarter typically experiences lower
revenues and operating income. Additionally, as Starbucks Cards are issued to and loaded by customers during the holiday
season, we tend to have higher cash flows from operations during the first quarter of the fiscal year. However, since revenues
from Starbucks Cards are recognized upon redemption and not when cash is loaded onto the Card, the impact of seasonal
fluctuations on the consolidated statements of earnings is much less pronounced. As a result of moderate seasonal fluctuations,
results for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be achieved for the full fiscal year.
Employees
Starbucks employed approximately 254,000 people worldwide as of October 2, 2016. In the U.S., Starbucks employed
approximately 170,000 people, with approximately 162,000 in company-operated stores and the remainder in support facilities,
store development, and roasting, manufacturing, warehousing and distribution operations. Approximately 84,000 employees
were employed outside of the U.S., with approximately 81,000 in company-operated stores and the remainder in regional
support operations. The number of Starbucks employees represented by unions is not significant. We believe our current
relations with our employees are good.
Executive Officers of the Registrant
Name

Age

Howard Schultz
Kevin R. Johnson
Cliff Burrows
John Culver
Scott Maw
Lucy Lee Helm

63
56
57
56
49
59
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Position

chairman and chief executive officer
president and chief operating officer
group president, Siren Retail
group president, Starbucks Global Retail
executive vice president, chief financial officer
executive vice president, general counsel and secretary

Howard Schultz is the founder of Starbucks Corporation and serves as the chairman and chief executive officer. Mr. Schultz
has served as chairman of the board of directors since Starbucks inception in 1985, and in January 2008, he reassumed the role
of president and chief executive officer. He served as president until March 2015. From June 2000 to February 2005, Mr.
Schultz also held the title of chief global strategist. From November 1985 to June 2000, he served as chairman of the board and
chief executive officer. From November 1985 to June 1994, Mr. Schultz also served as president. From January 1986 to July
1987, Mr. Schultz was the chairman of the board, chief executive officer and president of Il Giornale Coffee Company, a
predecessor to the Company. From September 1982 to December 1985, Mr. Schultz was the director of retail operations and
marketing for Starbucks Coffee Company, a predecessor to the Company.
Kevin R. Johnson has served as our president and chief operating officer since March 2015 and has been a Starbucks director
since March 2009. Mr. Johnson served as Chief Executive Officer of Juniper Networks, Inc., a leading provider of highperformance networking products and services, from September 2008 to December 2013. He also served on the Board of
Directors of Juniper Networks from September 2008 through February 2014. Prior to joining Juniper Networks, Mr. Johnson
served as President, Platforms and Services Division for Microsoft Corporation, a worldwide provider of software, services and
solutions. Mr. Johnson was a member of Microsoft’s Senior Leadership Team and held a number of senior executive positions
over the course of his 16 years at Microsoft. Prior to joining Microsoft in 1992, Mr. Johnson worked in International Business
Machine Corp.’s systems integration and consulting business.
Cliff Burrows joined Starbucks in April 2001 and has served as group president, Siren Retail, since September 2016, which
includes the Starbucks Reserve® Roastery & Tasting Rooms and the Teavana specialty retail business. From July 2015 to
September 2016, he served as group president, U.S. and Americas. From February 2014 to June 2015, he served as group
president, U.S., Americas and Teavana. From May 2013 to February 2014, he served as group president, Americas and U.S.,
EMEA (Europe, Middle East and Africa) and Teavana. Mr. Burrows served as president, Starbucks Coffee Americas and U.S.
from October 2011 to May 2013 and as president, Starbucks Coffee U.S. from March 2008 to October 2011. He served as
president, EMEA from April 2006 to March 2008. He served as vice president and managing director, U.K. prior to April 2006.
Prior to joining Starbucks, Mr. Burrows served in various management positions with Habitat Designs Limited, a furniture and
housewares retailer.
John Culver joined Starbucks in August 2002 and has served as group president, Starbucks Global Retail since September
2016. From May 2013 to September 2016, he served as group president, China, Asia Pacific, Channel Development and
Emerging Brands. Mr. Culver served as president, Starbucks Coffee China and Asia Pacific from October 2011 to May 2013.
From December 2009 to October 2011, he served as president, Starbucks Coffee International. Mr. Culver served as executive
vice president; president, Global Consumer Products, Foodservice and Seattle’s Best Coffee from February 2009 to September
2009, and then as president, Global Consumer Products and Foodservice from October 2009 to November 2009. He previously
served as senior vice president; president, Starbucks Coffee Asia Pacific from January 2007 to February 2009, and vice
president; general manager, Foodservice from August 2002 to January 2007.
Scott Maw joined Starbucks in August 2011 and has served as executive vice president, chief financial officer since February
2014. From October 2012 to February 2014, he served as senior vice president, Corporate Finance and as corporate controller
from August 2011 to October 2012. Prior to joining Starbucks, Mr. Maw served as chief financial officer of SeaBright
Insurance Company from February 2010 to August 2011. From October 2008 to February 2010, Mr. Maw served as chief
financial officer of the Consumer Banking division of JPMorgan Chase & Co., having held a similar position at Washington
Mutual Bank prior to its acquisition by Chase. From 1994 to 2003, he served in various finance leadership positions at General
Electric Company.
Lucy Lee Helm joined Starbucks in September 1999 and has served as executive vice president, general counsel and secretary
since May 2012. She served as senior vice president and deputy general counsel from October 2007 to April 2012 and served as
interim general counsel and secretary from April 2012 to May 2012. Ms. Helm previously served as vice president, assistant
general counsel from June 2002 to September 2007 and as director, corporate counsel from September 1999 to May 2002.
During her tenure at Starbucks, Ms. Helm has led various teams of the Starbucks legal department, including the Litigation and
Brand protection team, the Global Business (Commercial) team and the Litigation and Employment team. Prior to joining
Starbucks, Ms. Helm was a principal at the Seattle law firm of Riddell Williams P.S. from 1990 to 1999, where she was a trial
lawyer specializing in commercial, insurance coverage and environmental litigation.
Global Responsibility
We are committed to being a deeply responsible company in the communities where we do business. Our focus is on ethically
sourcing high-quality coffee, reducing our environmental impacts and contributing positively to communities around the world.
Starbucks Global Responsibility strategy and commitments are integral to our overall business strategy. As a result, we believe
we deliver benefits to our stakeholders, including employees, business partners, customers, suppliers, shareholders, community
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members and others. For an overview of Starbucks Global Responsibility strategy and commitments, please visit
www.starbucks.com/responsibility.
Available Information
Starbucks 10-K reports, along with all other reports and amendments filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange
Commission ("SEC"), are publicly available free of charge on the Investor Relations section of our website at
investor.starbucks.com or at www.sec.gov as soon as reasonably practicable after these materials are filed with or furnished to
the SEC. Our corporate governance policies, code of ethics and Board committee charters and policies are also posted on the
Investor Relations section of Starbucks website at investor.starbucks.com. The information on our website is not part of this or
any other report Starbucks files with, or furnishes to, the SEC.
Item 1A. Risk Factors
You should carefully consider the risks described below. If any of the risks and uncertainties described in the cautionary factors
described below actually occurs, our business, financial condition and results of operations, and the trading price of our
common stock could be materially and adversely affected. Moreover, we operate in a very competitive and rapidly changing
environment. New factors emerge from time to time and it is not possible to predict the impact of all these factors on our
business, financial condition or results of operations.
• Economic conditions in the U.S. and international markets could adversely affect our business and financial results.
As a retailer that is dependent upon consumer discretionary spending, our results of operations are sensitive to changes in
macro-economic conditions. Our customers may have less money for discretionary purchases and may stop or reduce their
purchases of our products or trade down to Starbucks or competitors' lower priced products as a result of job losses,
foreclosures, bankruptcies, increased fuel and energy costs, higher interest rates, higher taxes and reduced access to credit.
Decreases in customer traffic and/or average value per transaction will negatively impact our financial performance as reduced
revenues without a corresponding decrease in expenses result in sales de-leveraging, which creates downward pressure on
margins and also negatively impacts comparable store sales, net revenues, operating income and earnings per share. There is
also a risk that if negative economic conditions persist for a long period of time or worsen, consumers may make long-lasting
changes to their discretionary purchasing behavior, including less frequent discretionary purchases on a more permanent basis.
• Our success depends substantially on the value of our brands and failure to preserve their value, either through our
actions or those of our business partners, could have a negative impact on our financial results.
We believe we have built an excellent reputation globally for the quality of our products, for delivery of a consistently positive
consumer experience and for our corporate social responsibility programs. The Starbucks brand is recognized throughout the
world and we have received high ratings in global brand value studies. To be successful in the future, particularly outside of the
U.S., where the Starbucks brand and our other brands are less well-known, we believe we must preserve, grow and leverage the
value of our brands across all sales channels. Brand value is based in part on consumer perceptions on a variety of subjective
qualities.
Additionally, our business strategy, including our plans for new stores, foodservice, branded products and other initiatives,
relies significantly on a variety of business partners, including licensee and joint venture relationships, particularly in our
international markets, and third party manufacturers, distributors and retailers, particularly in our international Channel
Development business. Licensees and foodservice operators are often authorized to use our logos and provide branded food,
beverage and other products directly to customers. We provide training and support to, and monitor the operations of, certain of
these business partners, but the product quality and service they deliver may be diminished by any number of factors beyond
our control, including financial pressures they may face. We believe customers expect the same quality of products and service
from our licensees as they do from us and we strive to ensure customers receive the same quality of products and service
experience whether they visit a company-operated store or a licensed store. We also source our food, beverage and other
products from a wide variety of domestic and international business partners in our supply chain operations, and in certain
cases such products are produced or sourced by our licensees directly. And although foodservice operators are authorized to use
our logos and provide branded products as part of their foodservice business, we do not monitor the quality of non-Starbucks
products served in those locations.
Business incidents, whether isolated or recurring and whether originating from us or our business partners, that erode consumer
trust, such as actual or perceived breaches of privacy, contaminated food, store employees or other food handlers infected with
communicable diseases, product recalls or other potential incidents discussed in this risk factors section, particularly if the
incidents receive considerable publicity, including rapidly through social or digital media, or result in litigation, and failure to
respond appropriately to these incidents, can significantly reduce brand value and have a negative impact on our financial
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results. Consumer demand for our products and our brand equity could diminish significantly if we or our licensees or other
business partners fail to preserve the quality of our products, are perceived to act in an unethical or socially irresponsible
manner, including with respect to the sourcing, content or sale of our products or the use of customer data, fail to comply with
laws and regulations or fail to deliver a consistently positive consumer experience in each of our markets, including by failing
to invest in the right balance of wages and benefits to attract and retain employees that represent the brand well. Additionally,
inconsistent uses of our brand and other of our intellectual property assets, as well as failure to protect our intellectual property,
including from unauthorized uses of our brand or other of our intellectual property assets, can erode consumer trust and our
brand value and have a negative impact on our financial results.
• Incidents involving food or beverage-borne illnesses, tampering, contamination or mislabeling, whether or not accurate, as
well as adverse public or medical opinions about the health effects of consuming our products, could harm our business.
Instances or reports, whether true or not, of unclean water supply or food-safety issues, such as food or beverage-borne
illnesses, tampering, contamination or mislabeling, either during growing, manufacturing, packaging, storing or preparation,
have in the past severely injured the reputations of companies in the food and beverage processing, grocery and quick-service
restaurant sectors and could affect us as well. Any report linking us to the use of unclean water, food or beverage-borne
illnesses, tampering, contamination, mislabeling or other food or beverage-safety issues could damage our brand value and
severely hurt sales of our food and beverage products and possibly lead to product liability claims, litigation (including class
actions) or damages. Clean water is critical to the preparation of coffee, tea and other beverages and our ability to ensure a
clean water supply to our stores can be limited, particularly in some international locations. We are also continuing to
incorporate more products in our food and beverage lineup that require freezing or refrigeration, including produce (such as
fruits and vegetables in our salads and juices), dairy products (such as milk and cheeses), non-dairy alternative products (such
as soymilk and almondmilk) and meats. Additionally, we are evolving our product lineup to include more local or smaller
suppliers for some of our products who may not have as rigorous quality and safety systems and protocols as larger or more
national suppliers. If customers become ill from food or beverage-borne illnesses, tampering, contamination, mislabeling or
other food or beverage-safety issues, we could be forced to temporarily close some stores and/or supply chain facilities, as well
as recall products. In addition, instances of food or beverage-safety issues, even those involving solely the restaurants or stores
of competitors or of suppliers or distributors (regardless of whether we use or have used those suppliers or distributors), could,
by resulting in negative publicity about us or the foodservice industry in general, adversely affect our sales on a regional or
global basis. A decrease in customer traffic as a result of food-safety concerns or negative publicity, or as a result of a
temporary closure of any of our stores, product recalls or food or beverage-safety claims or litigation, could materially harm
our business and results of operations.
Some of our products contain caffeine, dairy products, sugar and other compounds and allergens, the health effects of which are
the subject of public and regulatory scrutiny, including the suggestion that excessive consumption of caffeine, dairy products,
sugar and other compounds can lead to a variety of adverse health effects. Particularly in the U.S., there is increasing consumer
awareness of health risks, including obesity, due in part to increased publicity and attention from health organizations, as well
as increased consumer litigation based on alleged adverse health impacts of consumption of various food and beverage
products. While we have a variety of beverage and food items, including items that are coffee-free and have reduced calories,
an unfavorable report on the health effects of caffeine or other compounds present in our products, whether accurate or not, or
negative publicity or litigation arising from certain health risks could significantly reduce the demand for our beverages and
food products and could materially harm our business and results of operations.
• The unauthorized access, theft or destruction of customer or employee personal, financial or other data or of Starbucks
proprietary or confidential information that is stored in our information systems or by third parties on our behalf could
impact our reputation and brand and expose us to potential liability and loss of revenues.
Our information technology systems, such as those we use for our point-of-sale, web and mobile platforms, including online
and mobile payment systems and rewards programs, and for administrative functions, including human resources, payroll,
accounting and internal and external communications, as well as the information technology systems of our third party business
partners and service providers, can contain personal, financial or other information that is entrusted to us by our customers and
employees. Our information technology systems also contain Starbucks proprietary and other confidential information related
to our business, such as business plans, product development initiatives and designs. Similar to many other retail companies
and because of the prominence of our brand, we have experienced frequent attempts to compromise our information technology
systems. To the extent we or a third party were to experience a material breach of our or such third party’s information
technology systems that result in the unauthorized access, theft, use or destruction of customers' or employees' data or that of
the Company stored in such systems, including through cyber-attacks or other external or internal methods, it could result in a
material loss of revenues from the potential adverse impact to our reputation and brand, our ability to retain or attract new
customers and the potential disruption to our business and plans. Such security breaches also could result in a violation of
applicable U.S. and international privacy and other laws, and subject us to private consumer or securities litigation and
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governmental investigations and proceedings, any of which could result in our exposure to material civil or criminal liability.
Our reputation and brand and our ability to attract new customers could also be adversely impacted if we fail, or are perceived
to have failed, to properly respond to these incidents. Such failure to properly respond could also result in similar exposure to
liability. Significant capital investments and other expenditures could be required to remedy the problem and prevent future
breaches, including costs associated with additional security technologies, personnel, experts and credit monitoring services for
those whose data has been breached. These costs, which could be material, could adversely impact our results of operations in
the period in which they are incurred and may not meaningfully limit the success of future attempts to breach our information
technology systems.
Media or other reports of existing or perceived security vulnerabilities in our systems or those of our third party business
partners or service providers, even if no breach has been attempted or has occurred, can also adversely impact our brand and
reputation and materially impact our business. Additionally, the techniques and sophistication used to conduct cyber-attacks
and breaches of information technology systems, as well as the sources and targets of these attacks, change frequently and are
often not recognized until such attacks are launched or have been in place for a period of time. We continue to make significant
investments in technology, third party services and personnel to develop and implement systems and processes that are
designed to anticipate cyber-attacks and to prevent or minimize breaches of our information technology systems or data loss,
but these security measures cannot provide assurance that we will be successful in preventing such breaches or data loss.
• We rely heavily on information technology in our operations, and any material failure, inadequacy, interruption or
security failure of that technology could harm our ability to effectively operate our business and could adversely affect our
financial results.
We rely heavily on information technology systems across our operations, including for administrative functions, point-of-sale
processing and payment in our stores and online, management of our supply chain, Starbucks Cards, online business, mobile
technology, including mobile payments and ordering apps, reloads and loyalty functionality and various other processes and
transactions, and many of these systems are interdependent on one another for their functionality. Our ability to effectively
manage our business and coordinate the production, distribution, administration and sale of our products depends significantly
on the reliability, integrity and capacity of these systems. We also rely on third party providers and platforms for some of these
information technology systems and support. Additionally, our systems hardware, software and services provided by third party
service providers are not fully redundant within a market or across our markets. Although we have operational safeguards in
place, they may not be effective in preventing the failure of these systems or platforms to operate effectively and be available.
Such failures may be caused by various factors, including power outages, catastrophic events, inadequate or ineffective
redundancy, problems with transitioning to upgraded or replacement systems or platforms, flaws in third party software or
services, errors by our employees or third party service providers, or a breach in the security of these systems or platforms,
including through cyber-attacks discussed in more detail in this risk factors section. If our incident response, disaster recovery
and business continuity plans do not resolve these issues in an effective manner they could cause material negative impacts to
our product availability and sales, the efficiency of our operations and our financial results.
• We may not be successful in implementing important strategic initiatives or effectively managing growth, which may have
an adverse impact on our business and financial results.
There is no assurance that we will be able to implement important strategic initiatives in accordance with our expectations,
which may result in an adverse impact on our business and financial results. These strategic initiatives are designed to create
growth, improve our results of operations and drive long-term shareholder value, and include:
• being an employer of choice and investing in employees to deliver a superior customer experience;
• building our leadership position around coffee, including through the development of Starbucks Reserve® Roasteries
and Starbucks Reserve® stores;
• increasing the scale of the Starbucks store footprint with disciplined global expansion and introducing flexible and
unique store formats;
• creating new occasions in stores across all dayparts with new product offerings, including our growing lunch food and
beverage product lineup;
• continuing the global growth of our Channel Development business;
• delivering continued growth in our tea business through the Teavana brand; and
• driving convenience and brand engagement through our mobile, loyalty and digital capabilities.
In addition to other factors listed in this risk factors section, factors that may adversely affect the successful implementation of
these initiatives, which could adversely impact our business and financial results, include the following:
• increases in labor costs, both domestically and internationally, such as general market and minimum wage levels and
investing in competitive compensation, increased health care and workers’ compensation insurance costs and other
12
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•
•

•
•
•

•
•
•

benefits to attract and retain high quality employees with the right skill sets, whether due to regulatory mandates,
changing industry practices or our expansion into new channels or technology dependent operations;
increasing competition in channels in which we operate or seek to operate from new and existing large competitors
that sell high-quality specialty coffee beverages;
construction cost increases associated with new store openings and remodeling of existing stores; delays in store
openings for reasons beyond our control or a lack of desirable real estate locations available for lease at reasonable
rates, either of which could keep us from meeting annual store opening targets in the U.S. and internationally;
not successfully scaling our supply chain infrastructure as our product offerings increase and as we continue to
expand;
the ability of our licensee partners to implement our growth platforms and product innovation;
lack of customer acceptance of new products (including due to price increases necessary to cover the costs of new
products or higher input costs), brands (such as the global expansion of Teavana) and platforms (such as mobile
technology), or customers reducing their demand for our current offerings as new products are introduced;
the degree to which we enter into, maintain, develop and are able to negotiate appropriate terms and conditions of, and
enforce, commercial and other agreements;
not successfully consummating favorable strategic transactions or integrating acquired businesses; and
the deterioration in our credit ratings, which could limit the availability of additional financing and increase the cost of
obtaining financing to fund our initiatives.

Additionally, our Channel Development business is also in part dependent on the level of support our retail business partners
provide our products, and in some markets there are only a few retailers. If our retail business partners do not provide sufficient
levels of support for our products, which is at their discretion, it could limit our ability to grow our Channel Development
business. Also, a relatively small number of licensee partners own a large number of licensed stores. If such licensee partners
are not able to access sufficient funds or financing, or are otherwise unable to successfully operate and grow their businesses,
including their licensed stores, it could adversely affect our results in the markets in which they operate their licensed stores.
Effectively managing growth can be challenging, particularly as we continue to expand into new channels outside the retail
store model, increase our focus on our Channel Development and Teavana businesses, and expand into new markets
internationally where we must balance the need for flexibility and a degree of autonomy for local management against the need
for consistency with our goals, philosophy and standards. Growth can make it increasingly difficult to ensure a consistent
supply of high-quality raw materials, to locate and hire sufficient numbers of key employees, to maintain an effective system of
internal controls for a globally dispersed enterprise and to train employees worldwide to deliver a consistently high quality
product and customer experience. Furthermore, if we are not successful in implementing these strategic initiatives, we may be
required to evaluate whether certain assets, including goodwill and other intangibles, have become impaired. In the event we
record an impairment charge, it could have a material impact on our financial results.
• We face intense competition in each of our channels and markets, which could lead to reduced profitability.
The specialty coffee market is intensely competitive, including with respect to product quality, innovation, service,
convenience, and price, and we face significant and increasing competition in all these areas in each of our channels and
markets. Accordingly, we do not have leadership positions in all channels and markets. In the U.S., the ongoing focus by large
competitors in the quick-service restaurant sector on selling high-quality specialty coffee beverages could lead to decreases in
customer traffic to Starbucks® stores and/or average value per transaction adversely affecting our sales and results of
operations. Similarly, continued competition from well-established competitors in our international markets could hinder
growth and adversely affect our sales and results of operations in those markets. Increased competition in the U.S. packaged
coffee and tea and single-serve and ready-to-drink coffee beverage markets, including from new and large entrants to this
market, could adversely affect the profitability of the Channel Development segment. Additionally, declines in general
consumer demand for specialty coffee products for any reason, including due to consumer preference for other products, could
have a negative effect on our business.
• We are highly dependent on the financial performance of our Americas operating segment.
Our financial performance is highly dependent on our Americas operating segment, as it comprised approximately 69% of
consolidated total net revenues in fiscal 2016. If the Americas operating segment revenue trends slow or decline, especially in
our U.S. and Canada markets, our other segments may be unable to make up any significant shortfall and our business and
financial results could be adversely affected. And because the Americas segment is relatively mature and produces the large
majority of our operating cash flows, such a slowdown or decline could result in reduced cash flows for funding the expansion
of our international business and other initiatives and for returning cash to shareholders.
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• We are increasingly dependent on the success of certain international markets in order to achieve our growth targets.
Our future growth increasingly depends on the growth and sustained profitability of certain international markets. Some or all
of our international market business units ("MBUs"), which we generally define by the countries in which they operate, may
not be successful in their operations or in achieving expected growth, which ultimately requires achieving consistent, stable net
revenues and earnings. The performance of these international operations may be adversely affected by economic downturns in
one or more of the countries in which our large MBUs operate. In particular, both our China and Japan MBUs contribute
meaningfully to both consolidated and CAP net revenues and earnings. A decline in performance of one or more of our
significant international MBUs could have a material adverse impact on our consolidated results.
Additionally, some factors that will be critical to the success of our international operations are different than those affecting
our U.S. stores and licensees. Tastes naturally vary by region, and consumers in some MBUs may not embrace our products to
the same extent as consumers in the U.S. or other international markets. Occupancy costs and store operating expenses can be
higher internationally than in the U.S. due to higher rents for prime store locations or costs of compliance with country-specific
regulatory requirements. Because many of our international operations are in an early phase of development, operating
expenses as a percentage of related revenues are often higher compared to more developed operations, such as in the U.S.
Additionally, our international joint venture partners or licensees may face capital constraints or other factors that may limit the
speed at which they are able to expand and develop in a certain market.
Our international operations are also subject to additional inherent risks of conducting business abroad, such as:
• foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations, or requirements to transact in specific currencies;
• changes or uncertainties in economic, legal, regulatory, social and political conditions in our markets;
• interpretation and application of laws and regulations;
• restrictive actions of foreign or U.S. governmental authorities affecting trade and foreign investment, especially during
periods of heightened tension between the U.S. and such foreign governmental authorities, including protective
measures such as export and customs duties and tariffs, government intervention favoring local competitors, and
restrictions on the level of foreign ownership;
• import or other business licensing requirements;
• the enforceability of intellectual property and contract rights;
• limitations on the repatriation of funds and foreign currency exchange restrictions due to current or new U.S. and
international regulations;
• in developing economies, the growth rate in the portion of the population achieving sufficient levels of disposable
income may not be as fast as we forecast;
• difficulty in staffing, developing and managing foreign operations and supply chain logistics, including ensuring the
consistency of product quality and service, due to governmental actions affecting supply chain logistics, distance,
language and cultural differences, as well as challenges in recruiting and retaining high quality employees in local
markets;
• local laws that make it more expensive and complex to negotiate with, retain or terminate employees;
• delays in store openings for reasons beyond our control, competition with locally relevant competitors or a lack of
desirable real estate locations available for lease at reasonable rates, any of which could keep us from meeting annual
store opening targets and, in turn, negatively impact net revenues, operating income and earnings per share; and
• disruption in energy supplies affecting our markets.
Moreover, many of the foregoing risks are particularly acute in developing countries, which are important to our long-term
growth prospects.
• Increases in the cost of high-quality arabica coffee beans or other commodities or decreases in the availability of highquality arabica coffee beans or other commodities could have an adverse impact on our business and financial results.
We purchase, roast and sell high-quality whole bean arabica coffee beans and related coffee products. The price of coffee is
subject to significant volatility and has and may again increase significantly due to one or more of the factors described below.
The high-quality arabica coffee of the quality we seek tends to trade on a negotiated basis at a premium above the "C" price.
This premium depends upon the supply and demand at the time of purchase and the amount of the premium can vary
significantly. Increases in the "C" coffee commodity price do increase the price of high-quality arabica coffee and also impact
our ability to enter into fixed-price purchase commitments. We frequently enter into supply contracts whereby the quality,
quantity, delivery period, and other negotiated terms are agreed upon, but the date, and therefore price, at which the base "C"
coffee commodity price component will be fixed has not yet been established. These are known as price-to-be-fixed contracts.
The supply and price of coffee we purchase can also be affected by multiple factors in the producing countries, including
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weather, natural disasters, crop disease, general increase in farm inputs and costs of production, inventory levels and political
and economic conditions, as well as the actions of certain organizations and associations that have historically attempted to
influence prices of green coffee through agreements establishing export quotas or by restricting coffee supplies. Speculative
trading in coffee commodities can also influence coffee prices. Because of the significance of coffee beans to our operations,
combined with our ability to only partially mitigate future price risk through purchasing practices and hedging activities,
increases in the cost of high-quality arabica coffee beans could have an adverse impact on our profitability. In addition, if we
are not able to purchase sufficient quantities of green coffee due to any of the above factors or to a worldwide or regional
shortage, we may not be able to fulfill the demand for our coffee, which could have an adverse impact on our profitability.
We also purchase significant amounts of dairy products, particularly fluid milk, to support the needs of our company-operated
retail stores. Additionally, and although less significant to our operations than coffee or dairy, other commodities, including but
not limited to tea and those related to food and beverage inputs, such as cocoa, produce, baking ingredients, meats, eggs and
energy, as well as the processing of these inputs, are important to our operations. Increases in the cost of dairy products and
other commodities, or lack of availability, whether due to supply shortages, delays or interruptions in processing, or otherwise,
especially in international markets, could have an adverse impact on our profitability.
• Our financial condition and results of operations are sensitive to, and may be adversely affected by, a number of factors,
many of which are largely outside our control.
Our operating results have been in the past and will continue to be subject to a number of factors, many of which are largely
outside our control. Any one or more of the factors listed below or described elsewhere in this risk factors section could
adversely impact our business, financial condition and/or results of operations:
• increases in real estate costs in certain domestic and international markets;
• adverse outcomes of litigation; and
• especially in our larger or fast growing markets, labor discord, war, terrorism (including incidents targeting us),
political instability, boycotts, social unrest, and natural disasters, including health pandemics that lead to avoidance of
public places or restrictions on public gatherings such as in our stores.
• Interruption of our supply chain could affect our ability to produce or deliver our products and could negatively impact
our business and profitability.
Any material interruption in our supply chain, such as material interruption of roasted coffee supply due to the casualty loss of
any of our roasting plants, interruptions in service by our third party logistic service providers or common carriers that ship
goods within our distribution channels, trade restrictions, such as increased tariffs or quotas, embargoes or customs restrictions,
or natural disasters that cause a material disruption in our supply chain could negatively impact our business and our
profitability.
Additionally, our food, beverage and other products are sourced from a wide variety of domestic and international business
partners in our supply chain operations, and in certain cases are produced or sourced by our licensees directly. We rely on these
suppliers and vendors to provide high quality products and to comply with applicable laws. Our ability to find qualified
suppliers and vendors who meet our standards and supply products in a timely and efficient manner is a significant challenge,
especially with respect to goods sourced from outside the U.S., especially countries or regions with diminished infrastructure,
developing or failing economies or experiencing political instability or social unrest. For certain products, we may rely on one
or very few suppliers or vendors. A vendor's or supplier's failure to meet our standards, provide products in a timely and
efficient manner, or comply with applicable laws is beyond our control. These issues, especially for those products for which
we rely on one or few suppliers or vendors, could negatively impact our business and profitability.
• Failure to meet market expectations for our financial performance and fluctuations in the stock market as a whole will
likely adversely affect the market price and volatility of our stock.
Failure to meet market expectations going forward, particularly with respect to operating margins, earnings per share,
comparable store sales, operating cash flows, and net revenues, will likely result in a decline and/or increased volatility in the
market price of our stock. In addition, price and volume fluctuations in the stock market as a whole may affect the market price
of our stock in ways that may be unrelated to our financial performance.
• The loss of key personnel or difficulties recruiting and retaining qualified personnel could adversely impact our business
and financial results.
Much of our future success depends on the continued availability and service of senior management personnel. The loss of any
of our executive officers or other key senior management personnel could harm our business. We must continue to recruit,
retain and motivate management and other employees sufficiently, both to maintain our current business and to execute our
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strategic initiatives, some of which involve ongoing expansion in business channels outside of our traditional companyoperated store model. Our success also depends substantially on the contributions and abilities of our retail store employees
whom we rely on to give customers a superior in-store experience and elevate our brand. Accordingly, our performance
depends on our ability to recruit and retain high quality employees to work in and manage our stores, both domestically and
internationally. If we are unable to recruit, retain and motivate employees sufficiently to maintain our current business and
support our projected growth, our business and financial performance may be adversely affected.
• Failure to comply with applicable laws and changing legal and regulatory requirements could harm our business and
financial results.
Our policies and procedures are designed to comply with all applicable laws, accounting and reporting requirements, tax rules
and other regulations and requirements, including those imposed by the SEC, NASDAQ, and foreign countries, as well as
applicable trade, labor, healthcare, privacy, food and beverage, labeling, anti-bribery and corruption and merchandise laws. The
complexity of the regulatory environment in which we operate and the related cost of compliance are both increasing due to
additional or changing legal and regulatory requirements, our ongoing expansion into new markets and new channels, and the
fact that foreign laws occasionally conflict with domestic laws. In addition to potential damage to our reputation and brand,
failure by us or our business partners to comply with the various laws and regulations, as well as changes in laws and
regulations or the manner in which they are interpreted or applied, may result in litigation, civil and criminal liability, damages,
fines and penalties, increased cost of regulatory compliance and restatements of our financial statements.
Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Item 2. Properties
The significant properties used by Starbucks in connection with its roasting, manufacturing, warehousing, distribution and
corporate administrative operations, serving all segments, are as follows:
Location
Rancho Cucamonga, CA
Stratford, CT
Augusta, GA
Minden, NV (Carson Valley)
York, PA
Gaston, SC (Sandy Run)
Lebanon, TN
Auburn, WA
Kent, WA
Seattle, WA
Shanghai, China
Amsterdam, Netherlands
Samutprakarn, Thailand

Approximate Size
in Square Feet

265,000
196,000
131,000
360,000
2,098,000
117,000
680,000
491,000
510,000
1,135,000
116,000
97,000
81,000

Purpose

Manufacturing
Warehouse and distribution
Manufacturing
Roasting and distribution
Roasting, distribution and warehouse
Roasting and distribution
Warehouse and distribution
Warehouse and distribution
Roasting and distribution
Corporate administrative
Corporate administrative
Roasting and distribution
Warehouse and distribution

We own most of our roasting facilities and lease the majority of our warehousing and distribution locations. As of October 2,
2016, Starbucks had 12,711 company-operated stores, almost all of which are leased. We also lease space in various locations
worldwide for regional, district and other administrative offices, training facilities and storage. In addition to the locations listed
above, we hold inventory at various locations managed by third-party warehouses.
Item 3. Legal Proceedings
See Note 15, Commitments and Contingencies, to the consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of Part II of this
10-K for information regarding certain legal proceedings in which we are involved.
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.
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PART II
Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Shareholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities
SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
MARKET INFORMATION AND DIVIDEND POLICY
Starbucks common stock is traded on NASDAQ, under the symbol "SBUX."
The following table shows the quarterly high and low sale prices per share of Starbucks common stock as reported by
NASDAQ for each quarter during the last two fiscal years and the quarterly cash dividend declared per share of our common
stock during the periods indicated, as adjusted to give effect to the two-for-one stock split discussed in Note 1, Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies, included in Item 8 of Part II of this 10-K:
High

Fiscal 2016:
Fourth Quarter
Third Quarter
Second Quarter
First Quarter
Fiscal 2015:
Fourth Quarter
Third Quarter
Second Quarter
First Quarter

Cash Dividends
Declared

Low

$

58.84
61.64
61.79
64.00

$

52.90
54.01
52.63
54.81

$

0.25
0.20
0.20
0.20

$

59.32
54.75
49.60
42.10

$

42.05
46.28
39.28
35.39

$

0.20
0.16
0.16
0.16

As of November 11, 2016, we had approximately 18,100 shareholders of record. This does not include persons whose stock is
in nominee or "street name" accounts through brokers.
Future decisions to pay cash dividends continue to be at the discretion of the Board of Directors and will be dependent on our
operating performance, financial condition, capital expenditure requirements and other factors that the Board of Directors
considers relevant.
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
The following table provides information regarding repurchases of our common stock during the quarter ended October 2,
2016:

Total
Number of
Shares
Purchased

Period(1)
June 27, 2016 — July 24, 2016
July 25, 2016 — August 21, 2016
August 22, 2016 — October 2, 2016
Total

—
4,660,655
2,609,092
7,269,747

Total Number
of Shares
Purchased as
Part of Publicly
Announced
Plans or
Programs(2)

Average
Price
Paid per
Share

$

$

—
55.92
55.43
55.74

Maximum
Number of
Shares that May
Yet Be
Purchased
Under the Plans
or Programs(3)

—
4,660,655
2,609,092
7,269,747

125,119,308
120,458,653
117,849,561

(1)

Monthly information is presented by reference to our fiscal months during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2016.

(2)

Share repurchases are conducted under our ongoing share repurchase program announced in September 2001, which has
no expiration date.

(3)

This column includes the total number of shares authorized for repurchase under the Company's ongoing share
repurchase program and includes the additional 100 million shares authorized for repurchase as announced on April 21,
2016. Shares under our ongoing share repurchase program may be repurchased in open market transactions, including
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pursuant to a trading plan adopted in accordance with Rule 10b5-1 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, or through
privately negotiated transactions. The timing, manner, price and amount of repurchases will be determined at the
Company's discretion, and the share repurchase program may be suspended, terminated or modified at any time for any
reason.
Performance Comparison Graph
The following graph depicts the total return to shareholders from October 2, 2011 through October 2, 2016, relative to the
performance of the Standard & Poor’s 500 Index, the NASDAQ Composite Index and the Standard & Poor’s 500 Consumer
Discretionary Sector, a peer group that includes Starbucks. All indices shown in the graph have been reset to a base of 100 as of
October 2, 2011, and assume an investment of $100 on that date and the reinvestment of dividends paid since that date. The
stock price performance shown in the graph is not necessarily indicative of future price performance.
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Sep 30, 2012

$

137.95
130.20
131.89
136.64

Sep 29, 2013

$

213.36
155.39
163.47
180.14

Sep 28, 2014

$

210.33
186.05
195.96
201.34

10/2/2016

Sep 27, 2015

$

328.99
184.91
202.60
227.88

Oct 2, 2016

$

311.36
213.44
234.66
249.84

Item 6. Selected Financial Data
The following selected financial data is derived from the consolidated financial statements. All per-share data has been
retroactively adjusted to give effect to the two-for-one stock split discussed in Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies, included in Item 8 of Part II of this 10-K. The data below should be read in conjunction with "Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations," "Risk Factors," and the consolidated financial
statements and notes.
Financial Information (in millions, except per share data):

As of and for the Fiscal Year Ended (1)

Oct 2,
2016
(53 Wks)

Sep 27,
2015
(52 Wks)

Sep 28,
2014
(52 Wks)

$ 15,197.3
1,861.9
2,103.5
$ 19,162.7
$ 3,601.0
2,759.3

$ 12,977.9
1,588.6
1,881.3
$ 16,447.8
$ 3,081.1
2,067.7

Sep 29,
2013
(52 Wks)

Sep 30,
2012
(52 Wks)

Results of Operations
Net revenues:
Company-operated stores
$ 16,844.1
Licensed stores
2,154.2
CPG, foodservice and other
2,317.6
Total net revenues
$ 21,315.9
Operating income/(loss)(2)
$ 4,171.9
Net earnings including noncontrolling interests(2)
2,818.9
Net earnings/(loss) attributable to noncontrolling
interests
1.2
(2)
Net earnings attributable to Starbucks
2,817.7
(2)
EPS — diluted
1.90
Cash dividends declared per share
0.850
Net cash provided by operating activities
4,575.1
Capital expenditures (additions to property, plant and
equipment)
1,440.3
Balance Sheet
Total assets(3)
Long-term debt (including current portion)
Shareholders’ equity

$ 14,329.5
3,602.2
5,884.0

1.9
2,757.4
1.82
0.680
3,749.1

(0.4)

$ 11,793.2 $ 10,534.5
1,360.5
1,210.3
1,713.1
1,532.0
$ 14,866.8 $ 13,276.8
(325.4) $ 1,997.4
$
8.8
1,384.7

2,068.1
1.35
0.550
607.8

0.5
8.3
0.01
0.445
2,908.3

0.9
1,383.8
0.90
0.360
1,750.3

1,303.7

1,160.9

1,151.2

856.2

$ 12,416.3
2,347.5
5,818.0

$ 10,752.0
2,048.3
5,272.0

$ 11,516.0
1,299.4
4,480.2

$

8,217.6
549.6
5,109.0

(1)

Our fiscal year ends on the Sunday closest to September 30. The fiscal year ended on October 2, 2016 included 53 weeks,
with the 53rd week falling in our fourth fiscal quarter.

(2)

Fiscal 2013 results include a pretax charge of $2,784.1 million resulting from the conclusion of our arbitration with Kraft
Foods Global, Inc. The impact of this charge to net earnings attributable to Starbucks and diluted EPS, net of the related
tax benefit, was $1,713.1 million and $1.12 per share, respectively.

(3)

Total assets for fiscal 2012 through fiscal 2015 have been adjusted for the adoption of new accounting guidance related to
the reclassification of deferred income taxes as discussed in Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.
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Comparable Store Sales:
Oct 2,
2016

Fiscal Year Ended

Sep 27,
2015

Sep 28,
2014

Sep 29,
2013

Sep 30,
2012

Percentage change in comparable store sales(1)
Americas
Sales growth
Change in transactions
Change in ticket

6%
1%
5%

7%
3%
4%

6%
2%
3%

7%
5%
2%

8%
6%
2%

3%
1%
2%

9%
8%
1%

7%
6%
—%

9%
7%
2%

15%
11%
3%

—%
1%
—%

4%
2%
1%

5%
3%
2%

—%
2%
(2)%

—%
—%
—%

5%
1%
4%

7%
3%
4%

6%
3%
3%

7%
5%
2%

7%
6%
1%

China/Asia Pacific(2)
Sales growth
Change in transactions
Change in ticket
EMEA
Sales growth
Change in transactions
Change in ticket
Consolidated
Sales growth
Change in transactions
Change in ticket
(1)

Includes only Starbucks® company-operated stores open 13 months or longer. Comparable store sales exclude the effect
of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. For fiscal year 2016, comparable store sales percentages were
calculated excluding the 53rd week.

(2)

Beginning in December of fiscal 2016, comparable store sales include the results of the 1,009 company-operated stores
acquired as part of the acquistion of Starbucks Japan in the first quarter of fiscal 2015.

20

Starbucks Corporation

2016 Form 10-K

Store Count Data:

As of and for the Fiscal Year Ended

Oct 2,
2016
(53 Wks)

Sep 27,
2015
(52 Wks)

Sep 28,
2014
(52 Wks)

Sep 29,
2013
(52 Wks)

Sep 30,
2012
(52 Wks)

Net stores opened/(closed) and transferred during the
year:
Americas(1)
Company-operated stores
Licensed stores
China/Asia Pacific (2)

348
456

276
336

317
381

276
404

228
280

Company-operated stores
Licensed stores
EMEA(3)

359
622

1,320
(482)

250
492

239
349

152
296

Company-operated stores
Licensed stores
All Other Segments (4)

(214)

(80)

(29)

494

302

10
101

Company-operated stores
Licensed stores
Total
Stores open at year end:
Americas (1)

(17)
(6)

6
(1)

(9)
180

129

12
(24)

343
(10)

—
(4)

2,042

1,677

1,599

1,701

1,063

Company-operated stores
Licensed stores
China/Asia Pacific(2)

9,019
6,588

8,671
6,132

8,395
5,796

8,078
5,415

7,802
5,011

Company-operated stores
Licensed stores
EMEA(3)

2,811
3,632

2,452
3,010

1,132
3,492

882
3,000

643
2,651

Company-operated stores
Licensed stores
All Other Segments (4)

523
2,119

737
1,625

817
1,323

826
1,143

855
1,014

Company-operated stores
Licensed stores
Total

358
35
25,085

375
41
23,043

369
42
21,366

357
66
19,767

14
76
18,066

(1)

Americas store data has been adjusted for the sale of store locations in Chile to a joint venture partner in the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2013 by reclassifying historical information from company-operated stores to licensed stores, and to
exclude Seattle's Best Coffee and Evolution Fresh, which are reported within All Other Segments. Americas store data
also includes the closure of 132 Target Canada licensed stores in the second quarter of fiscal 2015.

(2)

China/Asia Pacific store data has been adjusted for the transfer of certain company-operated stores to licensed stores in
the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014. China/Asia Pacific store data also includes the transfer of 1,009 Japan stores from
licensed stores to company-operated as a result of the acquisition of Starbucks Japan in the first quarter of fiscal 2015.

(3)

EMEA store data has been adjusted for the transfer of certain company-operated stores to licensed stores in the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2012 and in the second and fourth quarters of fiscal 2014. EMEA store data also includes the transfer of
144 Germany company-operated retail stores to licensed stores as a result of the sale to AmRest Holdings SE in the third
quarter of fiscal 2016.

(4)

All Other Segments store data includes 337 Teavana® stores acquired in the second quarter of fiscal 2013.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
General
Our fiscal year ends on the Sunday closest to September 30. The fiscal year ended on October 2, 2016 included 53 weeks, with
the extra week falling in our fourth fiscal quarter. Fiscal years ended on September 27, 2015 and September 28, 2014 both
included 52 weeks. Comparable store sales percentages below are calculated excluding the 53rd week. All references to store
counts, including data for new store openings, are reported net of related store closures, unless otherwise noted.
Financial Highlights
•

Total net revenues increased 11% to $21.3 billion in fiscal 2016 compared to $19.2 billion in fiscal 2015.

•

Global comparable store sales grew 5% driven by a 4% increase in average ticket and a 1% increase in the number of
transactions.

•

Consolidated operating income increased to $4.2 billion in fiscal 2016 compared to operating income of $3.6 billion in
fiscal 2015. Fiscal 2016 operating margin was 19.6% compared to 18.8% in fiscal 2015. Operating margin expansion in
fiscal 2016 was primarily driven by sales leverage and lower commodity costs, partially offset by investments in
partners (employees) and digital platforms.

•

Earnings per share ("EPS") for fiscal 2016 increased to $1.90 and included $0.06 per share for the extra week in fiscal
2016. Fiscal 2015 EPS was $1.82 and included $0.26 per share from the gain on the fair value adjustment of our
preexisting equity interest in Starbucks Japan upon acquisition.

•

Cash flows from operations were $4.6 billion in fiscal 2016 compared to $3.7 billion in fiscal 2015. The change was
primarily due to increased earnings, the lapping of the non-cash acquisition related gain for Starbucks Japan and the
timing of our cash payments for income taxes.

•

Capital expenditures were $1.4 billion in fiscal 2016 compared to $1.3 billion in fiscal 2015.

•

We returned $3.2 billion to our shareholders in fiscal 2016 through share repurchases and dividends compared to $2.4
billion in fiscal 2015.

Overview
Starbucks results for fiscal 2016 continued to demonstrate the strength of our global business model, and our ability to
successfully make disciplined investments in our business and our partners (employees). Our net revenues grew 11% over
fiscal 2015, and consolidated operating margin expanded 80 basis points from 18.8% in fiscal 2015 to 19.6% in fiscal 2016,
largely driven by sales leverage and lower commodity costs, partially offset by investments in our partners and digital
platforms.
The Americas segment continued to perform well in fiscal 2016, with revenues growing 11% to $14.8 billion, primarily driven
by comparable store sales growth of 6%, comprised of a 5% increase in average ticket and a 1% increase in number of
transactions, incremental revenues from 804 net new store openings over the last 12 months and the impact of the extra week in
fiscal 2016. Growth in our iced beverages, including coffee, tea and espresso, paired with beverage innovation and the success
of our food offerings, drove the increase in comparable store sales. Americas operating margin grew 110 basis points to 25.3%
in fiscal 2016, primarily driven by sales leverage and lower commodity costs, partially offset by investments in our store
partners and digital platforms.
Our fiscal 2016 China/Asia Pacific segment results reflected higher revenues from the opening of 981 net new stores over the
past year, incremental revenues associated with the ownership change in Starbucks Japan, a 3% increase in comparable store
sales and the impact of the extra week in fiscal 2016. Operating margin expanded 60 basis points to 21.5%, driven by sales
leverage, higher income from our joint venture operations and favorability from changes to certain business tax structures in
China. This favorability was partially offset by unfavorable foreign currency translation and the impact of our ownership
change in Starbucks Japan. We now operate 6,443 stores in 15 countries in our China/Asia Pacific segment with continued
strong performance, reinforcing our confidence in the long-term growth potential of this market.
As we continue to execute our strategy of achieving the appropriate balance between company-operated and licensed stores,
our EMEA segment revenues declined 8% to $1.1 billion in fiscal 2016 compared to a year ago. The decline in revenues was
primarily driven by lower company-operated store revenues due to the shift to more licensed stores in the region and
unfavorable foreign currency translation. Partially offsetting lower company-operated store revenues were higher licensed store
sales, primarily resulting from the opening of 294 net new licensed stores and the transfer of 200 company-operated stores to
licensed stores over the past 12 months, and the impact of the extra week in fiscal 2016. Compared to fiscal 2015, EMEA
operating margin declined 30 basis points to 13.5% primarily due to sales deleverage at certain company-operated stores and
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unfavorable foreign currency exchange, partially offset by sales leverage driven by the shift in the portfolio towards more
licensed stores.
The Channel Development segment revenues grew 12% to $1.9 billion in fiscal 2016, primarily due to higher sales of premium
single-serve products, driven by sales of Starbucks® K-Cup® portion packs, the impact of the extra week in fiscal 2016 and
increased foodservice and packaged coffee sales. Operating margin increased 400 basis points to 41.8%, primarily driven by
strong performance from our North American Coffee Partnership joint venture, lower coffee costs and leverage on cost of sales.
As seen through our Channel Development segment results for fiscal 2016, we continue to expand customer occasions outside
of our retail stores and through our developing international presence.
Fiscal 2017 — The View Ahead
Turning to fiscal 2017, we expect continued strength in our revenue, operating margin and earnings per share results in
comparison to fiscal 2016. These results are expected to be driven by our 7 Strategies for Growth, which include:
•

Be the Employer of Choice

•

Elevate Coffee

•

Grow the Store Portfolio

•

Create New Customer Occasions

•

Drive At-Home Coffee Share and Occasions

•

Build Teavana through Starbucks and CPG

•

Extend Digital Engagement

In fiscal 2017, through our 7 Strategies for Growth, we plan to expand our footprint by opening new stores and enhancing the
mix and types of stores in our portfolio. Expansion of our store portfolio is expected to be coupled with continued customer
attachment through our morning and lunch dayparts. And, our management team continues to align our leadership with our
evolving businesses, including the development of our Global Roastery and Starbucks Reserve® branded stores. As a result of
these efforts, we expect consolidated revenue growth to be approximately 8% in fiscal 2017 when compared to our 53-week
results in fiscal 2016. After excluding the approximately $400 million of additional revenue attributed to the extra week in
fiscal 2016, we expect consolidated revenue growth to be approximately 10% for fiscal 2017 based on a comparable 52-week
year. Revenue growth is expected to be driven by comparable store sales in the mid-single digits and the opening of
approximately 2,100 net new stores globally.
Additionally, for fiscal 2017, we expect to continue investing in our partners and digital platforms. These investments provide
enhanced wages and benefits and also focus on mobile and loyalty programs. We expect partner and digital investments to
increase by approximately $250 million versus an increase of approximately $160 million in fiscal 2016, further demonstrating
the importance of and value creation realized from these efforts.
We plan for our consolidated operating margin to increase slightly in fiscal 2017 when compared to fiscal 2016. Sales leverage
and cost savings initiatives will offset investments in our business and partners. For fiscal 2017, we expect an effective tax rate
of about 34%, and diluted net earnings per share to be in the range of $2.09 to $2.11.
Capital expenditures in fiscal 2017 are expected to be approximately $1.6 billion, primarily for new stores and store
renovations, as well as for other investments to support our ongoing growth initiatives.
Acquisitions and Divestitures
See Note 2, Acquisitions and Divestitures, to the consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of Part II of this 10-K for
information regarding acquisitions and divestitures.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS — FISCAL 2016 COMPARED TO FISCAL 2015
Consolidated results of operations (in millions):
Revenues
Oct 2,
2016

Fiscal Year Ended

Net revenues:
Company-operated stores
Licensed stores
CPG, foodservice and other
Total net revenues

$

16,844.1
2,154.2
2,317.6
21,315.9

$

Sep 27,
2015

$

$

%
Change

15,197.3
1,861.9
2,103.5
19,162.7

10.8 %
15.7
10.2
11.2%

Total net revenues increased $2.2 billion, or 11%, over fiscal 2015, primarily due to increased revenues from company-operated
stores (contributing $1.6 billion). The growth in company-operated store revenues was primarily driven by 5% growth in
comparable store sales ($793 million), incremental revenues from 693 net new Starbucks® company-operated store openings
over the past 12 months ($724 million), the impact of the extra week in fiscal 2016 ($324 million) and incremental revenues
from the impact of our ownership change in Starbucks Japan ($105 million). Partially offsetting these increases was the
absence of revenue from the conversion of certain company-operated stores to licensed stores ($151 million) and the impact of
unfavorable foreign currency translation ($99 million).
Licensed store revenue growth contributed $292 million to the increase in total net revenues, primarily resulting from higher
product sales to and royalty revenues from our licensees ($285 million), largely due to the opening of 1,372 net new Starbucks®
licensed stores, the transfer of 200 company-operated stores to licensed stores over the past 12 months and improved
comparable store sales, as well as the impact of the extra week in fiscal 2016 ($41 million). Partially offsetting these increases
was the impact of unfavorable foreign currency translation ($33 million) and a decrease in licensed store revenues resulting
from the impact of our ownership change in Starbucks Japan ($6 million).
CPG, foodservice and other revenues increased $214 million, primarily due to higher sales of premium single-serve products
($106 million), the impact of the extra week in fiscal 2016 ($47 million), and increased foodservice sales ($34 million) and
U.S. packaged coffee ($32 million).
Operating Expenses
Oct 2,
2016

Fiscal Year Ended

Sep 27,
2015

Oct 2,
2016

Sep 27,
2015

As a % of Total
Net Revenues

Cost of sales including occupancy costs
Store operating expenses
Other operating expenses
Depreciation and amortization expenses
General and administrative expenses
Total operating expenses
Income from equity investees
Operating income
Store operating expenses as a % of related revenues

$

$

8,511.1
6,064.3
545.4
980.8
1,360.6
17,462.2
318.2
4,171.9

$

$

7,787.5
5,411.1
522.4
893.9
1,196.7
15,811.6
249.9
3,601.0

39.9 %
28.4
2.6
4.6
6.4
81.9
1.5
19.6%

40.6 %
28.2
2.7
4.7
6.2
82.5
1.3
18.8%

36.0 %

35.6 %

Cost of sales including occupancy costs as a percentage of total net revenues decreased 70 basis points, primarily driven by
leverage on cost of sales and occupancy costs (approximately 70 basis points) and lower commodity costs (approximately 50
basis points).
Store operating expenses as a percentage of total net revenues increased 20 basis points. Store operating expenses as a
percentage of company-operated store revenues increased 40 basis points, primarily driven by increased investments in partners
(employees) and digital platforms (approximately 80 basis points), partially offset by sales leverage (approximately 30 basis
points).
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Other operating expenses as a percentage of total net revenues decreased 10 basis points. Excluding the impact of companyoperated store revenues, other operating expenses decreased 100 basis points, primarily due to a settlement in the fourth quarter
of fiscal 2016 related to the closure of Target Canada stores in the prior year (approximately 50 basis points), the lapping of
impairment of certain assets in the Americas segment in the prior year (approximately 20 basis points) and improved collection
results (approximately 20 basis points).
General and administrative expenses as a percentage of total net revenues increased 20 basis points, primarily driven by higher
salaries and benefits (approximately 30 basis points).
Income from equity investees as a percentage of total net revenues increased 20 basis points due to higher income from our
joint venture operations, primarily from our North American Coffee Partnership and our joint ventures in China and South
Korea.
The combination of these changes resulted in an overall increase in operating margin of 80 basis points over fiscal 2015.
Other Income and Expenses
Oct 2,
2016

Fiscal Year Ended

Sep 27,
2015

Oct 2,
2016

Sep 27,
2015

As a % of Total
Net Revenues

Operating income
Gain resulting from acquisition of joint venture
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Interest income and other, net
Interest expense
Earnings before income taxes
Income tax expense
Net earnings including noncontrolling interests
Net earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests
Net earnings attributable to Starbucks
Effective tax rate including noncontrolling interests

$

4,171.9

$

—
—
108.0
(81.3)

$

4,198.6
1,379.7
2,818.9
1.2
2,817.7

3,601.0
390.6
(61.1)
43.0
(70.5)

$

3,903.0
1,143.7
2,759.3
1.9
2,757.4

19.6 %

18.8 %

—
—
0.5
(0.4)
19.7
6.5
13.2
—
13.2%

2.0
(0.3)
0.2
(0.4)
20.4
6.0
14.4
—
14.4%

32.9 %

29.3 %

During the first quarter of fiscal 2015, we recorded a gain of $391 million as a result of remeasuring our preexisting 39.5%
ownership interest in Starbucks Japan to fair value upon acquisition.
During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2015, we recorded a loss of $61 million related to the redemption of our $550 million of
6.250% Senior Notes (the "2017 notes"), which were originally scheduled to mature in August 2017. The loss primarily relates
to the optional redemption premium outlined in the 2017 notes indenture, as well as the derecognition of the capitalized
issuance costs and unamortized discount.
Interest income and other, net increased $65 million, primarily due to higher income recognized on unredeemed stored value
card balances ($21 million), net favorable foreign exchange fluctuations ($11 million) and gains on our trading securities
portfolio ($8 million).
Interest expense increased $11 million primarily due to interest on the long-term debt we issued in February and May 2016.
Our tax rate is affected by recurring items, such as tax rates in foreign jurisdictions and the relative amounts of income we earn
in those jurisdictions, as well as discrete items that may occur in any given year, but are not consistent from year to year. The
effective tax rate for fiscal 2016 was 32.9% compared to 29.3% for fiscal 2015. The increase in the rate for fiscal 2016 was
primarily due to the 3.7% impact of the gain in the prior year associated with the remeasurement of our preexisting 39.5%
ownership interest in Starbucks Japan upon acquisition, which was almost entirely non-taxable.
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Segment Information
Results of operations by segment (in millions):
Americas
Oct 2,
2016

Fiscal Year Ended

Sep 27,
2015

Oct 2,
2016

Sep 27,
2015

As a % of Americas
Total Net Revenues

Net revenues:
Company-operated stores
Licensed stores
Foodservice and other
Total net revenues
Cost of sales including occupancy costs
Store operating expenses
Other operating expenses
Depreciation and amortization expenses
General and administrative expenses
Total operating expenses
Operating income
Store operating expenses as a % of related revenues

$

$

13,247.4
1,518.5
29.5
14,795.4
5,271.9
4,909.3
96.0
590.1
186.1
11,053.4
3,742.0

$

$

11,925.6
1,334.4
33.4
13,293.4

89.5 %
10.3
0.2
100.0

89.7 %
10.0
0.3
100.0

4,845.0
4,387.9
122.8
522.3
192.1
10,070.1
3,223.3

35.6
33.2
0.6
4.0
1.3
74.7
25.3%

36.4
33.0
0.9
3.9
1.4
75.8
24.2%

37.1 %

36.8 %

Revenues
Americas total net revenues for fiscal 2016 increased $1.5 billion, or 11%, primarily due to increased revenues from companyoperated stores (contributing $1.3 billion) and licensed stores (contributing $184 million).
The increase in company-operated store revenues was driven by a 6% increase in comparable store sales ($730 million),
incremental revenues from 348 net new Starbucks® company-operated store openings over the past 12 months ($481 million)
and the impact of the extra week in fiscal 2016 ($258 million). Partially offsetting these increases was unfavorable foreign
currency translation ($91 million), primarily driven by the strengthening of the U.S. dollar against the Canadian dollar.
The increase in licensed store revenues was primarily due to higher product sales to and royalty revenues from our licensees
($150 million), resulting from the opening of 456 net new licensed stores over the past 12 months and improved comparable
store sales, as well as the impact of the extra week in fiscal 2016 ($31 million).
Operating Expenses
Cost of sales including occupancy costs as a percentage of total net revenues decreased 80 basis points, primarily driven by
leverage on cost of sales and occupancy costs (approximately 50 basis points) and lower commodity costs (approximately 40
basis points).
Store operating expenses as a percentage of total net revenues increased 20 basis points. As a percentage of company-operated
store revenues, store operating expenses increased 30 basis points, primarily driven by increased investments in store partners
and digital platforms (approximately 100 basis points), partially offset by sales leverage on salaries and benefits (approximately
80 basis points).
Other operating expenses as a percentage of total net revenues decreased 30 basis points. Excluding the impact of companyoperated store revenues, other operating expenses decreased 280 basis points, primarily due to a settlement in the fourth quarter
of fiscal 2016 related to the closure of Target Canada stores in the prior year (approximately 140 basis points), the lapping of
impairment of certain assets in the region (approximately 60 basis points) and improved collection results (approximately 40
basis points).
The combination of these changes resulted in an overall increase in operating margin of 110 basis points over fiscal 2015.
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China/Asia Pacific
Oct 2,
2016

Fiscal Year Ended

Sep 27,
2015

Oct 2,
2016

Sep 27,
2015

As a % of China/Asia Pacific
Total Net Revenues

Net revenues:
Company-operated stores
Licensed stores
Foodservice and other
Total net revenues
Cost of sales including occupancy costs
Store operating expenses
Other operating expenses
Depreciation and amortization expenses
General and administrative expenses
Total operating expenses
Income from equity investees
Operating income
Store operating expenses as a % of related revenues

$

$

2,640.4
292.3
6.1
2,938.8
1,296.7
779.4
70.3
180.6
130.3
2,457.3
150.1
631.6

$

$

2,127.3
264.4
4.2
2,395.9

89.8 %
9.9
0.2
100.0

88.8 %
11.0
0.2
100.0

1,071.5
609.8
62.2
150.7
120.8
2,015.0
119.6
500.5

44.1
26.5
2.4
6.1
4.4
83.6
5.1
21.5%

44.7
25.5
2.6
6.3
5.0
84.1
5.0
20.9%

29.5 %

28.7 %

Revenues
China/Asia Pacific total net revenues for fiscal 2016 increased $543 million, or 23%, largely due to increased revenues from
company-operated stores (contributing $513 million). The increase in company-operated store revenues was primarily due to
the opening of 359 net new company-operated stores over the past 12 months ($246 million) and incremental revenues from the
impact of our ownership in Starbucks Japan ($105 million). Also contributing was a 3% increase in comparable store sales ($61
million), the impact of the extra week in fiscal 2016 ($52 million) and favorable foreign currency translation ($49 million).
Licensed store revenues increased $28 million, primarily due to increased product sales to and royalty revenues from licensees
($47 million), resulting from the opening of 622 net new licensed store openings over the past 12 months, partially offset by
unfavorable foreign currency translation ($15 million) and a decrease in licensed store revenues resulting from the impact of
our ownership change in Starbucks Japan ($6 million).
Operating Expenses
Cost of sales including occupancy costs as a percentage of total net revenues decreased 60 basis points, primarily due to the
impact of our ownership change in Starbucks Japan (approximately 30 basis points) and favorability from changes to certain
business tax structures in China (30 basis points).
Store operating expenses as a percentage of total net revenues increased 100 basis points. As a percentage of company-operated
store revenues, store operating expenses increased 80 basis points, primarily driven by higher partner and digital investments
and payroll-related expenditures (approximately 90 basis points) and the impact of our ownership change in Starbucks Japan
(approximately 40 basis points), partially offset by sales leverage on salaries and benefits (approximately 60 basis points).
Other operating expenses as a percentage of total net revenues decreased 20 basis points. Excluding the impact of companyoperated store revenues, other operating expenses increased 40 basis points, primarily due to higher payroll-related
expenditures (approximately 140 basis points), investments in digital platforms (approximately 80 basis points) and the impact
of our ownership change in Starbucks Japan (approximately 60 basis points), partially offset by sales leverage (approximately
220 basis points).
General and administrative expenses as a percentage of total revenues decreased 60 basis points, primarily due to sales leverage
on salaries and benefits (approximately 40 basis points).
Income from equity investees as a percentage of total net revenues increased 10 basis points, primarily due to higher income
from our joint venture operations, primarily in China and South Korea (approximately 70 basis points and 60 basis points,
respectively), partially offset by the shift in composition of our store portfolio to more company-operated stores (approximately
50 basis points) and the impact of our ownership change in Starbucks Japan (approximately 50 basis points).
The combination of these changes resulted in an overall increase in operating margin of 60 basis points over fiscal 2015.
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EMEA
Oct 2,
2016

Fiscal Year Ended

Sep 27,
2015

Oct 2,
2016

Sep 27,
2015

As a % of EMEA
Total Net Revenues

Net revenues:
Company-operated stores
Licensed stores
Foodservice
Total net revenues
Cost of sales including occupancy costs
Store operating expenses
Other operating expenses
Depreciation and amortization expenses
General and administrative expenses
Total operating expenses
Income from equity investees
Operating income
Store operating expenses as a % of related revenues

$

$

732.0
339.5
53.4
1,124.9
565.0
260.6
57.0
40.8
51.4
974.8
1.5
151.6

$

$

911.2
257.2
48.3
1,216.7

65.1 %
30.2
4.7
100.0

74.9 %
21.1
4.0
100.0

582.5
308.7
51.8
52.0
56.6
1,051.6
3.1
168.2

50.2
23.2
5.1
3.6
4.6
86.7
0.1
13.5%

47.9
25.4
4.3
4.3
4.7
86.4
0.3
13.8%

35.6 %

33.9 %

Revenues
EMEA total net revenues for fiscal 2016 decreased $92 million, or 8%. The decrease was primarily due to a decline in
company-operated store revenues ($179 million), which was largely due to the shift to more licensed stores in the region ($132
million) and includes the absence of revenues related to the sale of our Germany retail operations, and unfavorable foreign
currency translation ($69 million). These decreases were partially offset by the impact of the extra week in fiscal 2016 ($18
million).
Licensed store revenues increased $82 million, or 32%, primarily due to higher product sales to and royalty revenues from our
licensees ($89 million), resulting from the opening of 294 net new licensed stores and the transfer of 200 company-operated
stores to licensed stores over the past 12 months. Also contributing was the impact of the extra week in fiscal 2016 ($6
million). These increases were partially offset by unfavorable foreign currency translation ($12 million).
Operating Expenses
Cost of sales including occupancy costs as a percentage of total net revenues increased 230 basis points, primarily due to the
shift in composition of our store portfolio in the region to more licensed stores (approximately 140 basis points), sales
deleverage at certain company-owned stores (approximately 80 basis points) and foreign currency transactions (approximately
50 basis points).
Store operating expenses as a percentage of total net revenues decreased 220 basis points. As a percentage of companyoperated store revenues, store operating expenses increased 170 basis points, primarily due to costs associated with the sale of
our Germany retail operations and a decrease in company-operated store sales as a result of the shift to more licensed stores in
the region (approximately 70 basis points). Sales deleverage at certain company-owned stores, largely related to salaries and
benefits, also contributed unfavorably (approximately 70 basis points).
Other operating expenses as a percentage of total net revenues increased 80 basis points. Excluding the impact of companyoperated store revenues, other operating expenses decreased 250 basis points, primarily due to sales leverage driven by the shift
to more licensed stores in the region (approximately 250 basis points).
Depreciation and amortization expenses as a percentage of total net revenues decreased 70 basis points, primarily due to the
shift in the composition of our store portfolio in the region to more licensed stores (approximately 40 basis points).
Income from equity investees as a percentage of total net revenues decreased 20 basis points as a result of the sale of our
ownership interest in our Spanish joint venture, Starbucks Coffee España, S.L., in the first quarter of fiscal 2016
(approximately 20 basis points).
The combination of these changes resulted in an overall decrease in operating margin of 30 basis points over fiscal 2015.
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Channel Development
Oct 2,
2016

Fiscal Year Ended

Sep 27,
2015

Oct 2,
2016

Sep 27,
2015

As a % of Channel Development
Total Net Revenues

Net revenues:
CPG
Foodservice
Total net revenues
Cost of sales
Other operating expenses
Depreciation and amortization expenses
General and administrative expenses
Total operating expenses
Income from equity investees
Operating income

$

$

1,488.2
444.3
1,932.5
1,042.6
228.5
2.8
17.9
1,291.8
166.6
807.3

$

$

1,329.0
401.9
1,730.9

77.0 %
23.0
100.0

76.8 %
23.2
100.0

974.8
210.5
2.7
16.2
1,204.2
127.2
653.9

54.0
11.8
0.1
0.9
66.8
8.6
41.8%

56.3
12.2
0.2
0.9
69.6
7.3
37.8%

Revenues
Channel Development total net revenues for fiscal 2016 increased $202 million, or 12%, over the prior year, primarily driven
by higher sales of premium single-serve products ($101 million). The impact of the extra week in fiscal 2016 ($40 million),
increased foodservice sales ($33 million) and U.S. packaged coffee sales ($28 million) also contributed.
Operating Expenses
Cost of sales as a percentage of total net revenues decreased 230 basis points, primarily due to lower coffee costs
(approximately 140 basis points) and leverage on cost of sales (approximately 100 basis points).
Other operating expenses as a percentage of total net revenues decreased 40 basis points, primarily driven by sales leverage on
marketing expenses and salaries and benefits (approximately 30 basis points).
Income from equity investees as a percentage of total revenues increased 130 basis points, driven by higher income from our
North American Coffee Partnership joint venture, primarily due to increased sales volume of Starbucks Doubleshot® and
bottled Frappuccino® beverages and new product launches, partially offset by increased marketing costs (approximately 150
basis points).
The combination of these changes contributed to an overall increase in operating margin of 400 basis points over fiscal 2015.
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All Other Segments
Oct 2,
2016

Fiscal Year Ended

Net revenues:
Company-operated stores
Licensed stores
CPG, foodservice and other
Total net revenues
Cost of sales including occupancy costs
Store operating expenses
Other operating expenses
Depreciation and amortization expenses
General and administrative expenses
Total operating expenses
Operating loss

$

Sep 27,
2015

224.3
3.9
296.1
524.3

$

316.5
115.0
91.4
13.3
26.5
562.7
(38.4) $

$

% Change

233.2
5.9
286.7
525.8

(3.8)%
(33.9)
3.3
(0.3)

316.5
104.7
76.5
16.3
36.6
550.6
(24.8)

—
9.8
19.5
(18.4)
(27.6)
2.2
54.8 %

All Other Segments primarily includes Teavana, Seattle’s Best Coffee and Evolution Fresh, as well as certain developing
businesses such as the Starbucks Reserve® Roastery & Tasting Rooms.
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS — FISCAL 2015 COMPARED TO FISCAL 2014
Consolidated results of operations (in millions):
Revenues
Sep 27,
2015

Fiscal Year Ended

Net revenues:
Company-operated stores
Licensed stores
CPG, foodservice and other
Total net revenues

$

$

15,197.3
1,861.9
2,103.5
19,162.7

Sep 28,
2014

$

$

%
Change

12,977.9
1,588.6
1,881.3
16,447.8

17.1 %
17.2
11.8
16.5%

Total net revenues increased $2.7 billion, or 17%, over fiscal 2014, primarily due to increased revenues from companyoperated stores (contributing $2.2 billion). The growth in company-operated store revenues was primarily driven by
incremental revenues from the acquisition of Starbucks Japan ($1.1 billion), an increase in comparable store sales (7% growth,
or $852 million) and incremental revenues from 550 net new Starbucks® company-operated store openings over the past 12
months ($590 million). Partially offsetting these increases was the impact of unfavorable foreign currency translation ($252
million).
Licensed store revenue growth also contributed $273 million to the increase in total net revenues, primarily resulting from the
opening of 1,075 net new Starbucks® licensed stores over the past 12 months and improved comparable store sales as well as
increased La Boulange food sales to our licensees in the Americas segment. Partially offsetting these increases was a decrease
in licensed store revenues resulting from the impact of our ownership change in Starbucks Japan ($45 million).
CPG, foodservice and other revenues increased $222 million, primarily due to increased sales of premium single-serve
products ($116 million), U.S. packaged coffee ($55 million) and foodservice sales ($40 million).
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Operating Expenses
Sep 27,
2015

Fiscal Year Ended

Sep 28,
2014

Sep 27,
2015

Sep 28,
2014

As a % of Total
Net Revenues

Cost of sales including occupancy costs
Store operating expenses
Other operating expenses
Depreciation and amortization expenses
General and administrative expenses
Litigation credit
Total operating expenses
Income from equity investees
Operating income
Store operating expenses as a % of related revenues

$

$

7,787.5
5,411.1
522.4
893.9
1,196.7
—
15,811.6
249.9
3,601.0

$

$

6,858.8
4,638.2
457.3
709.6
991.3
(20.2)
13,635.0
268.3
3,081.1

40.6 %
28.2
2.7
4.7
6.2
—
82.5
1.3
18.8%

41.7 %
28.2
2.8
4.3
6.0
(0.1)
82.9
1.6
18.7%

35.6 %

35.7 %

Cost of sales including occupancy costs as a percentage of total net revenues decreased 110 basis points, primarily driven by
sales and operating leverage on cost of sales (approximately 60 basis points), driven by strong sales and initiatives in our
supply chain, such as improvements in sourcing, as well as sales leverage on occupancy costs (approximately 40 basis points).
Store operating expenses were flat as a percentage of total net revenues. Store operating expenses as a percentage of companyoperated store revenues, decreased 10 basis points, primarily driven by sales leverage (approximately 50 basis points) and
decreased expenses, largely salaries and benefits, due to the shift to more licensed stores in EMEA (approximately 40 basis
points), partially offset by increased investments in store partners (employees) and digital platforms related to in-store
initiatives (approximately 100 basis points) in the Americas segment.
Other operating expenses as a percentage of total net revenues decreased 10 basis points. Excluding the impact of companyoperated store revenues, other operating expenses were flat, primarily due to sales leverage (approximately 70 basis points),
partially offset by increased marketing expenses (approximately 20 basis points), largely due to timing, the impairment of
certain assets in the Americas segment (approximately 20 basis points) and the impact of our ownership change in Starbucks
Japan (approximately 20 basis points).
Depreciation and amortization expenses as a percentage of total net revenues increased 40 basis points, primarily due to the
impact of our ownership change in Starbucks Japan (approximately 30 basis points).
General and administrative expenses as a percentage of total net revenues increased 20 basis points, primarily driven by the
impact of our ownership change in Starbucks Japan (approximately 10 basis points).
The $20 million decrease in litigation credit for fiscal 2015 was due to lapping a prior year credit related to a reduction of our
estimated prejudgment interest payable associated with the Kraft arbitration, as a result of paying our obligation earlier than
anticipated.
Income from equity investees decreased $18 million, primarily due to the impact of our ownership change in Starbucks Japan
and the absence of income from our Malaysia joint venture sold in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014, partially offset by
improved performance from our North American Coffee Partnership and China joint ventures. As a percentage of total
revenues, income from equity investees decreased 30 basis points, primarily due to the impact of our ownership change in
Starbucks Japan (approximately 30 basis points).
The overall increase in operating margin of 10 basis points was driven by the changes discussed above, including the impact of
our ownership change in Starbucks Japan and the acquisition-related transaction and integration costs, which contributed
unfavorably to operating margin (approximately 90 basis points).
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Other Income and Expenses
Sep 27,
2015

Fiscal Year Ended

Sep 28,
2014

Sep 27,
2015

Sep 28,
2014

As a % of Total
Net Revenues

Operating income
Gain resulting from acquisition of joint venture
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Interest income and other, net
Interest expense
Earnings before income taxes
Income tax expense
Net earnings including noncontrolling interests
Net earnings/(loss) attributable to noncontrolling
interests
Net earnings attributable to Starbucks
Effective tax rate including noncontrolling interests

$

3,601.0 $
390.6
(61.1)
43.0
(70.5)
3,903.0
1,143.7
2,759.3

$

1.9
2,757.4

$

3,081.1
—
—
142.7
(64.1)
3,159.7
1,092.0
2,067.7

18.8 %
2.0
(0.3)
0.2
(0.4)
20.4
6.0
14.4

18.7 %
—
—
0.9
(0.4)
19.2
6.6
12.6

(0.4)
2,068.1

—
14.4%

—
12.6%

29.3 %

34.6 %

During the first quarter of fiscal 2015, we recorded a gain of $391 million as a result of remeasuring our preexisting 39.5%
ownership interest in Starbucks Japan to fair value upon acquisition.
During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2015, we recorded a loss of $61 million related to the redemption of our $550 million of
6.250% Senior Notes (the "2017 notes"), which were originally scheduled to mature in August 2017. The loss primarily relates
to the optional redemption premium outlined in the 2017 notes indenture, as well as the derecognition of the capitalized
issuance costs and unamortized discount.
Interest income and other, net decreased $100 million, primarily due to lapping the gain on the sale of our equity interest in our
Malaysia joint venture ($68 million) in the prior year and net unfavorable fair value adjustments from derivative instruments
used to manage our risk of commodity price fluctuations ($25 million) in fiscal 2015.
Interest expense increased $6 million primarily due to incurring a full quarter of interest in the first quarter of fiscal 2015 on the
long-term debt we issued in December of fiscal 2014 as well as the reclassification of $2 million from accumulated other
comprehensive income to interest expense related to remaining unrecognized losses from interest rate contracts associated with
the 2017 notes redeemed in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2015.
Our tax rate is affected by recurring items, such as tax rates in foreign jurisdictions and the relative amounts of income we earn
in those jurisdictions, as well as discrete items that may occur in any given year, but are not consistent from year to year. The
effective tax rate for fiscal 2015 was 29.3% compared to 34.6% for fiscal 2014. The decrease in the rate for fiscal 2015 was
primarily due to the 3.7% impact of the gain associated with the remeasurement of our preexisting 39.5% ownership interest in
Starbucks Japan upon acquisition, which was almost entirely non-taxable, as well as the 1.5% incremental tax benefit related to
domestic manufacturing deductions claimed in fiscal 2015 on U.S. corporate income tax returns for fiscal years 2011 through
2015.
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Segment Information
Results of operations by segment (in millions):
Americas
Sep 27,
2015

Fiscal Year Ended

Sep 28,
2014

Sep 27,
2015

Sep 28,
2014

As a % of Americas
Total Net Revenues

Net revenues:
Company-operated stores
Licensed stores
Foodservice and other
Total net revenues
Cost of sales including occupancy costs
Store operating expenses
Other operating expenses
Depreciation and amortization expenses
General and administrative expenses
Total operating expenses
Operating income
Store operating expenses as a % of related revenues

$

$

11,925.6
1,334.4
33.4
13,293.4
4,845.0
4,387.9
122.8
522.3
192.1
10,070.1
3,223.3

$

$

10,866.5
1,074.9
39.1
11,980.5

89.7 %
10.0
0.3
100.0

90.7 %
9.0
0.3
100.0

4,487.0
3,946.8
100.4
469.5
167.8
9,171.5
2,809.0

36.4
33.0
0.9
3.9
1.4
75.8
24.2%

37.5
32.9
0.8
3.9
1.4
76.6
23.4%

36.8 %

36.3 %

Revenues
Americas total net revenues for fiscal 2015 increased $1.3 billion, or 11%, primarily due to increased revenues from companyoperated stores (contributing $1.1 billion) and licensed stores (contributing $260 million).
The increase in company-operated store revenues was driven by a 7% increase in comparable store sales ($745 million), as well
as incremental revenues from 318 net new Starbucks® company-operated store openings over the past 12 months ($455
million). Partially offsetting these increases was unfavorable foreign currency translation ($139 million), primarily driven by
the strengthening of the U.S. dollar against the Canadian dollar.
The increase in licensed store revenues was primarily due to higher product sales to and royalty revenues from our licensees,
resulting from increased La Boulange™ food sales to our licensees beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 2015, as well as the
opening of 317 net new licensed stores over the past 12 months and improved comparable store sales.
Operating Expenses
Cost of sales including occupancy costs as a percentage of total net revenues decreased 110 basis points, primarily driven by
leverage on cost of sales (approximately 60 basis points), lower commodity costs (approximately 30 basis points), mainly dairy,
and sales leverage on occupancy costs (approximately 30 basis points).
Store operating expenses as a percentage of total net revenues increased 10 basis points. As a percentage of company-operated
store revenues, store operating expenses increased 50 basis points, primarily driven by increased investments in store partners
(employees) and digital platforms related to in-store initiatives (approximately 130 basis points), partially offset by sales
leverage (approximately 100 basis points).
Other operating expenses as a percentage of total net revenues increased 10 basis points. Excluding the impact of companyoperated store revenues, other operating expenses were flat, primarily driven by sales leverage (approximately 60 basis points),
offset by the impairment of certain assets in the region (approximately 60 basis points).
Depreciation and amortization expenses as a percentage of total revenues were flat, primarily driven by sales leverage
(approximately 10 basis points), offset by incremental costs from investments in our existing store portfolio (approximately 10
basis points).
The combination of these changes resulted in an overall increase in operating margin of 80 basis points over fiscal 2014.
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China/Asia Pacific
Sep 27,
2015

Fiscal Year Ended

Sep 28,
2014

Sep 27,
2015

Sep 28,
2014

As a % of China/Asia Pacific
Total Net Revenues

Net revenues:
Company-operated stores
Licensed stores
Foodservice and other
Total net revenues
Cost of sales including occupancy costs
Store operating expenses
Other operating expenses
Depreciation and amortization expenses
General and administrative expenses
Total operating expenses
Income from equity investees
Operating income
Store operating expenses as a % of related revenues

$

$

2,127.3
264.4
4.2
2,395.9
1,071.5
609.8
62.2
150.7
120.8
2,015.0
119.6
500.5

$

$

859.4
270.2
—
1,129.6

88.8 %
11.0
0.2
100.0

76.1 %
23.9
—
100.0

547.4
221.1
48.0
46.1
58.5
921.1
164.0
372.5

44.7
25.5
2.6
6.3
5.0
84.1
5.0
20.9%

48.5
19.6
4.2
4.1
5.2
81.5
14.5
33.0%

28.7 %

25.7 %

Discussion of our China/Asia Pacific segment results below reflects the impact of fully consolidating Starbucks Japan due to
the ownership change from an equity method joint venture to a company-operated market since the acquisition date of October
31, 2014. Under the joint venture model, we recognized royalties and product sales within revenue and related product cost of
sales as well as our proportionate share of Starbucks Japan's net earnings, which we recognized within income from equity
investees. This resulted in a lower gross margin and a very high operating margin. Under the company-operated ownership
model, Starbucks Japan's operating results are reflected in most income statement lines of this segment and have an operating
margin more in line with that of our other retail businesses.
Revenues
China/Asia Pacific total net revenues for fiscal 2015 increased $1.3 billion, or 112%, largely due to increased revenues from
company-operated stores ($1.3 billion). The increase in company-operated store revenues was primarily driven by incremental
revenues from the acquisition of Starbucks Japan ($1.1 billion). Also contributing were incremental revenues from the opening
of 247 net new company-operated stores over the past 12 months ($160 million) and a 9% increase in comparable store sales
($74 million).
Licensed store revenues decreased $6 million, primarily due to our ownership change in Starbucks Japan to mostly companyoperated stores ($45 million). This decrease was partially offset by increased product sales to and royalty revenues from
licensees ($27 million), resulting from the opening of 520 net new licensed store openings over the past 12 months, improved
comparable store sales, and incremental revenues from the ownership changes in Australia and Malaysia ($17 million) in the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2014.
Operating Expenses
Cost of sales including occupancy costs as a percentage of total net revenues decreased 380 basis points, primarily due to the
impact of our ownership change in Starbucks Japan (approximately 230 basis points) and the shift in our cost of sales mix
resulting from growth of company-operated stores, which have a higher gross margin (approximately 50 basis points). Sales
leverage (approximately 40 basis points) also contributed.
Store operating expenses as a percentage of total net revenues increased 590 basis points. As a percentage of company-operated
store revenues, store operating expenses increased 300 basis points, primarily driven by the impact of our ownership change in
Starbucks Japan (approximately 410 basis points), partially offset by the sale of our Australia retail operations in the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2014 (approximately 70 basis points) and sales leverage (approximately 50 basis points).
Other operating expenses as a percentage of total net revenues decreased 160 basis points. Excluding the impact of companyoperated store revenues, other operating expenses increased 540 basis points, primarily due to the impact of our ownership
change in Starbucks Japan (approximately 350 basis points) as well as increased salaries and benefits largely due to increased
headcount to support growth in our China market (approximately 150 basis points).
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Depreciation and amortization expenses as a percentage of total revenues increased 220 basis points, primarily due to the
impact of our ownership change in Starbucks Japan (approximately 210 basis points).
General and administrative expenses as a percentage of total revenues decreased 20 basis points, primarily due to sales leverage
(approximately 40 basis points) and the impact of the sale of our Australia retail operations in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014
(approximately 20 basis points), which includes lapping professional fees associated with the sale. The impact of our ownership
change in Starbucks Japan contributed unfavorably (approximately 60 basis points).
Income from equity investees decreased $44 million, primarily due to the impact of our ownership change in Starbucks Japan
and absence of income from our Malaysia joint venture sold in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014, partially offset by improved
performance from our China joint venture. As a percentage of total net revenues, income from equity investees declined 950
basis points, primarily due to the impact of our ownership change in Starbucks Japan (approximately 870 basis points).
The overall decrease in operating margin of 1,210 basis points over fiscal 2014 was primarily driven by the impact of our
ownership change in Starbucks Japan (approximately 1,410 basis points), partially offset by 200 basis points of margin
expansion driven by the other items discussed above.
EMEA
Sep 27,
2015

Fiscal Year Ended

Sep 28,
2014

Sep 27,
2015

Sep 28,
2014

As a % of EMEA
Total Net Revenues

Net revenues:
Company-operated stores
Licensed stores
Foodservice
Total net revenues
Cost of sales including occupancy costs
Store operating expenses
Other operating expenses
Depreciation and amortization expenses
General and administrative expenses
Total operating expenses
Income from equity investees
Operating income
Store operating expenses as a % of related revenues

$

$

911.2
257.2
48.3
1,216.7
582.5
308.7
51.8
52.0
56.6
1,051.6
3.1
168.2

$

$

1,013.8
238.4
42.6
1,294.8

74.9 %
21.1
4.0
100.0

78.3 %
18.4
3.3
100.0

646.8
365.8
48.2
59.4
59.1
1,179.3
3.7
119.2

47.9
25.4
4.3
4.3
4.7
86.4
0.3
13.8%

50.0
28.3
3.7
4.6
4.6
91.1
0.3
9.2%

33.9 %

36.1 %

Revenues
EMEA total net revenues for fiscal 2015 decreased $78 million, or 6%. The decrease was primarily due to a decline in
company-operated store revenues ($103 million), which was largely due to unfavorable foreign currency translation ($94
million). Also contributing to the decrease in company-operated revenues was the shift to more licensed stores in the region,
which includes net store closures as well as the absence of revenues from the conversion of certain stores in the U.K. from
company-operated to licensed. This decline was partially offset by 4% growth in comparable store sales.
Licensed store revenues increased $19 million, or 8%, primarily due to higher product sales to and royalty revenues from our
licensees ($45 million), resulting from the opening of 238 net new licensed stores over the past 12 months and improved
comparable store sales, partially offset by unfavorable foreign currency translation ($22 million).
Operating Expenses
Cost of sales including occupancy costs as a percentage of total net revenues decreased 210 basis points, primarily due to
favorable foreign currency exchange (approximately 130 basis points). We buy and sell products, primarily roasted coffee, in
multiple currencies throughout the region depending on the functional currency of each market. Differences in those rates
generated favorable foreign currency exchange for fiscal 2015 resulting in a benefit in cost of sales. Sales leverage
(approximately 40 basis points) also contributed to the decrease.
Store operating expenses as a percentage of total net revenues decreased 290 basis points. As a percentage of companyoperated store revenues, store operating expenses decreased 220 basis points primarily due to gains on the sales of certain store
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assets in the region (approximately 150 basis points) as well as decreased expenses, largely salaries and benefits, driven by the
shift to more licensed stores (approximately 40 basis points).
Other operating expenses as a percentage of total net revenues increased 60 basis points. Excluding the impact of companyoperated store revenues, other operating expenses decreased 20 basis points, primarily driven by the gains on the sales of
certain assets in the region (approximately 40 basis points) and improved collection results (approximately 20 basis points).
These decreases were partially offset by increased costs to grow our non-retail operations in the region (approximately 50 basis
points), largely driven by higher marketing costs.
The combination of these changes resulted in an overall increase in operating margin of 460 basis points over fiscal 2014.
Channel Development
Sep 27,
2015

Fiscal Year Ended

Sep 28,
2014

Sep 27,
2015

Sep 28,
2014

As a % of Channel Development
Total Net Revenues

Net revenues:
CPG
Foodservice
Total net revenues
Cost of sales
Other operating expenses
Depreciation and amortization expenses
General and administrative expenses
Total operating expenses
Income from equity investees
Operating income

$

$

1,329.0
401.9
1,730.9
974.8
210.5
2.7
16.2
1,204.2
127.2
653.9

$

$

1,178.8
367.2
1,546.0

76.8 %
23.2
100.0

76.2 %
23.8
100.0

882.4
187.0
1.8
18.2
1,089.4
100.6
557.2

56.3
12.2
0.2
0.9
69.6
7.3
37.8%

57.1
12.1
0.1
1.2
70.5
6.5
36.0%

Revenues
Channel Development total net revenues for fiscal 2015 increased $185 million, or 12%, over the prior year, primarily driven
by higher sales of premium single-serve products ($97 million) and U.S. packaged coffee ($42 million), as well as an increase
in foodservice sales ($35 million).
Operating Expenses
Cost of sales as a percentage of total net revenues decreased 80 basis points, primarily due to leverage on cost of sales
(approximately 100 basis points).
Other operating expenses as a percentage of total net revenues increased 10 basis points, primarily driven by increased
marketing expenses (approximately 60 basis points), largely due to new premium single-serve product launches. This increase
was partially offset by lower professional fees (approximately 30 basis points) and sales leverage (approximately 20 basis
points).
Income from equity investees increased $27 million, driven by higher income from our North American Coffee Partnership
joint venture, primarily due to increased sales of bottled Frappuccino® and Starbucks Doubleshot® beverages, largely driven by
new product launches and higher sales volumes.
The combination of these changes contributed to an overall increase in operating margin of 180 basis points over fiscal 2014.
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All Other Segments
Sep 27,
2015

Fiscal Year Ended

Net revenues:
Company-operated stores
Licensed stores
CPG, foodservice and other
Total net revenues
Cost of sales including occupancy costs
Store operating expenses
Other operating expenses
Depreciation and amortization expenses
General and administrative expenses
Total operating expenses
Operating loss

$

$

Sep 28,
2014

233.2
5.9
286.7
525.8

$

316.5
104.7
76.5
16.3
36.6
550.6
(24.8) $

%
Change

(2.1 )%
15.7 %
13.1
5.8

238.2
5.1
253.6
496.9
287.2
104.5
74.6
15.2
42.2
523.7
(26.8)

10.2
0.2
2.5
7.2
(13.3)
5.1
(7.5)%

All Other Segments primarily includes Teavana, Seattle’s Best Coffee, Evolution Fresh, as well as certain developing
businesses such as the Starbucks Reserve® Roastery & Tasting Rooms.
FINANCIAL CONDITION, LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Cash and Investment Overview
Our cash and investments were $3.4 billion and $1.9 billion as of October 2, 2016 and September 27, 2015, respectively. We
actively manage our cash and investments in order to internally fund operating needs, make scheduled interest and principal
payments on our borrowings, make acquisitions, and return cash to shareholders through common stock cash dividend
payments and share repurchases. Our investment portfolio primarily includes highly liquid available-for-sale securities,
including corporate debt securities, government treasury securities (foreign and domestic), mortgage and asset-backed
securities, state and local government obligations and agency obligations. As of October 2, 2016, approximately $1.6 billion of
cash and investments were held in foreign subsidiaries.
Borrowing capacity
In the first quarter of fiscal 2016, we replaced our 2013 credit facility with our new $1.5 billion unsecured, revolving 2016
credit facility (the "credit facility") with various banks, of which $150 million may be used for issuances of letters of credit.
The credit facility is available for working capital, capital expenditures and other corporate purposes, including acquisitions
and share repurchases, and is currently set to mature on November 6, 2020. Starbucks has the option, subject to negotiation and
agreement with the related banks, to increase the maximum commitment amount by an additional $750 million. Borrowings
under the credit facility will bear interest at a variable rate based on LIBOR, and, for U.S. dollar-denominated loans under
certain circumstances, a Base Rate (as defined in the credit facility), in each case plus an applicable margin. The applicable
margin is based on the better of (i) the Company's long-term credit ratings assigned by Moody's and Standard & Poor's rating
agencies and (ii) the Company's fixed charge coverage ratio, pursuant to a pricing grid set forth in the credit agreement. The
current applicable margin is 0.565% for Eurocurrency Rate Loans and 0.00% (nil) for Base Rate Loans. The credit facility
contains provisions requiring us to maintain compliance with certain covenants, including a minimum fixed charge coverage
ratio, which measures our ability to cover financing expenses. As of October 2, 2016, we were in compliance with all
applicable covenants. No amounts were outstanding under our credit facility as of October 2, 2016.
Under our commercial paper program, we may issue unsecured commercial paper notes up to a maximum aggregate amount
outstanding at any time of $1 billion, with individual maturities that may vary but not exceed 397 days from the date of issue.
Amounts outstanding under the commercial paper program are required to be backstopped by available commitments under our
credit facility discussed above. The proceeds from borrowings under our commercial paper program may be used for working
capital needs, capital expenditures and other corporate purposes, including, but not limited to, business expansion, payment of
cash dividends on our common stock and share repurchases. As of October 2, 2016, we had no borrowings under our
commercial paper program.
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In May 2016, we issued long-term debt in an underwritten registered public offering, which consisted of $500 million of
10-year 2.450% Senior Notes (the "2026 notes") due June 2026. We will use the net proceeds from the offering to enhance our
sustainability programs around coffee supply chain management through Eligible Sustainability Projects. Interest on the 2026
notes is payable semi-annually on June 15 and December 15 of each year, commencing on December 15, 2016.
In February 2016, we issued long-term debt in an underwritten registered public offering, which consisted of $500 million of
5-year 2.100% Senior Notes (the "2021 notes") due February 2021. In May 2016, we reopened this offering with the same terms
and issued an additional $250 million of Senior Notes (collectively, the "2021 notes") for an aggregate amount outstanding of
$750 million. Interest on the 2021 notes is payable semi-annually on February 4 and August 4 of each year, commencing
on August 4, 2016.
See Note 9, Debt, to the consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of Part II of this 10-K for details of the
components of our long-term debt.
The indentures under which all of our Senior Notes were issued require us to maintain compliance with certain covenants,
including limits on future liens and sale and leaseback transactions on certain material properties. As of October 2, 2016, we
were in compliance with all applicable covenants.
Use of Cash
We expect to use our available cash and investments, including, but not limited to, additional potential future borrowings under
the credit facility and commercial paper program, to invest in our core businesses, including capital expenditures, new product
innovations, related marketing support and partner and digital investments, return cash to shareholders through common stock
cash dividend payments and share repurchases, as well as other new business opportunities related to our core businesses.
Further, we may use our available cash resources to make proportionate capital contributions to our investees. We may also
seek strategic acquisitions to leverage existing capabilities and further build our business in support of our growth agenda.
Acquisitions may include increasing our ownership interests in our investees. Any decisions to increase such ownership
interests will be driven by valuation and fit with our ownership strategy.
We believe that future cash flows generated from operations and existing cash and investments both domestically and
internationally will be sufficient to finance capital requirements for our core businesses in those respective markets as well as
shareholder distributions for the foreseeable future. Significant new joint ventures, acquisitions and/or other new business
opportunities may require additional outside funding. We have borrowed funds domestically and continue to believe we have
the ability to do so at reasonable interest rates; however, additional borrowings would result in increased interest expense in the
future.
We consider the majority of undistributed earnings of our foreign subsidiaries and equity investees as of October 2, 2016 to be
indefinitely reinvested, and, accordingly, no U.S. income and foreign withholding taxes have been provided on such earnings.
We have not, nor do we anticipate the need to, repatriate funds to the U.S. to satisfy domestic liquidity needs; however, in the
event that we need to repatriate all or a portion of our foreign cash to the U.S., we would be subject to additional U.S. income
taxes, which could be material. We do not believe it is practicable to calculate the potential tax impact of repatriation, as there is
a significant amount of uncertainty around the calculation, including the availability and amount of foreign tax credits at the
time of repatriation, tax rates in effect and other indirect tax consequences associated with repatriation.
During each of the first three quarters of fiscal 2015, we declared and paid a cash dividend to shareholders of $0.16 per share.
In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2015 and each of the first three quarters of fiscal 2016 we declared a cash dividend of $0.20 per
share. Cash returned to shareholders through dividends in fiscal 2016 and 2015 totaled $1,178.0 million and $958.7 million,
respectively. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2016, we declared a cash dividend of $0.25 per share to be paid on December 2,
2016 with an expected payout of approximately $365.1 million.
During fiscal years 2016 and 2015, we repurchased 34.9 million and 29.0 million shares of common stock, respectively, or $2.0
billion and $1.4 billion, respectively, under our ongoing share repurchase program. On April 21, 2016, we announced that our
Board of Directors approved an increase of 100 million shares to the program. Including this additional authorization of 100
million shares, the number of remaining shares authorized for repurchase at October 2, 2016 totaled 117.8 million.
Other than normal operating expenses, cash requirements for fiscal 2017 are expected to consist primarily of capital
expenditures for new company-operated stores; remodeling and refurbishment of, and equipment upgrades for, existing
company-operated stores; systems and technology investments in our stores and in the support infrastructure; and additional
investments in manufacturing capacity. Total capital expenditures for fiscal 2017 are expected to be approximately $1.6 billion.
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Cash Flows
Cash provided by operating activities was $4.6 billion for fiscal 2016, compared to $3.7 billion for fiscal 2015. The change was
primarily due to increased earnings, the lapping of the non-cash acquisition related gain for Starbucks Japan and the timing of
our cash payments for income taxes.
Cash used by investing activities totaled $2.2 billion for fiscal 2016, compared to $1.5 billion for fiscal 2015. The change was
primarily due to the increase in purchases of investments, primarily government treasury securities and corporate debt
securities, partially offset by the lapping of cash used to acquire Sazaby's 39.5% ownership interest in Starbucks Japan.
Cash used by financing activities for fiscal 2016 totaled $1.8 billion, compared to $2.3 billion for fiscal 2015. The change was
primarily due to the lapping of long-term debt redemption in fiscal 2015, higher incremental proceeds from long-term debt
issued in February and May 2016 over prior year's issuance and lapping of cash used to fund the second tender offer step of the
Starbucks Japan acquisition. These reductions in cash used were partially offset by increased cash returned to shareholders
through higher share repurchases and dividend payments compared to fiscal 2015.
Contractual Obligations
The following table summarizes our contractual obligations and borrowings as of October 2, 2016, and the timing and effect
that such commitments are expected to have on our liquidity and capital requirements in future periods (in millions):
Payments Due by Period
Contractual Obligations (1)

Operating lease obligations(2)
Financing lease obligations
Debt obligations
Principal payments
Interest payments
Purchase obligations(3)
Other obligations(4)
Total

Less than 1
Year

Total

$

$

7,285.0
62.0
3,600.0
932.2
1,223.1
182.7
13,285.0

$

$

1,125.1
4.3
400.0
94.2
786.4
18.2
2,428.2

1-3
Years

$

$

1,902.6
8.6
350.0
181.3
371.5
35.7
2,849.7

3-5
Years

$

$

1,561.8
8.4
750.0
163.0
57.5
16.5
2,557.2

More than
5 Years

$

$

2,695.5
40.7
2,100.0
493.7
7.7
112.3
5,449.9

(1)

Income tax liabilities for uncertain tax positions were excluded as we are not able to make a reasonably reliable estimate
of the amount and period of related future payments. As of October 2, 2016, we had $154.2 million of gross
unrecognized tax benefits for uncertain tax positions, which includes accrued interest and penalties.

(2)

Amounts include direct lease obligations, excluding any taxes, insurance and other related expenses.

(3)

Purchase obligations include agreements to purchase goods or services that are enforceable and legally binding on
Starbucks and that specify all significant terms. Green coffee purchase commitments comprise 90% of total purchase
obligations.

(4)

Other obligations include other long-term liabilities primarily consisting of asset retirement obligations and hedging
instruments.

Starbucks currently expects to fund these commitments primarily with operating cash flows generated in the normal course of
business.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
Off-balance sheet arrangements relate to operating lease and purchase commitments detailed in the footnotes to the
consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of Part II of this 10-K.
COMMODITY PRICES, AVAILABILITY AND GENERAL RISK CONDITIONS
Commodity price risk represents Starbucks primary market risk, generated by our purchases of green coffee and dairy products,
among other items. We purchase, roast and sell high-quality arabica coffee and related products and risk arises from the price
volatility of green coffee. In addition to coffee, we also purchase significant amounts of dairy products to support the needs of
our company-operated stores. The price and availability of these commodities directly impacts our results of operations, and we
expect commodity prices, particularly coffee, to impact future results of operations. For additional details see Product Supply in
Item 1, as well as Risk Factors in Item 1A of this 10-K.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Market risk is defined as the risk of losses due to changes in commodity prices, foreign currency exchange rates, equity
security prices and interest rates. We manage our exposure to various market-based risks according to a market price risk
management policy. Under this policy, market-based risks are quantified and evaluated for potential mitigation strategies, such
as entering into hedging transactions. The market price risk management policy governs how hedging instruments may be used
to mitigate risk. Risk limits are set annually and prohibit speculative trading activity. We also monitor and limit the amount of
associated counterparty credit risk, which we consider to be low. In general, hedging instruments do not have maturities in
excess of three years. Refer to Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, and Note 3, Derivative Financial
Instruments, to the consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of Part II of this 10-K for further discussion of our
hedging instruments.
The sensitivity analyses disclosed below provide only a limited, point-in-time view of the market risk of the financial
instruments discussed. The actual impact of the respective underlying rates and price changes on the financial instruments may
differ significantly from those shown in the sensitivity analyses.
Commodity Price Risk
We purchase commodity inputs, primarily coffee, dairy products, diesel and other commodities, that are used in our operations
and are subject to price fluctuations that impact our financial results. We use a combination of pricing features embedded
within supply contracts, such as fixed-price and price-to-be-fixed contracts for coffee purchases, and financial derivatives to
manage our commodity price risk exposure.
The following table summarizes the potential impact as of October 2, 2016 to Starbucks future net earnings and other
comprehensive income ("OCI") from changes in commodity prices. The information provided below relates only to the
hedging instruments and does not represent the corresponding changes in the underlying hedged items (in millions):
Increase/(Decrease) to Net Earnings
10% Increase in
Underlying Rate

Commodity hedges

$

Increase/(Decrease) to OCI

10% Decrease in
Underlying Rate

12

10% Increase in
Underlying Rate

(12) $

$

10% Decrease in
Underlying Rate

1

(1)

$

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk
The majority of our revenue, expense and capital purchasing activities are transacted in U.S. dollars. However, because a
portion of our operations consists of activities outside of the U.S., we have transactions in other currencies, primarily the
Canadian dollar, Japanese yen, Chinese renminbi, British pound, South Korean won and euro. To reduce cash flow volatility
from foreign currency fluctuations, we enter into derivative instruments to hedge portions of cash flows of anticipated
intercompany royalty payments, inventory purchases, intercompany borrowing and lending activities and certain other
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of the entity that enters into the arrangements, as well as the
translation risk of certain balance sheet items. See Note 3, Derivative Financial Instruments, to the consolidated financial
statements included in Item 8 of Part II of this 10-K for further discussion.
The following table summarizes the potential impact as of October 2, 2016 to Starbucks future net earnings and other
comprehensive income from changes in the fair value of these derivative financial instruments due to a change in the value of
the U.S. dollar as compared to foreign exchange rates. The information provided below relates only to the hedging instruments
and does not represent the corresponding changes in the underlying hedged items (in millions):
Increase/(Decrease) to Net Earnings
10% Increase in
Underlying Rate

Foreign currency hedges

$

Increase/(Decrease) to OCI

10% Decrease in
Underlying Rate

9

$

(9) $

10% Increase in
Underlying Rate

126

10% Decrease in
Underlying Rate

$

(126)

Equity Security Price Risk
We have minimal exposure to price fluctuations on equity mutual funds and equity exchange-traded funds within our trading
securities portfolio. Trading securities are recorded at fair value with unrealized holding gains and losses recorded in interest
income and other, net in the consolidated statements of earnings. Our trading securities portfolio approximates a portion of our
liability under our Management Deferred Compensation Plan ("MDCP"), which is included in accrued compensation and
related costs, within accrued liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets. Changes in our MDCP liability are recorded in
general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of earnings.
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We performed a sensitivity analysis based on a 10% change in the underlying equity prices of our investments as of October 2,
2016 and determined that such a change would not have a significant impact on the fair value of these instruments.
Interest Rate Risk
Long-term Debt
We utilize short-term and long-term financing and may use interest rate hedges to manage our overall interest expense related
to our existing fixed-rate debt, as well as to hedge the variability in cash flows due to changes in benchmark interest rates
related to anticipated debt issuances. See Note 3, Derivative Financial Instruments and Note 9, Debt, to the consolidated
financial statements included in Item 8 of Part II of this 10-K for further discussion of our interest rate hedge agreements and
details of the components of our long-term debt, respectively, as of October 2, 2016.
The following table summarizes the impact of a change in interest rates as of October 2, 2016 on the fair value of Starbucks
debt (in millions):
Change in Fair Value
Stated Interest
Rate

2016 notes

100 Basis Point Increase in
Underlying Rate

Fair Value

2018 notes

0.875% $
2.000% $

400
357

$
$

2021 notes
2022 notes
2023 notes
2026 notes
2045 notes

2.100%
2.700%
3.850%
2.450%
4.300%

766
526
839
509
417

$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$

—
(7)
(31)
(27)
(51)
(43)
(70)

100 Basis Point Decrease in
Underlying Rate

$
$

—
7

$
$
$
$
$

31
27
51
43
70

Available-for-Sale Securities
Our available-for-sale securities comprise a diversified portfolio consisting mainly of investment-grade debt securities. The
primary objective of these investments is to preserve capital and liquidity. Available-for-sale securities are recorded on the
consolidated balance sheets at fair value with unrealized gains and losses reported as a component of accumulated other
comprehensive income. We do not hedge the interest rate exposure on our available-for-sale securities. We performed a
sensitivity analysis based on a 100 basis point change in the underlying interest rate of our available-for-sale securities as of
October 2, 2016 and determined that such a change would not have a significant impact on the fair value of these instruments.
APPLICATION OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Critical accounting policies are those that management believes are both most important to the portrayal of our financial
condition and results and require the most difficult, subjective or complex judgments, often as a result of the need to make
estimates about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain. Judgments and uncertainties affecting the application of those
policies may result in materially different amounts being reported under different conditions or using different assumptions.
Our significant accounting policies are discussed in Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, to the consolidated
financial statements included in Item 8 of Part II of this 10-K. We believe that of our significant accounting policies, the
following policies involve a higher degree of judgment and/or complexity.
We consider financial reporting and disclosure practices and accounting policies quarterly to ensure that they provide accurate
and transparent information relative to the current economic and business environment. During the past three fiscal years, we
have not made any material changes to the accounting methodologies used to assess the areas discussed below, unless noted
otherwise.
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Property, Plant and Equipment and Other Finite-Lived Assets
We evaluate property, plant and equipment and other finite-lived assets for impairment when facts and circumstances indicate
that the carrying values of such assets may not be recoverable. When evaluating for impairment, we first compare the carrying
value of the asset to the asset’s estimated future undiscounted cash flows. If the estimated undiscounted future cash flows are
less than the carrying value of the asset, we determine if we have an impairment loss by comparing the carrying value of the
asset to the asset's estimated fair value and recognize an impairment charge when the asset’s carrying value exceeds its
estimated fair value. The adjusted carrying amount of the asset becomes its new cost basis and is depreciated over the asset's
remaining useful life.
Long-lived assets are grouped with other assets and liabilities at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely
independent of the cash flows of other assets and liabilities. For company-operated store assets, the impairment test is
performed at the individual store asset group level. The fair value of a store’s assets is estimated using a discounted cash flow
model. For other long-lived assets, fair value is determined using an approach that is appropriate based on the relevant facts and
circumstances, which may include discounted cash flows, comparable transactions, or comparable company analyses.
Our impairment calculations contain uncertainties because they require management to make assumptions and to apply
judgment to estimate future cash flows and asset fair values. Key assumptions used in estimating future cash flows and asset
fair values include projected revenue growth and operating expenses, as well as forecasting asset useful lives and selecting an
appropriate discount rate. For company-operated stores, estimates of revenue growth and operating expenses are based on
internal projections and consider the store’s historical performance, the local market economics and the business environment
impacting the store’s performance. The discount rate is selected based on what we believe a buyer would assume when
determining a purchase price for the store. These estimates are subjective and our ability to realize future cash flows and asset
fair values is affected by factors such as ongoing maintenance and improvement of the assets, changes in economic conditions,
and changes in operating performance.
During fiscal 2016, there were no significant changes in any of our estimates or assumptions that had a material impact on the
outcome of our impairment calculations. However, as we periodically reassess estimated future cash flows and asset fair values,
changes in our estimates and assumptions may cause us to realize material impairment charges in the future.
Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets
We evaluate goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment annually during our third fiscal quarter, or more
frequently if an event occurs or circumstances change that would indicate that impairment may exist. When evaluating these
assets for impairment, we may first perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more likely than not that a
reporting unit or intangible asset group is impaired. If we do not perform a qualitative assessment, or if we determine that it is
not more likely than not that the fair value of the reporting unit or intangible asset group exceeds its carrying amount, we
calculate the estimated fair value of the reporting unit using discounted cash flows.
When assessing goodwill for impairment, our decision to perform a qualitative impairment assessment for an individual
reporting unit in a given year is influenced by a number of factors, inclusive of the size of the reporting unit's goodwill, the
significance of the excess of the reporting unit's estimated fair value over carrying value at the last quantitative assessment date,
the amount of time in between quantitative fair value assessments and the date of acquisition. If we perform a quantitative
assessment of an individual reporting unit’s goodwill, our impairment calculations contain uncertainties because they require
management to make assumptions and to apply judgment when estimating future cash flows and asset fair values, including
projected revenue growth and operating expenses related to existing businesses, product innovation and new store concepts, as
well as selecting an appropriate discount rate. Estimates of revenue growth and operating expenses are based on internal
projections considering the reporting unit’s past performance and forecasted growth, strategic initiatives, local market
economics and the local business environment impacting the reporting unit’s performance. The discount rate is selected based
on the estimated cost of capital for a market participant to operate the reporting unit in the region. These estimates are highly
subjective, and our ability to realize the future cash flows used in our fair value calculations is affected by factors such as the
success of strategic initiatives, changes in economic conditions, changes in our operating performance and changes in our
business strategies, including retail initiatives and international expansion.
When assessing indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment, where we perform a qualitative assessment, we evaluate if
changes in events or circumstances have occurred that indicate that impairment may exist. If we do not perform a qualitative
impairment assessment or if changes in events and circumstances indicate that a quantitative assessment should be performed,
management is required to calculate the fair value of the intangible asset group. The fair value calculation includes estimates of
revenue growth, which are based on past performance and internal projections for the intangible asset group's forecasted
growth, and royalty rates, which are adjusted for our particular facts and circumstances. The discount rate is selected based on
the estimated cost of capital that reflects the risk profile of the related business. These estimates are highly subjective, and our
ability to achieve the forecasted cash flows used in our fair value calculations is affected by factors such as the success of
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strategic initiatives, changes in economic conditions, changes in our operating performance and changes in our business
strategies, including retail initiatives and international expansion.
For fiscal 2016, we determined the fair value of our material reporting units and intangible asset groups were significantly in
excess of their carrying values. Accordingly, we did not recognize any material impairment charges during the current fiscal
year. During fiscal 2016, there were no significant changes in any of our estimates or assumptions that had a material impact on
the outcome of our impairment calculations. However, as we periodically reassess estimated future cash flows and asset fair
values, changes in our estimates and assumptions may cause us to realize material impairment charges in the future.
Income Taxes
We recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and
the respective tax bases of our assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using current enacted tax
rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which we expect the temporary differences to reverse. We routinely
evaluate the likelihood of realizing the benefit of our deferred tax assets and may record a valuation allowance if, based on all
available evidence, we determine that some portion of the tax benefit will not be realized. Changes in tax laws and rates may
affect recorded deferred tax assets and liabilities and our effective tax rate in the future; however, we do not expect changes
from recently enacted tax laws to be material to the consolidated financial statements.
In evaluating our ability to recover our deferred tax assets within the jurisdiction from which they arise, we consider all
available positive and negative evidence, including scheduled reversals of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable
income, tax-planning strategies, and results of operations. In projecting future taxable income, we consider historical results
and incorporate assumptions about the amount of future state, federal and foreign pretax operating income adjusted for items
that do not have tax consequences. Our assumptions regarding future taxable income are consistent with the plans and estimates
we use to manage our underlying businesses. In evaluating the objective evidence that historical results provide, we consider
three years of cumulative operating income/(loss).
In addition, our income tax returns are periodically audited by domestic and foreign tax authorities. These audits include review
of our tax filing positions, including the timing and amount of deductions taken and the allocation of income between tax
jurisdictions. We evaluate our exposures associated with our various tax filing positions and recognize a tax benefit only if it is
more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained upon examination by the relevant taxing authorities, including
resolutions of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of our position. For uncertain tax
positions that do not meet this threshold, we record a related liability. We adjust our unrecognized tax benefit liability and
income tax expense in the period in which the uncertain tax position is effectively settled, the statute of limitations expires for
the relevant taxing authority to examine the tax position or when new information becomes available. As discussed in Note 13,
Income Taxes, to the consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of Part II of this 10-K, there is a reasonable
possibility that our unrecognized tax benefit liability will be adjusted within 12 months due to the expiration of a statute of
limitations and expected consent from taxing authorities.
We have generated income in certain foreign jurisdictions that has not been subject to U.S. income taxes. We intend to reinvest
these earnings for the foreseeable future. While we do not expect to repatriate cash to the U.S. to satisfy domestic liquidity
needs, if these amounts were distributed to the U.S., in the form of dividends or otherwise, we would be subject to additional
U.S. income taxes, which could be material. Determination of the amount of unrecognized deferred income tax liabilities on
these earnings is not practicable because such liability, if any, is dependent on circumstances existing if and when remittance
occurs.
Our income tax expense, deferred tax assets and liabilities and liabilities for unrecognized tax benefits reflect management’s
best assessment of estimated current and future taxes to be paid. Deferred tax asset valuation allowances and our liabilities for
unrecognized tax benefits require significant management judgment regarding applicable statutes and their related
interpretation, the status of various income tax audits and our particular facts and circumstances. Although we believe that the
judgments and estimates discussed herein are reasonable, actual results could differ, and we may be exposed to losses or gains
that could be material. To the extent we prevail in matters for which a liability has been established or are required to pay
amounts in excess of our established liability, our effective income tax rate in a given financial statement period could be
materially affected.
RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
See Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, to the consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of Part II
of this 10-K for a detailed description of recent accounting pronouncements.
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Item 7A.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the section entitled "Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Commodity Prices, Availability and General Risk Conditions"
and "Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Financial Risk Management"
in Item 7 of this Report.

44

Starbucks Corporation

2016 Form 10-K

Item 8.

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
STARBUCKS CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
(in millions, except per share data)
Oct 2,
2016

Fiscal Year Ended

Net revenues:
Company-operated stores
Licensed stores
CPG, foodservice and other
Total net revenues
Cost of sales including occupancy costs
Store operating expenses
Other operating expenses
Depreciation and amortization expenses
General and administrative expenses
Litigation credit
Total operating expenses
Income from equity investees
Operating income
Gain resulting from acquisition of joint venture
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Interest income and other, net
Interest expense
Earnings before income taxes
Income tax expense
Net earnings including noncontrolling interests
Net earnings/(loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests
Net earnings attributable to Starbucks
Earnings per share — basic
Earnings per share — diluted
Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted

$

$
$
$

Sep 27,
2015

16,844.1 $
2,154.2
2,317.6
21,315.9
8,511.1
6,064.3
545.4
980.8
1,360.6
—
17,462.2
318.2
4,171.9
—
—
108.0
(81.3)
4,198.6
1,379.7
2,818.9
1.2
2,817.7
1.91
1.90

$
$
$

1,471.6
1,486.7

Sep 28,
2014

15,197.3 $
1,861.9
2,103.5
19,162.7
7,787.5
5,411.1
522.4
893.9
1,196.7
—
15,811.6
249.9
3,601.0
390.6
(61.1)
43.0
(70.5)
3,903.0
1,143.7
2,759.3
1.9
2,757.4
1.84
1.82
1,495.9
1,513.4

12,977.9
1,588.6
1,881.3
16,447.8
6,858.8
4,638.2
457.3
709.6
991.3
(20.2)
13,635.0
268.3
3,081.1
—
—
142.7
(64.1)
3,159.7
1,092.0
2,067.7
(0.4)

$
$
$

2,068.1
1.37
1.35
1,506.3
1,526.3

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Starbucks Corporation

2016 Form 10-K

45

STARBUCKS CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(in millions)
Oct 2,
2016

Net earnings including noncontrolling interests
Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax:
Unrealized holding gains/(losses) on available-for-sale securities
Tax (expense)/benefit
Unrealized gains/(losses) on cash flow hedging instruments
Tax (expense)/benefit
Unrealized gains/(losses) on net investment hedging instruments
Tax (expense)/benefit
Translation adjustment and other
Tax (expense)/benefit
Reclassification adjustment for net (gains)/losses realized in net
earnings for available-for-sale securities, hedging instruments, and
translation adjustment
Tax expense/(benefit)
Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Comprehensive income including noncontrolling interests
Comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests
Comprehensive income attributable to Starbucks

$

Sep 27,
2015

2,818.9
3.5
(1.3)
(109.6)
27.5
—
—
85.5
19.0

78.2
(11.8)

$

91.0
2,909.9
1.2
2,908.7

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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$

$

Sep 28,
2014

2,759.3

$

2,067.7

1.4
(0.5)

1.6
(0.6)

47.6
(16.8)

24.1
(7.8)

4.3
(1.6)
(222.7)
6.0

25.5
(9.4)
(75.8)
(1.6)

(65.9)

(1.5)

23.5
(224.7)

3.8
(41.7)

2,534.6
(29.2)

2,026.0
(0.4)

2,563.8

$

2,026.4

STARBUCKS CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in millions, except per share data)
Oct 2,
2016

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
Long-term investments
Equity and cost investments
Property, plant and equipment, net
Deferred income taxes, net
Other long-term assets
Other intangible assets
Goodwill
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Insurance reserves
Stored value card liability
Current portion of long-term debt
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Other long-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Shareholders’ equity:
Common stock ($0.001 par value) — authorized, 2,400.0 shares; issued and
outstanding, 1,460.5 and 1,485.1 shares, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Total shareholders’ equity
Noncontrolling interests
Total equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

$

$

$

$

Sep 27,
2015

2,128.8
134.4
768.8
1,378.5
350.0
4,760.5
1,141.7
354.5
4,533.8
885.4
417.7
516.3
1,719.6
14,329.5

$

730.6
1,999.1
246.0
1,171.2
400.0
4,546.9
3,202.2
689.7
8,438.8

$

$

1.5
41.1
5,949.8
(108.4)
5,884.0
6.7
5,890.7
14,329.5 $

1,530.1
81.3
719.0
1,306.4
334.2
3,971.0
312.5
352.0
4,088.3
1,180.8
415.9
520.4
1,575.4
12,416.3

684.2
1,755.3
224.8
983.8
—
3,648.1
2,347.5
600.9
6,596.5

1.5
41.1
5,974.8
(199.4)
5,818.0
1.8
5,819.8
12,416.3

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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STARBUCKS CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in millions)
Oct 2,
2016

Fiscal Year Ended

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net earnings including noncontrolling interests
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Deferred income taxes, net
Income earned from equity method investees
Distributions received from equity method investees
Gain resulting from acquisition/sale of equity in joint ventures and certain
retail operations
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Stock-based compensation
Excess tax benefit on share-based awards
Other
Cash provided by changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Accounts payable
Accrued litigation charge
Stored value card liability
Other operating assets and liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of investments
Sales of investments
Maturities and calls of investments
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired
Additions to property, plant and equipment
Net proceeds from sale of equity in joint ventures and certain retail operations
Other
Net cash used by investing activities
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Repayments of long-term debt
Cash used for purchase of non-controlling interest
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Excess tax benefit on share-based awards
Cash dividends paid
Repurchase of common stock
Minimum tax withholdings on share-based awards
Other
Net cash used by financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
Beginning of period
End of period
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the period for:
Interest, net of capitalized interest
Income taxes, net of refunds

$
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$

2,759.3

Sep 28,
2014

$

2,067.7

1,030.1
265.7
(250.2)
223.3

933.8
21.2
(190.2)
148.2

748.4
10.2
(182.7)
139.2

(6.1)
—
218.1
(122.8)
45.1

(394.3)
61.1
209.8
(132.4)
53.8

(70.2)
—
183.2
(114.4)
36.2

(55.6)
(67.5)
46.9
—
180.4
248.8
4,575.1

(82.8)
(207.9)
137.7
—
170.3
261.5
3,749.1

(79.7)
14.3
60.4
(2,763.9)
140.8
418.3
607.8

(1,585.7)
680.7
27.9
—
(1,440.3)
69.6
24.9
(2,222.9)

(567.4)
600.6
18.8
(284.3)
(1,303.7)
8.9
6.8
(1,520.3)

(1,652.5)
1,454.8
456.1
—
(1,160.9)
103.9
(19.1)
(817.7)

1,254.5
—
—
160.7
122.8
(1,178.0)
(1,995.6)
(106.0)
(8.4)
(1,750.0)
(3.5)
598.7

848.5
(610.1)
(360.8)
191.8
132.4
(928.6)
(1,436.1)
(75.5)
(18.1)
(2,256.5)
(150.6)
(178.3)

748.5
—
—
139.7
114.4
(783.1)
(758.6)
(77.3)
(6.9)
(623.3)
(34.1)
(867.3)

$

1,530.1
2,128.8

$

1,708.4
1,530.1

$

2,575.7
1,708.4

$
$

74.7
878.7

$
$

69.5
1,072.2

$
$

56.2
766.3

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

48

2,818.9

Sep 27,
2015

STARBUCKS CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY
(in millions, except per share data)
Common Stock
Shares

Balance, September 29, 2013
Net earnings/(loss)

Amount

753.2

$

—

0.8

Additional Paidin Capital

$

—

282.1

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income/(Loss)

Retained
Earnings

$

—

4,130.3

$

2,068.1

67.0

Shareholders’
Equity

$

—

Other comprehensive income/(loss)

4,480.2

Noncontrolling
Interests

$

2,068.1

(41.7)

2.1

Total

$

(0.4)

4,482.3
2,067.7

(41.7)

—

(41.7)

Stock-based compensation expense

—

—

185.1

—

—

185.1

—

185.1

Exercise of stock options/vesting of RSUs,
including tax benefit of $114.8

6.5

—

154.8

—

—

154.8

—

154.8

Sale of common stock, including tax benefit of $0.2

0.3

—

22.3

—

—

22.3

—

22.3

(10.5)

(0.1)

(604.9)

Repurchase of common stock
Cash dividends declared, $0.550 per share
Balance, September 28, 2014
Net earnings/(loss)

—
749.5

—
$

0.7

—
$

39.4

$

(164.8)

—

(769.8)

—

(769.8)

(827.0)

—

(827.0)

—

(827.0)

5,206.6

$

Exercise of stock options/vesting of RSUs,
including tax benefit of $131.3
Sale of common stock, including tax benefit of $0.2
Repurchase of common stock
Cash dividends declared, $0.680 per share

—

—

—

211.7

—

211.7

14.6

—

224.4

—

—

224.4

—

224.4

0.6

—

23.5

(29.0)

—

(459.6)

—

—

(1,016.2)

—

(1,016.2)

—

Noncontrolling interest resulting from acquisition

—

—

—

—

Purchase of noncontrolling interest

—

—

1.7

—

Starbucks Corporation

$

5,974.8

—

—

—

2,817.7

Stock-based compensation expense

—

—

219.6

—

Exercise of stock options/vesting of RSUs,
including tax benefit of $124.3

9.8

—

153.0

—

—
(31.1)
$

Other comprehensive income/(loss)
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Repurchase of common stock

0.5

—

26.5

(34.9)

—

(399.1)

Cash dividends declared, $0.850 per share

—

—

—

Noncontrolling interest resulting from acquisition

—

—

—

Balance, October 2, 2016

1,460.5

$

1.5

$

41.1

—

—
—

2,817.7

1.2

91.0

91.0

—

91.0

—

219.6

—

219.6

—

153.0

—

153.0

26.5

(1,246.2)

—

(1,246.2)

—
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411.1
(411.1)

5,818.0

(1,995.6)

$

411.1
(381.7)

—

—

(108.4) $

$

—

(199.4) $

—

5,949.8

—

(29.4)

(1,596.5)
—
$

23.5
(1,431.8)

—

41.1

—
—

(0.8)

$

23.5

(224.7)

(1,431.8)

(1,016.2)

1.5

(31.1)

—

—

$

(193.6)

2,759.3

(972.2)

—

1,485.1

1.9

5,273.7

211.7

—

Sale of common stock, including tax benefit of $0.2

$

—

(193.6)

2,757.4

1.7

—

0.8

Net earnings/(loss)

$

2,757.4

—

Balance, September 27, 2015

5,272.0

—

749.4

Two-for-one stock split

$

—

Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Stock-based compensation expense

25.3

—

$

26.5

—

(1,995.6)

—

(1,246.2)

3.7
$

5,819.8
2,818.9

—

—
5,884.0

1.8

6.7

3.7
$

5,890.7
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STARBUCKS CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Years ended October 2, 2016, September 27, 2015 and September 28, 2014
Note 1:

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Description of Business
We purchase and roast high-quality coffees that we sell, along with handcrafted coffee and tea beverages and a variety of fresh
food items, through our company-operated stores. We also sell a variety of coffee and tea products and license our trademarks
through other channels such as licensed stores, grocery and national foodservice accounts.
In this 10-K, Starbucks Corporation (together with its subsidiaries) is referred to as "Starbucks," the "Company," "we," "us" or
"our."
We have four reportable operating segments: 1) Americas, which is inclusive of the U.S., Canada, and Latin America; 2) China/
Asia Pacific ("CAP"); 3) Europe, Middle East, and Africa ("EMEA") and 4) Channel Development. We also have several nonreportable operating segments, including Teavana, Seattle's Best Coffee and Evolution Fresh, as well as certain developing
businesses such as the Starbucks Reserve® Roastery & Tasting Rooms, which are combined and referred to as All Other
Segments. Unallocated corporate operating expenses, which pertain primarily to corporate administrative functions that support
the operating segments but are not specifically attributable to or managed by any segment, are presented as a reconciling item
between total segment operating results and consolidated financial results.
Additional details on the nature of our business and our reportable operating segments are included in Note 16, Segment
Reporting.
Principles of Consolidation
Our consolidated financial statements reflect the financial position and operating results of Starbucks, including wholly-owned
subsidiaries and investees that we control. Investments in entities that we do not control, but have the ability to exercise
significant influence over operating and financial policies, are accounted for under the equity method. Investments in entities in
which we do not have the ability to exercise significant influence are accounted for under the cost method. Intercompany
transactions and balances have been eliminated.
Fiscal Year End
Our fiscal year ends on the Sunday closest to September 30. Fiscal year 2016 included 53 weeks, with the 53rd week falling in
the fourth fiscal quarter. Fiscal years 2015 and 2014 included 52 weeks.
Estimates and Assumptions
Preparing financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
("GAAP") requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses. Examples include, but are not limited to, estimates for inventory reserves, asset and goodwill
impairments, assumptions underlying self-insurance reserves, income from unredeemed stored value cards, stock-based
compensation forfeiture rates, future asset retirement obligations and the potential outcome of future tax consequences of
events that have been recognized in the financial statements. Actual results and outcomes may differ from these estimates and
assumptions.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
We consider all highly liquid instruments with maturities of three months or less at the time of purchase, as well as credit card
receivables for sales to customers in our company-operated stores that generally settle within two to five business days, to be
cash equivalents. We maintain cash and cash equivalent balances with financial institutions that exceed federally-insured limits.
We have not experienced any losses related to these balances, and we believe credit risk to be minimal.
Our cash management system provides for the funding of all major bank disbursement accounts on a daily basis as checks are
presented for payment. Under this system, outstanding checks are in excess of the cash balances at certain banks, which creates
book overdrafts. Book overdrafts are presented as a current liability in accrued liabilities on our consolidated balance sheets.
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Investments
Available-for-sale Securities
Our short-term and long-term investments consist primarily of investment-grade debt securities, all of which are classified as
available-for-sale. Available-for-sale securities are recorded at fair value, and unrealized holding gains and losses are recorded,
net of tax, as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income. Available-for-sale securities with remaining maturities
of less than one year and those identified by management at the time of purchase to be used to fund operations within one year
are classified as short-term. All other available-for-sale securities are classified as long-term. We evaluate our available-for-sale
securities for other than temporary impairment on a quarterly basis. Unrealized losses are charged against net earnings when a
decline in fair value is determined to be other than temporary. We review several factors to determine whether a loss is other
than temporary, such as the length and extent of the fair value decline, the financial condition and near-term prospects of the
issuer and whether we have the intent to sell or will more likely than not be required to sell before the securities' anticipated
recovery, which may be at maturity. Realized gains and losses are accounted for using the specific identification method.
Purchases and sales are recorded on a trade date basis.
Trading Securities
We also have a trading securities portfolio, which is comprised of marketable equity mutual funds and equity exchange-traded
funds. Trading securities are recorded at fair value with unrealized holding gains and losses recorded in interest income and
other, net on our consolidated statements of earnings. Our trading securities portfolio approximates a portion of our liability
under our Management Deferred Compensation Plan ("MDCP"), which is included in accrued compensation and related costs,
within accrued liabilities on our consolidated balance sheets. Changes in our MDCP liability are recorded in general and
administrative expenses on our consolidated statements of earnings.
Equity and Cost Method Investments
Equity investments are accounted for using the equity method of accounting if the investment gives us the ability to exercise
significant influence, but not control, over an investee. Equity method investments are included within long-term investments
on our consolidated balance sheets. Our share of the earnings or losses as reported by equity method investees are classified as
income from equity investees on our consolidated statements of earnings.
Equity investments for which we do not have the ability to exercise significant influence are accounted for using the cost
method of accounting and are recorded in long-term investments on our consolidated balance sheets. Under the cost method,
investments are carried at cost and are adjusted only for other-than-temporary declines in fair value, certain distributions and
additional investments.
We evaluate our equity and cost method investments for impairment annually and when facts and circumstances indicate that
the carrying value of such investments may not be recoverable. We review several factors to determine whether the loss is other
than temporary, such as the length and extent of the fair value decline, the financial condition and near-term prospects of the
investee, and whether we have the intent to sell or will more likely than not be required to sell before the investment’s
anticipated recovery. If a decline in fair value is determined to be other than temporary, an impairment charge is recorded in net
earnings.
Fair Value
Fair value is the price we would receive to sell an asset or pay to transfer a liability (exit price) in an orderly transaction
between market participants. For assets and liabilities recorded or disclosed at fair value on a recurring basis, we determine fair
value based on the following:
Level 1: The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value because of the short-term nature of these
instruments. For trading and U.S. government treasury securities and commodity futures contracts, we use quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets to determine fair value.
Level 2: When quoted prices in active markets for identical assets are not available, we determine the fair value of our
available-for-sale securities and our over-the-counter forward contracts, collars and swaps based upon factors such as the
quoted market price of similar assets or a discounted cash flow model using readily observable market data, which may include
interest rate curves and forward and spot prices for currencies and commodities, depending on the nature of the investment. The
fair value of our long-term debt is estimated based on the quoted market prices for the same or similar issues or on the current
rates offered to us for debt of the same remaining maturities.
Level 3: We determine the fair value of our auction rate securities using an internally-developed valuation model, using inputs
that include interest rate curves, credit and liquidity spreads and effective maturity.
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Assets and liabilities recognized or disclosed at fair value on a nonrecurring basis include items such as property, plant and
equipment, goodwill and other intangible assets, equity and cost method investments and other assets. We determine the fair
value of these items using Level 3 inputs, as described in the related sections below.
Derivative Instruments
We manage our exposure to various risks within our consolidated financial statements according to a market price risk
management policy. Under this policy, we may engage in transactions involving various derivative instruments to hedge
interest rates, commodity prices and foreign currency denominated revenue streams, inventory purchases, assets and liabilities
and investments in certain foreign operations. In order to manage our exposure to these risks, we use various types of derivative
instruments including forward contracts, commodity futures contracts, collars and swaps. Forward contracts and commodity
futures contracts are agreements to buy or sell a quantity of a currency or commodity at a predetermined future date and at a
predetermined rate or price. A collar is a strategy that uses a combination of a purchased call option and a sold put option with
equal premiums to hedge a portion of anticipated cash flows, or to limit the range of possible gains or losses on an underlying
asset or liability to a specific range. A swap agreement is a contract between two parties to exchange cash flows based on
specified underlying notional amounts, assets and/or indices. We do not enter into derivative instruments for speculative
purposes.
We record all derivatives on our consolidated balance sheets at fair value. We generally do not offset derivative assets and
liabilities in our consolidated balance sheets or enter into derivative instruments with maturities longer than three years.
However, we are allowed to net settle transactions with respective counterparties for certain derivative contracts, inclusive of
interest rate swaps and foreign currency forwards, with a single, net amount payable by one party to the other. We also enter
into collateral security arrangements that provide for collateral to be received or posted when the net fair value of certain
financial instruments fluctuates from contractually established thresholds. As of October 2, 2016 and September 27, 2015, we
posted and received $19.5 million and $2.6 million, respectively, of cash collateral related to the derivative instruments under
collateral security arrangements. As of October 2, 2016 and September 27, 2015, the potential effects of netting arrangements
with our derivative contracts, excluding the effects of collateral, would be a reduction to both derivative assets and liabilities of
$9.4 million and $12.5 million, respectively, resulting in a net derivative asset of $24.7 million and net derivative liabilities of
$80.2 million as of October 2, 2016, and net derivative assets of $93.0 million and net derivative liabilities of $21.2 million as
of September 27, 2015.
By using these derivative instruments, we expose ourselves to potential credit risk. Credit risk is the failure of the counterparty
to perform under the terms of the derivative contract. We minimize this credit risk by entering into transactions with carefully
selected, credit-worthy counterparties and distribute contracts among several financial institutions to reduce the concentration
of credit risk.
Cash Flow Hedges
For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as a cash flow hedge, the effective portion of the derivative's gain or
loss is reported as a component of other comprehensive income ("OCI") and recorded in accumulated other comprehensive
income ("AOCI") on our consolidated balance sheets. The gain or loss is subsequently reclassified into net earnings when the
hedged exposure affects net earnings.
To the extent that the change in the fair value of the contract corresponds to the change in the value of the anticipated
transaction using forward rates on a monthly basis, the hedge is considered effective and is recognized as described above. The
remaining change in fair value of the contract represents the ineffective portion, which is immediately recorded in interest
income and other, net on our consolidated statements of earnings.
Cash flow hedges related to anticipated transactions are designated and documented at the inception of each hedge by matching
the terms of the contract to the underlying transaction. Cash flows from hedging transactions are classified in the same
categories as the cash flows from the respective hedged items. Once established, cash flow hedges generally remain designated
as such until the hedge item impacts net earnings, or the anticipated transaction is no longer likely to occur. For de-designated
cash flow hedges or for transactions that are no longer likely to occur, the related accumulated derivative gains or losses are
recognized in interest income and other, net or interest expense on our consolidated statements of earnings based on the nature
of the underlying transaction.
Net Investment Hedges
For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as a net investment hedge, the effective portion of the derivative's
gain or loss is reported as a component of OCI and recorded in AOCI. The gain or loss will be subsequently reclassified into net
earnings when the hedged net investment is either sold or substantially liquidated.
To the extent that the change in the fair value of the forward contract corresponds to the change in value of the anticipated
transactions using spot rates on a monthly basis, the hedge is considered effective and is recognized as described above. The
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remaining change in fair value of the forward contract represents the ineffective portion, which is immediately recognized in
interest income and other, net on our consolidated statements of earnings.
Derivatives Not Designated As Hedging Instruments
We also enter into certain foreign currency forward contracts, commodity futures contracts, collars and swaps that are not
designated as hedging instruments for accounting purposes. The change in the fair value of these contracts is immediately
recognized in interest income and other, net on our consolidated statements of earnings.
Normal Purchase Normal Sale
We enter into fixed-price and price-to-be-fixed green coffee purchase commitments, which are described further at Note 5,
Inventories. For both fixed-price and price-to-be-fixed purchase commitments, we expect to take delivery of and to utilize the
coffee in a reasonable period of time and in the conduct of normal business. Accordingly, these purchase commitments qualify
as normal purchases and are not recorded at fair value on our balance sheets.
Refer to Note 3, Derivative Financial Instruments, and Note 5, Inventories, for further discussion of our derivative instruments
and green coffee purchase commitments.
Receivables, net of Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Our receivables are mainly comprised of receivables for product and equipment sales to and royalties from our licensees, as
well as receivables from our CPG and foodservice business customers. Our allowance for doubtful accounts is calculated based
on historical experience, customer credit risk and application of the specific identification method. As of October 2, 2016 and
September 27, 2015, our allowance for doubtful accounts was $9.4 million and $10.8 million, respectively.
Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (primarily moving average cost) or market. We record inventory reserves for obsolete
and slow-moving inventory and for estimated shrinkage between physical inventory counts. Inventory reserves are based on
inventory obsolescence trends, historical experience and application of the specific identification method. As of October 2,
2016 and September 27, 2015, inventory reserves were $39.6 million and $33.8 million, respectively.
Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment, which includes assets under capital leases, are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation.
Cost includes all direct costs necessary to acquire and prepare assets for use, including internal labor and overhead in some
cases. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives of the assets, generally ranging from
2 to 15 years for equipment and 30 to 40 years for buildings. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of their
estimated useful lives or the related lease life, generally 10 years. For leases with renewal periods at our option, we generally
use the original lease term, excluding renewal option periods, to determine estimated useful lives. If failure to exercise a
renewal option imposes an economic penalty to us, we may determine at the inception of the lease that renewal is reasonably
assured and include the renewal option period in the determination of the appropriate estimated useful lives.
The portion of depreciation expense related to production and distribution facilities is included in cost of sales including
occupancy costs on our consolidated statements of earnings. The costs of repairs and maintenance are expensed when incurred,
while expenditures for refurbishments and improvements that significantly add to the productive capacity or extend the useful
life of an asset are capitalized. When assets are disposed of, whether through retirement or sale, the net gain or loss is
recognized in net earnings. Long-lived assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of their carrying amount or fair value
less estimated costs to sell.
We evaluate property, plant and equipment for impairment when facts and circumstances indicate that the carrying values of
such assets may not be recoverable. When evaluating for impairment, we first compare the carrying value of the asset to the
asset’s estimated future undiscounted cash flows. If the estimated undiscounted future cash flows are less than the carrying
value of the asset, we determine if we have an impairment loss by comparing the carrying value of the asset to the asset's
estimated fair value and recognize an impairment charge when the asset’s carrying value exceeds its estimated fair value. The
fair value of the asset is estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on forecasted future revenues and operating costs,
using internal projections. Property, plant and equipment assets are grouped at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows
are largely independent of the cash flows of other assets and liabilities. For company-operated store assets, the impairment test
is performed at the individual store asset group level.
We recognized net disposition charges of $25.1 million, $12.5 million, and $14.7 million and net impairment charges of $24.1
million, $25.8 million, and $19.0 million in fiscal 2016, 2015, and 2014, respectively. The nature of the underlying asset that is
impaired or disposed of will determine the operating expense line on which the related impact is recorded on our consolidated
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statements of earnings. For assets within our retail operations, net impairment and disposition charges are recorded in store
operating expenses. For all other assets, these charges are recorded in cost of sales including occupancy costs, other operating
expenses or general and administrative expenses.
Goodwill
We evaluate goodwill for impairment annually during our third fiscal quarter, or more frequently if an event occurs or
circumstances change, such as material deterioration in performance or a significant number of store closures, that would
indicate that impairment may exist. When evaluating goodwill for impairment, we may first perform a qualitative assessment to
determine whether it is more likely than not that a reporting unit is impaired. If we do not perform a qualitative assessment, or
if we determine that it is not more likely than not that the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount, we
calculate the estimated fair value of the reporting unit. Fair value is the price a willing buyer would pay for the reporting unit
and is typically calculated using a discounted cash flow model. For certain reporting units, where deemed appropriate, we may
also utilize a market approach for estimating fair value. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds the estimated fair
value, an impairment charge is recorded to reduce the carrying value to the estimated fair value.
As part of our ongoing operations, we may close certain stores within a reporting unit containing goodwill due to
underperformance of the store or inability to renew our lease, among other reasons. We may abandon certain assets associated
with a closed store, including leasehold improvements and other non-transferable assets. When a portion of a reporting unit that
constitutes a business is to be disposed of, goodwill associated with the business is included in the carrying amount of the
business in determining any loss on disposal. Our evaluation of whether the portion of a reporting unit being disposed of
constitutes a business occurs on the date of abandonment. Although an operating store meets the accounting definition of a
business prior to abandonment, it does not constitute a business on the closure date because the remaining assets on that date do
not constitute an integrated set of assets that are capable of being managed for the purpose of providing a return to investors. As
a result, when closing individual stores, we do not include goodwill in the calculation of any loss on disposal of the related
assets. As noted above, if store closures are indicative of potential impairment of goodwill at the reporting unit level, we
perform an evaluation of our reporting unit goodwill when such closures occur. There were no material goodwill impairment
charges recorded during fiscal 2016, 2015, and 2014.
Other Intangible Assets
Other intangible assets include finite-lived intangible assets, which mainly consist of acquired and reacquired rights, trade
secrets, licensing agreements, contract-based patents and copyrights. These assets are amortized over their estimated useful
lives and are tested for impairment using a similar methodology to our property, plant and equipment, as described above.
Indefinite-lived intangibles, which consist primarily of trade names and trademarks, are tested for impairment annually during
the third fiscal quarter, or more frequently if an event occurs or circumstances change that would indicate that impairment may
exist. When evaluating other intangible assets for impairment, we may first perform a qualitative assessment to determine
whether it is more likely than not that an intangible asset group is impaired. If we do not perform the qualitative assessment, or
if we determine that it is not more likely than not that the fair value of the intangible asset group exceeds its carrying amount,
we calculate the estimated fair value of the intangible asset group. Fair value is the price a willing buyer would pay for the
intangible asset group and is typically calculated using an income approach, such as a relief-from-royalty model. If the carrying
amount of the intangible asset group exceeds the estimated fair value, an impairment charge is recorded to reduce the carrying
value to the estimated fair value. In addition, we continuously monitor and may revise our intangible asset useful lives if and
when facts and circumstances change.
There were no other intangible asset impairment charges recorded during fiscal 2016, 2015, and 2014.
Insurance Reserves
We use a combination of insurance and self-insurance mechanisms, including a wholly-owned captive insurance entity and
participation in a reinsurance treaty, to provide for the potential liabilities for certain risks, including workers’ compensation,
healthcare benefits, general liability, property insurance and director and officers’ liability insurance. Liabilities associated with
the risks that are retained by us are not discounted and are estimated, in part, by considering historical claims experience,
demographics, exposure and severity factors and other actuarial assumptions.
Revenue Recognition
Consolidated revenues are presented net of intercompany eliminations for wholly-owned subsidiaries and investees controlled
by us and for product sales to and royalty and other fees from licensees accounted for under the equity method. Additionally,
consolidated revenues are recognized net of any discounts, returns, allowances and sales incentives, including coupon
redemptions and rebates.
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Company-operated Store Revenues
Company-operated store revenues are recognized when payment is tendered at the point of sale. Company-operated store
revenues are reported net of sales, use or other transaction taxes that are collected from customers and remitted to taxing
authorities.
Licensed Store Revenues
Licensed store revenues consist of product and equipment sales to licensees, as well as royalties and other fees paid by
licensees to use the Starbucks brand. Sales of coffee, tea, food and related products are generally recognized upon shipment to
licensees, depending on contract terms. Shipping charges billed to licensees are also recognized as revenue, and the related
shipping costs are included in cost of sales including occupancy costs on our consolidated statements of earnings.
Initial nonrefundable development fees for licensed stores are recognized upon substantial performance of services for new
market business development activities, such as initial business, real estate and store development planning, as well as
providing operational materials and functional training courses for opening new licensed retail markets. Additional store
licensing fees are recognized when new licensed stores are opened. Royalty revenues based upon a percentage of reported
sales, and other continuing fees, such as marketing and service fees, are recognized on a monthly basis when earned.
CPG, Foodservice and Other Revenues
CPG, foodservice and other revenues primarily include sales of packaged coffee and tea as well as a variety of ready-to-drink
beverages and single-serve coffee and tea products to grocery, warehouse clubs and specialty retail stores, sales to our national
foodservice accounts, and revenues from sales of products to and license fee revenues from manufacturers that produce and
market Starbucks-, Seattle’s Best Coffee- and Tazo-branded products through licensing agreements. Sales of coffee, tea, readyto-drink beverages and related products to grocery and warehouse club stores are generally recognized when received by the
customer or distributor, depending on contract terms. Revenues are recorded net of sales discounts given to customers for trade
promotions and other incentives and for sales return allowances, which are determined based on historical patterns.
Revenues from sales of products to manufacturers that produce and market Starbucks-, Seattle’s Best Coffee- and Tazo-branded
products through licensing agreements are generally recognized when the product is received by the manufacturer or
distributor. License fee revenues from manufacturers are based on a percentage of sales and are recognized on a monthly basis
when earned. National foodservice account revenues are recognized when the product is received by the customer or
distributor.
Sales to customers through CPG channels and national foodservice accounts, including sales to national distributors, are
recognized net of certain fees paid to the customer. We characterize these fees as a reduction of revenue unless we are able to
identify a sufficiently separable benefit from the customer's purchase of our products such that we could have entered into an
exchange transaction with a party other than the customer in order to receive such benefit, and we can reasonably estimate the
fair value of such benefit.
Stored Value Cards
Stored value cards, primarily Starbucks Cards, can be loaded at our company-operated and most licensed store locations, online
at StarbucksStore.com or via mobile devices held by our customers, and at certain other third party locations, such as grocery
stores. When an amount is loaded onto a stored value card at any of these locations, we recognize a corresponding liability for
the full amount loaded onto the card, which is recorded within stored value card liability on our consolidated balance sheets.
Stored value cards can be redeemed at company-operated and most licensed stores, as well as online. When a stored value card
is redeemed at a company-operated store or online, we recognize revenue by reducing the stored value card liability. When a
stored value card is redeemed at a licensed store location, we reduce the corresponding stored value card liability and cash,
which is reimbursed to the licensee.
There are no expiration dates on our stored value cards, and in most markets, we do not charge service fees that cause a
decrement to customer balances. While we will continue to honor all stored value cards presented for payment, management
may determine the likelihood of redemption, based on historical experience, is deemed to be remote for certain cards due to
long periods of inactivity. In these circumstances, if management also determines there is no requirement for remitting balances
to government agencies under unclaimed property laws, unredeemed card balances may then be recognized as breakage
income, which is included in interest income and other, net on our consolidated statements of earnings. In fiscal 2016, 2015,
and 2014, we recognized breakage income of $60.5 million, $39.3 million, and $38.3 million, respectively.
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Loyalty Program
In the U.S. and Canada, effective April 2016, we modified our transaction-based loyalty program, My Starbucks Rewards® to a
spend-based program, Starbucks RewardsTM. For fiscal 2016, the existing transaction-based programs remain unchanged for
other markets. Customers in the U.S., Canada, and certain other countries who register their Starbucks Card are automatically
enrolled in the program. They earn loyalty points ("Stars") with each purchase at participating Starbucks®, Teavana®, and
Evolution Fresh® stores, as well as on certain packaged coffee products purchased in select Starbucks® stores, online, and
through CPG channels. After accumulating a certain number of Stars, the customer earns a reward that can be redeemed for
free product that, regardless of where the related Stars were earned within that country, will be honored at company-operated
stores and certain participating licensed store locations in that same country.
Regardless of whether it is a spend or transaction-based program, we defer revenue associated with the estimated selling price
of Stars earned by our program members towards free product as each Star is earned, and a corresponding liability is
established within stored value card liability on our consolidated balance sheets. The estimated selling price of each Star earned
is based on the estimated value of the product for which the reward is expected to be redeemed, net of Stars we do not expect to
be redeemed, based on historical redemption patterns. Stars generally expire if inactive for a period of six months.
When a customer redeems an earned reward, we recognize revenue for the redeemed product and reduce the related loyalty
program liability.
Marketing & Advertising
Our annual marketing expenses include many components, one of which is advertising costs. We expense most advertising
costs as they are incurred, except for certain production costs that are expensed the first time the advertising takes place.
Marketing expenses totaled $378.7 million, $351.5 million and $315.5 million in fiscal 2016, 2015, and 2014, respectively.
Included in these costs were advertising expenses, which totaled $248.6 million, $227.9 million and $198.9 million in fiscal
2016, 2015, and 2014, respectively.
Store Preopening Expenses
Costs incurred in connection with the start-up and promotion of new store openings are expensed as incurred.
Leases
Operating Leases
We lease retail stores, roasting, distribution and warehouse facilities and office space for corporate administrative purposes
under operating leases. Most lease agreements contain tenant improvement allowances, rent holidays, lease premiums, rent
escalation clauses and/or contingent rent provisions. We recognize amortization of lease incentives, premiums and minimum
rent expenses on a straight-line basis beginning on the date of initial possession, which is generally when we enter the space
and begin to make improvements in preparation for intended use.
For tenant improvement allowances and rent holidays, we record a deferred rent liability within accrued liabilities, or other
long-term liabilities, on our consolidated balance sheets and amortize the deferred rent over the terms of the leases as
reductions to rent expense in cost of sales including occupancy costs on our consolidated statements of earnings.
For premiums paid upfront to enter a lease agreement, we record a prepaid rent asset in prepaid expenses and other non-current
assets on our consolidated balance sheets and amortize the deferred rent over the terms of the leases as additional rent expense
in cost of sales including occupancy costs on our consolidated statements of earnings.
For scheduled rent escalation clauses during the lease terms or for rental payments commencing at a date other than the date of
initial possession, we record minimum rent expense on a straight-line basis over the terms of the leases in cost of sales
including occupancy costs on our consolidated statements of earnings, with the adjustments to cash rent accrued as deferred
rent in our consolidated balance sheets.
Certain leases provide for contingent rent, which is determined as a percentage of gross sales in excess of specified levels. We
record a contingent rent liability in accrued occupancy costs within accrued liabilities on our consolidated balance sheets and
the corresponding rent expense when we determine that achieving the specified levels during the fiscal year is probable.
When ceasing operations of company-operated stores under operating leases, in cases where the lease contract specifies a
termination fee due to the landlord, we record such expense at the time written notice is given to the landlord. In cases where
terms, including termination fees, are yet to be negotiated with the landlord, we will record the expense upon signing of an
agreement with the landlord. In cases where the landlord does not allow us to prematurely exit the lease, we recognize an
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expense equal to the present value of the remaining lease payments to the landlord less any projected sublease income at the
cease-use date.
Lease Financing Arrangements
We are sometimes involved in the construction of leased buildings, primarily stores. When we qualify as the deemed owner of
these buildings due to significant involvement during the construction period under build-to-suit lease accounting requirements
and do not qualify for sales recognition under sales-leaseback accounting guidance, we record the cost of the related buildings
in property, plant and equipment. The offsetting lease financing obligations are recorded in other long-term liabilities, with the
current portion recorded in in accrued occupancy costs within accrued liabilities on our consolidated balance sheets. These
assets and obligations are amortized in depreciation and amortization and interest expense, respectively, on our consolidated
statements of earnings based on the terms of the related lease agreements.
Asset Retirement Obligations
We recognize a liability for the fair value of required asset retirement obligations ("ARO") when such obligations are incurred.
Our AROs are primarily associated with leasehold improvements, which, at the end of a lease, we are contractually obligated to
remove in order to comply with the lease agreement. At the inception of a lease with such conditions, we record an ARO
liability and a corresponding capital asset in an amount equal to the estimated fair value of the obligation. We estimate the
liability using a number of assumptions, including store closing costs, cost inflation rates and discount rates, and accrete the
liability to its projected future value over time. The capitalized asset is depreciated using the same depreciation convention as
leasehold improvement assets. Upon satisfaction of the ARO conditions, any difference between the recorded ARO liability and
the actual retirement costs incurred is recognized as a gain or loss in cost of sales including occupancy costs on our
consolidated statements of earnings. As of October 2, 2016 and September 27, 2015, our net ARO assets included in property,
plant and equipment were $9.3 million and $5.8 million, respectively, and our net ARO liabilities included in other long-term
liabilities were $67.9 million and $60.1 million, respectively. .
Stock-based Compensation
We maintain several equity incentive plans under which we may grant non-qualified stock options, incentive stock options,
restricted stock, restricted stock units ("RSUs") or stock appreciation rights to employees, non-employee directors and
consultants. We also have an employee stock purchase plan ("ESPP"). RSUs issued by us are equivalent to nonvested shares
under the applicable accounting guidance. We record stock-based compensation expense based on the fair value of stock
awards at the grant date and recognize the expense over the related service period following a graded vesting expense schedule.
Expense for performance-based RSUs is recognized when it is probable the performance goal will be achieved. Performance
goals are determined by the Board of Directors and may include measures such as earnings per share, operating income and
return on invested capital. The fair value of each stock option granted is estimated on the grant date using the Black-ScholesMerton option valuation model. The assumptions used to calculate the fair value of options granted are evaluated and revised,
as necessary, to reflect market conditions and our historical experience. The fair value of RSUs is based on the closing price of
Starbucks common stock on the award date, less the present value of expected dividends not received during the vesting period.
Compensation expense is recognized over the requisite service period for each separately vesting portion of the award, and only
for those awards expected to vest, with forfeitures estimated at the date of grant based on our historical experience and future
expectations.
Foreign Currency Translation
Our international operations generally use their local currency as their functional currency. Assets and liabilities are translated
at exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Income and expense accounts are translated at the average monthly
exchange rates during the year. Resulting translation adjustments are reported as a component of OCI and recorded in AOCI on
our consolidated balance sheets.
Income Taxes
We compute income taxes using the asset and liability method, under which deferred income taxes are recognized based on the
differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and the respective tax basis of our assets and liabilities. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured using current enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which
we expect the temporary differences to reverse. The effect of a change in tax rates on deferred taxes is recognized in income in
the period that includes the enactment date.
We routinely evaluate the likelihood of realizing the benefit of our deferred tax assets and may record a valuation allowance if,
based on all available evidence, we determine that some portion of the tax benefit will not be realized. In evaluating our ability
to recover our deferred tax assets within the jurisdiction from which they arise, we consider all available positive and negative
58

Starbucks Corporation

2016 Form 10-K

evidence, including scheduled reversals of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, tax-planning strategies, and
results of recent operations. If we determine that we would be able to realize our deferred tax assets in the future in excess of
their net recorded amount, we would make an adjustment to the deferred tax asset valuation allowance, which would reduce the
provision for income taxes.
In addition, our income tax returns are periodically audited by domestic and foreign tax authorities. These audits include review
of our tax filing positions, including the timing and amount of deductions taken and the allocation of income between tax
jurisdictions. We evaluate our exposures associated with our various tax filing positions and recognize a tax benefit from an
uncertain tax position only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained upon examination by the relevant
taxing authorities, including resolutions of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of our
position. The tax benefits recognized in the financial statements from such a position are measured based on the largest benefit
that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement. For uncertain tax positions that do not meet
this threshold, we record a related liability. We adjust our unrecognized tax benefit liability and income tax expense in the
period in which the uncertain tax position is effectively settled, the statute of limitations expires for the relevant taxing
authority to examine the tax position or when new information becomes available.
Starbucks recognizes interest and penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense on our consolidated statements
of earnings. Accrued interest and penalties are included within the related tax liability on our consolidated balance sheets.
Stock Split
On April 9, 2015, we effected a two-for-one stock split of our $0.001 par value common stock for shareholders of record as of
March 30, 2015. All share and per-share data in our consolidated financial statements and notes has been retroactively adjusted
to reflect this stock split. We adjusted shareholders' equity to reflect the stock split by reclassifying an amount equal to the par
value of the additional shares arising from the split from retained earnings to common stock during the second quarter of fiscal
2015, resulting in no net impact to shareholders' equity on our consolidated balance sheets.
Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share is computed based on the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the
period. Diluted earnings per share is computed based on the weighted average number of shares of common stock and the
effect of dilutive potential common shares outstanding during the period, calculated using the treasury stock method. Dilutive
potential common shares include outstanding stock options and RSUs. Performance-based RSUs are considered dilutive when
the related performance criterion has been met.
Common Stock Share Repurchases
We may repurchase shares of Starbucks common stock under a program authorized by our Board of Directors, including
pursuant to a contract, instruction or written plan meeting the requirements of Rule 10b5-1(c)(1) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934. Under applicable Washington State law, shares repurchased are retired and not displayed separately as treasury stock
on the financial statements. Instead, the par value of repurchased shares is deducted from common stock and the excess
repurchase price over par value is deducted from additional paid-in capital and from retained earnings, once additional paid-in
capital is depleted.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In October 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued guidance on the accounting for income tax effects
of intercompany sales or transfers of assets other than inventory. The guidance requires entities to recognize the income tax
impact of an intra-entity sale or transfer of an asset other than inventory when the sale or transfer occurs, rather than when the
assets has been sold to an outside party. The guidance will require a modified retrospective application with a cumulative
catch-up adjustment to opening retained earnings at the beginning of our first quarter of fiscal 2019 but permits adoption in an
earlier period. We are currently evaluating the impact this guidance will have on our consolidated financial statements and the
timing of adoption.
In June 2016, the FASB issued guidance on the measurement and recognition of credit losses on most financial assets. For trade
receivables, loans, and held-to-maturity debt securities, the current probable loss recognition methodology is being replaced by
an expected credit loss model. For available-for-sale debt securities, the recognition model on credit losses is generally
unchanged, except the losses will be presented as an adjustable allowance. The guidance will be applied retrospectively with
the cumulative effect recognized as of the date of adoption. The guidance will become effective at the beginning of our first
quarter of fiscal 2021 but can be adopted as early as the beginning of our first quarter of fiscal 2020. We are currently
evaluating the impact this guidance will have on our consolidated financial statements and the timing of adoption.
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In March 2016, the FASB issued guidance related to stock-based compensation, which changes the accounting and
classification of excess tax benefits and minimum tax withholdings on share-based awards. The guidance becomes effective on
a prospective basis at the beginning of our first quarter of fiscal 2018 but permits adoption in an earlier period. We are currently
evaluating the impact this guidance will have on our consolidated financial statements and the timing of adoption.
In March 2016, the FASB issued guidance for financial liabilities resulting from selling prepaid stored value products that are
redeemable at third-party merchants. Under the new guidance, expected breakage amounts associated with these products must
be recognized proportionately in earnings as redemption occurs. Our current accounting policy of applying the remote method
to all of our stored value cards, including cards redeemable at the third-party licensed locations, will no longer be allowed. The
guidance will become effective at the beginning of our first quarter of fiscal 2019, with the option to adopt in an earlier period.
As the guidance and timing of transition are consistent with the new revenue recognition standard issued by the FASB in May
2014 and discussed below, we expect to implement the provisions of both sets of guidance in the same period.
In February 2016, the FASB issued guidance on the recognition and measurement of leases. Under the new guidance, lessees
are required to recognize a lease liability, which represents the discounted obligation to make future minimum lease payments,
and a corresponding right-of-use asset on the balance sheet for most leases. The guidance retains the current accounting for
lessors and does not make significant changes to the recognition, measurement, and presentation of expenses and cash flows by
a lessee. Enhanced disclosures will also be required to give financial statement users the ability to assess the amount, timing
and uncertainty of cash flows arising from leases. The guidance will require modified retrospective application at the beginning
of our first quarter of fiscal 2020, with optional practical expedients, but permits adoption in an earlier period. We are currently
evaluating the impact this guidance will have on our consolidated financial statements. We expect this adoption will result in a
material increase in the assets and liabilities on our consolidated balance sheets and will likely have an insignificant impact on
our consolidated statements of earnings.
In January 2016, the FASB issued guidance on the recognition and measurement of financial instruments. This guidance retains
the current accounting for classifying and measuring investments in debt securities and loans, but requires equity investments
to be measured at fair value with subsequent changes recognized in net income, except for those accounted for under the equity
method or requiring consolidation. The guidance also changes the accounting for investments without a readily determinable
fair value and that do not qualify for the practical expedient to estimate fair value. A policy election can be made for these
investments whereby estimated fair value may be measured at cost and adjusted in subsequent periods for any impairment or
changes in observable prices of identical or similar investments. The new guidance will result in a cumulative effect adjustment
recognized in our balance sheet and will become effective for us at the beginning of our first quarter of fiscal 2019. We are
currently evaluating the impact of this guidance.
In November 2015, the FASB issued guidance on the presentation of deferred income taxes that requires deferred tax assets and
liabilities, along with related valuation allowances, to be classified as noncurrent on the balance sheet. As a result, each tax
jurisdiction will now only have one net noncurrent deferred tax asset or liability. The new guidance does not change the
existing requirement that prohibits offsetting deferred tax liabilities from one jurisdiction against deferred tax assets of another
jurisdiction. During the first quarter of fiscal 2016, we elected to early-adopt this guidance retrospectively. The following table
summarizes the adjustments made to conform prior period classifications to the new guidance (in millions):
September 27, 2015
As Filed

Current deferred income tax assets
Long-term deferred income tax assets
Current deferred income tax liabilities (included in Accrued liabilities)
Long-term deferred income tax liabilities (included in Other long-term
liabilities)
Net deferred tax asset

$

$

381.7
828.9
5.4
67.8
1,137.4

Reclass

$

As Adjusted

(381.7) $
351.9
(5.4)
(24.4)

$

—

$

—
1,180.8
—
43.4
1,137.4

In July 2015, the FASB issued guidance on the subsequent measurement of inventory, which changes the measurement from
lower of cost or market to lower of cost or net realizable value. The guidance will require prospective application at the
beginning of our first quarter of fiscal 2018. We do not expect the adoption of this guidance to have a material impact on our
financial statements.
In May 2014, the FASB issued guidance outlining a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue
arising from contracts with customers that supersedes most current revenue recognition guidance. This guidance requires an
entity to recognize revenue when it transfers promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The original effective date of
the guidance would have required us to adopt at the beginning of our first quarter of fiscal 2018; however, the FASB approved
an optional one-year deferral of the effective date. The new guidance may be applied retrospectively to each prior period
60

Starbucks Corporation

2016 Form 10-K

presented or retrospectively with the cumulative effect recognized as of the date of adoption. We are currently evaluating the
overall impact this guidance will have on our consolidated financial statements, as well as the expected timing and method of
adoption. Based on our preliminary assessment, we determined the adoption will change the timing of recognition and
classification of our stored value card breakage income, which is currently recognized using the remote method and recorded in
interest income and other, net. The new guidance will require application of the proportional method and classification within
total net revenues on our consolidated statements of earnings. Additionally, the new guidance requires enhanced disclosures,
including revenue recognition policies to identify performance obligations to customers and significant judgments in
measurement and recognition. We are continuing our assessment, which may identify other impacts.
Note 2: Acquisitions and Divestitures
Fiscal 2016
During the third quarter of fiscal 2016, we sold our ownership interest in our Germany retail business to AmRest Holdings SE
for a total of $47.3 million. This transaction converted these company-operated stores to a fully licensed market and resulted in
an insignificant pre-tax gain, which was included in interest income and other, net on our condensed consolidated statements of
earnings.
Fiscal 2015
During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2015, we sold our company-operated retail store assets and operations in Puerto Rico to
Baristas Del Caribe, LLC, converting these operations to a fully licensed market, for a total of $8.9 million. This transaction
resulted in an insignificant pre-tax gain, which was included in interest income and other, net on the consolidated statements of
earnings.
On September 23, 2014, we entered into a tender offer bid agreement with Starbucks Coffee Japan, Ltd. ("Starbucks Japan"), at
the time a 39.5% owned equity method investment, and our former joint venture partner, Sazaby League, Ltd. ("Sazaby"), to
acquire the remaining 60.5% ownership interest in Starbucks Japan for approximately $876 million, through a two-step tender
offer. On October 31, 2014, we acquired a controlling interest in Starbucks Japan by funding the first tender offer step with
$509 million in offshore cash. We assumed full ownership in the second quarter of fiscal 2015 by completing the second tender
offer step, and completed the related cash-out procedure during the remainder of fiscal 2015, which utilized a combined total of
$362 million in offshore cash. Acquiring Starbucks Japan further leverages our existing infrastructure to continue disciplined
retail store growth and expand our presence into other channels in the Japan market, such as consumer packaged goods
("CPG"), licensing and foodservice.
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The following table summarizes the final allocation of the total consideration to the fair values of the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed as of October 31, 2014, which are reported within our China/Asia Pacific segment, and has been adjusted
for the reclassification of deferred income taxes as discussed in Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (in
millions):
Consideration:
Cash paid for Sazaby's 39.5% equity interest
Fair value of our preexisting 39.5% equity interest
Total consideration
Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Other long-term assets
Other intangible assets
Goodwill
Total assets acquired
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Stored value card liability
Deferred income taxes
Other long-term liabilities
Total liabilities assumed
Noncontrolling interest
Total consideration

$
$

$

$

508.7
577.0
1,085.7

224.4
37.4
26.4
35.7
282.9
141.4
323.0
815.6
1,886.8
(54.5)
(115.9)
(36.5)
(67.3)
(115.8)
(390.0)
(411.1)
1,085.7

Other current and long-term assets acquired primarily include various deposits, specifically lease and key money deposits.
Accrued liabilities and other long-term liabilities assumed primarily include financing obligations associated with build-to-suit
leases as well as asset retirement obligations.
The intangible assets are finite-lived and include reacquired rights, licensing agreements with Starbucks Japan's current
licensees and Starbucks Japan's customer loyalty program. The reacquired rights to exclusively operate licensed Starbucks®
retail stores in Japan were assigned a fair value of $305.0 million; these rights will be amortized on a straight-line basis through
March 2021. Amortization expense for these finite-lived intangible assets for fiscal year 2016 was $48.2 million, and, as of
October 2, 2016, accumulated amortization was $101.6 million. Future amortization expense is estimated to be approximately
$52.0 million each year for the next four years, $27.0 million for the following year, and approximately $6.0 million thereafter.
The $815.6 million of goodwill represents the intangible assets that do not qualify for separate recognition and primarily
includes the acquired customer base, the acquired workforce including store partners in the region that have strong
relationships with these customers, the existing geographic retail and online presence, and the expected geographic presence in
new channels. The goodwill was allocated to the China/Asia Pacific segment and is not deductible for income tax purposes.
Due to foreign currency translation, the balance of goodwill related to the acquisition increased $55.3 million to $870.9 million
as of October 2, 2016.
As a result of this acquisition, we remeasured the carrying value of our preexisting 39.5% equity method investment to fair value,
which resulted in a pre-tax gain of $390.6 million that was presented separately as gain resulting from acquisition of joint venture
within other income and expenses on the consolidated statements of earnings. The fair value of $577.0 million was calculated
using an average of the income and market approach. The income approach fair value measurement was based on significant
inputs that are not observable in the market and thus represents a fair value measurement categorized within Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy. Key assumptions used in estimating future cash flows included projected revenue growth and operating expenses,
as well as the selection of an appropriate discount rate. Estimates of revenue growth and operating expenses were based on internal
projections and considered the historical performance of stores, local market economics and the business environment impacting
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the stores' performance. The discount rate applied was based on Starbucks Japan's weighted-average cost of capital and included
a company-specific risk premium. The market approach fair value measurement was based on the implied fair value of Starbucks
Japan using the purchase price of Sazaby's 39.5% ownership interest and the expected purchase price of the 21% remaining
noncontrolling interest.
We began consolidating Starbucks Japan's results of operations and cash flows into our consolidated financial statements
beginning after October 31, 2014. For the year ended September 27, 2015, Starbucks Japan's net revenues and net earnings
included in our consolidated statement of earnings were $1.1 billion and $108.5 million, respectively.
The following table provides the supplemental pro forma revenue and net earnings of the combined entity had the acquisition
date of Starbucks Japan been the first day of our first quarter of fiscal 2014 rather than during our first quarter of fiscal 2015 (in
millions):
Pro Forma (unaudited)
Year Ended
Sep 27, 2015

Revenue
Net earnings attributable to Starbucks(1)
(1)

$

19,254.5
2,380.9

Sep 28, 2014

$

17,646.4
2,449.9

The pro forma net earnings attributable to Starbucks for fiscal 2014 includes the acquisition-related gain of $390.6 million
and transaction and integration costs of $13.6 million for the year ended September 28, 2014.

The amounts in the supplemental pro forma earnings for the periods presented above fully eliminate intercompany transactions,
apply our accounting policies and reflect adjustments for additional occupancy costs, depreciation and amortization that would
have been charged assuming the same fair value adjustments to leases, property, plant and equipment and acquired intangibles
had been applied on September 30, 2013. These pro forma results are unaudited and are not necessarily indicative of results of
operations that would have occurred had the acquisition actually occurred in the prior year period or indicative of the results of
operations for any future period.
Fiscal 2014
During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014, we sold our Australian company-operated retail store assets and operations to the
Withers Group, converting these operations to a fully licensed market, for a total of $15.9 million. This transaction resulted in
an insignificant pre-tax gain, which was included in interest income and other, net on our consolidated statements of earnings.
Note 3:

Derivative Financial Instruments

Interest Rates
Depending on market conditions, we enter into interest rate swap agreements to hedge the variability in cash flows due to
changes in benchmark interest rates related to anticipated debt issuances. These agreements are cash settled at the time of the
pricing of the related debt. The effective portion of the derivative's gain or loss is recorded in accumulated other comprehensive
income ("AOCI") and is subsequently reclassified to interest expense over the life of the related debt.
During fiscal 2016, we entered into forward-starting interest rate swap agreements with an aggregate notional amount of $375
million related to the $500 million and $250 million of 5-year 2.100% Senior Notes (the "2021 notes") due February 2021 and
$500 million of 10-year 2.450% Senior Notes (the "2026 notes") due June 2026. Refer to Note 9, Debt, for details of the
components of our long-term debt. We cash settled these swap agreements at the time of pricing the 2021 and 2026 notes.
Foreign Currency
To reduce cash flow volatility from foreign currency fluctuations, we enter into forward and swap contracts to hedge portions
of cash flows of anticipated intercompany royalty payments, inventory purchases and intercompany borrowing and lending
activities. The effective portion of the derivative's gain or loss is recorded in AOCI and is subsequently reclassified to revenue,
cost of sales including occupancy costs or interest income and other, net, respectively, when the hedged exposure affects net
earnings.
In connection with the acquisition of Starbucks Japan, as discussed in Note 2, Acquisitions and Divestitures, we entered into
cross-currency swap contracts during the first and third quarters of fiscal 2015 to hedge the foreign currency transaction risk of
certain yen-denominated intercompany loans with a total notional value of ¥86.5 billion, or approximately $717 million as of
September 27, 2015. As of October 2, 2016, the total notional value of these cross-currency swap contracts was ¥66.8 billion,
or approximately, $660 million. Gains and losses from these swaps offset the changes in value of interest and principal
Starbucks Corporation

2016 Form 10-K

63

payments as a result of changes in foreign exchange rates. The difference between the U.S. dollar interest payments received
from the swap counterparty and the U.S. dollar equivalent of the Japanese yen interest payments, as recognized in interest
expense or interest income and other, net on our consolidated statements of earnings, is dependent on a number of market
factors, including relevant interest rate differentials and foreign exchange rates. These swaps have been designated as cash flow
hedges and, based on the timing of the settlement of these intercompany loans, matured or will mature in September 2016 or
November 2024. There are no credit-risk-related contingent features associated with these swaps, although we may hold or post
collateral depending upon the gain or loss position of the swap agreements.
We also enter into forward contracts to hedge the foreign currency exposure of our net investment in certain foreign operations.
The effective portion of the derivative's gain or loss is recorded in AOCI and is subsequently reclassified to net earnings when
the hedged net investment is either sold or substantially liquidated.
To mitigate the foreign exchange risk of certain balance sheet items, we enter into foreign currency forward and swap contracts
that are not designated as hedging instruments. Gains and losses from these derivatives are largely offset by the financial
impact of translating foreign currency denominated payables and receivables; both are recorded in interest income and other,
net.
Commodities
Depending on market conditions, we may enter into coffee futures contracts and collars to hedge a portion of anticipated cash
flows under our price-to-be-fixed green coffee contracts, which are described further in Note 5, Inventories. The effective
portion of each derivative's gain or loss is recorded in AOCI and is subsequently reclassified to cost of sales including
occupancy costs when the hedged exposure affects net earnings.
To mitigate the price uncertainty of a portion of our future purchases, primarily of dairy products, diesel fuel and other
commodities, we enter into swap contracts, futures and collars that are not designated as hedging instruments. Gains and losses
from these derivatives are recorded in interest income and other, net and help offset price fluctuations on our beverage, food,
packaging and transportation costs, which are included in cost of sales including occupancy costs on our consolidated
statements of earnings.
Gains and losses on derivative contracts designated as hedging instruments included in AOCI and expected to be reclassified
into earnings within 12 months, net of tax (in millions):
Net Gains/(Losses)
Expected to be
Reclassified from
AOCI into Earnings
within 12 Months

Net Gains/(Losses)
Included in AOCI
Oct 2,
2016

Sep 27,
2015

Contract
Remaining
Maturity
(Months)

Cash Flow Hedges:
Interest rates

$

20.5

$

30.1 $
(27.8)

2.9

0

—

98

Cross-currency swaps

(7.7)

Foreign currency - other

(0.4)

29.0

3.3

35

Coffee

(1.6)

(5.7)

(1.4)

6

1.3

1.3

—

0

Net Investment Hedges:
Foreign currency
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Pretax gains and losses on derivative contracts designated as hedging instruments recognized in other comprehensive income
("OCI") and reclassifications from AOCI to earnings (in millions):
Year Ended
Gains/(Losses) Recognized in
OCI Before Reclassifications
Oct 2,
2016

Cash Flow Hedges:
Interest rates

Gains/(Losses) Reclassified from
AOCI to Earnings

Sep 27,
2015

Oct 2,
2016

Sep 27,
2015

(10.3) $

(6.8) $

Cross-currency swaps

(75.7)

11.4

Foreign currency - other

(25.4)
1.7

52.0
(9.0)

19.1
(2.8)

26.1
(3.5)

—

4.3

—

7.2

$

Coffee
Net Investment Hedges:
Foreign currency

5.0

$

(101.1)

3.2
46.2

Pretax gains and losses on derivative contracts not designated as hedging instruments recognized in earnings (in millions):
Gains/(Losses) Recognized in
Earnings
Oct 2, 2016

Foreign currency - other
Dairy
Diesel fuel and other commodities

$

Sep 27, 2015

(5.7) $
(5.5)

27.1
(3.8)

(0.2)

(9.0)
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Notional amounts of outstanding derivative contracts (in millions):
Oct 2, 2016

Interest rates
Cross-currency swaps
Foreign currency - other
Coffee
Dairy
Diesel fuel and other commodities

$

—
660
688
7
76
46

Sep 27, 2015

$

125
717
577
38
43
14

Fair value of outstanding derivative contracts (in millions):
Derivative Assets
Oct 2, 2016

Designated Derivative Hedging Instruments:
Interest rates
Cross-currency swaps
Foreign currency - other
Coffee
Non-designated Derivative Hedging Instruments:
Foreign currency - other
Dairy
Diesel fuel and other commodities

$

—
—
20.8
1.8
6.2
1.5
3.8

Derivative Liabilities

Sep 27, 2015

$

0.2
26.9
45.4
—
32.7
0.1
0.2

Oct 2, 2016

$

—
57.0
24.0
—
6.5
1.6
0.5

Sep 27, 2015

$

—
16.3
2.2
2.7
10.1
1.1
1.3

Additional disclosures related to cash flow hedge gains and losses included in AOCI, as well as subsequent reclassifications to
earnings, are included in Note 11, Equity.
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Note 4:

Fair Value Measurements

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis (in millions):
Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using

Balance at
Oct 2, 2016

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments:
Available-for-sale securities
Agency obligations
Commercial paper
Corporate debt securities
Foreign government obligations
U.S. government treasury securities
State and local government obligations
Certificates of deposit
Total available-for-sale securities
Trading securities
Total short-term investments
Prepaid expenses and other current assets:
Derivative assets
Long-term investments:
Available-for-sale securities
Agency obligations
Corporate debt securities
Auction rate securities
Foreign government obligations
U.S. government treasury securities
State and local government obligations
Mortgage and other asset-backed securities
Total long-term investments
Other long-term assets:
Derivative assets
Total assets
Liabilities:
Accrued liabilities:
Derivative liabilities
Other long-term liabilities:
Derivative liabilities
Total liabilities

$

2,128.8

Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for
Identical Assets
(Level 1)

$

2,128.8

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

$

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

—

$

—

1.3
2.6
34.2
5.5
15.8
0.5
5.8
65.7
68.7
134.4

—
—
—
—
15.8
—
—
15.8
68.7
84.5

1.3
2.6
34.2
5.5
—
0.5
5.8
49.9
—
49.9

—
—
—

27.7

3.1

24.6

—

44.4
459.3
5.7
46.7
358.2
57.5
169.9
1,141.7

—
—
—
—
358.2
—
—
358.2

44.4
459.3
—
46.7
—
57.5
169.9
777.8

—
—
5.7
—
—
—
—
5.7

$

6.4
3,439.0

$

—
2,574.6

$

6.4
858.7

$

—
5.7

$

18.0

$

1.7

$

16.3

$

—

$

71.6
89.6

$

—
1.7

$

71.6
87.9

$

—
—
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Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using

Balance at
Sep 27, 2015

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments:
Available-for-sale securities
Corporate debt securities
Foreign government obligations
State and local government obligations
Total available-for-sale securities
Trading securities
Total short-term investments
Prepaid expenses and other current assets:
Derivative assets
Long-term investments:
Available-for-sale securities
Agency obligations
Corporate debt securities
Auction rate securities
Foreign government obligations
U.S. government treasury securities
State and local government obligations
Mortgage and other asset-backed securities
Total long-term investments
Other long-term assets:
Derivative assets
Total assets
Liabilities:
Accrued liabilities:
Derivative liabilities
Other long-term liabilities:
Derivative liabilities
Total

$

1,530.1

Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for
Identical Assets
(Level 1)

$

1,530.1

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

$

—

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

$

—

10.2
2.0
3.3
15.5
65.8
81.3

—
—
—
—
65.8
65.8

10.2
2.0
3.3
15.5
—
15.5

—
—
—
—
—
—

50.8

—

50.8

—

8.6
121.8
5.9
18.5
104.8
9.7
43.2
312.5

—
—
—
—
104.8
—
—
104.8

8.6
121.8
—
18.5
—
9.7
43.2
201.8

—
—
5.9
—
—
—
—
5.9

$

54.7
2,029.4

$

—
1,700.7

$

54.7
322.8

$

—
5.9

$

19.2

$

3.6

$

15.6

$

—

$

14.5
33.7

$

—
3.6

$

14.5
30.1

$

—
—

There were no material transfers between levels and there was no significant activity within Level 3 instruments during the
periods presented. The fair values of any financial instruments presented above exclude the impact of netting assets and
liabilities when a legally enforceable master netting agreement exists.
Available-for-sale Securities
Long-term investments generally mature within 4 years. Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities were $680.7
million, $600.6 million, and $1.5 billion for fiscal years 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The increase in fiscal 2014 was due
to the liquidation of a significant portion of our offshore investment portfolio in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014 in anticipation
of funding the acquisition of Starbucks Japan. Realized gains and losses on sales and maturities of available-for-sale securities
were not material for fiscal years 2016, 2015, and 2014. Gross unrealized holding gains and losses on available-for-sale
securities were not material as of October 2, 2016 and September 27, 2015.
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Trading Securities
Trading securities include equity mutual funds and exchange-traded funds. Our trading securities portfolio approximates a
portion of our liability under our Management Deferred Compensation Plan ("MDCP"), a defined contribution plan. Our
MDCP liability was $101.5 million and $98.3 million as of October 2, 2016 and September 27, 2015, respectively. The changes
in net unrealized holding gains and losses in the trading securities portfolio included in earnings for fiscal years 2016 and 2014
were net gains of $3.6 million and $1.2 million, respectively, and a net loss of $4.5 million in fiscal year 2015. Gross unrealized
holding gains and losses on trading securities were not material as of October 2, 2016 and September 27, 2015.
Derivative Assets and Liabilities
Derivative assets and liabilities include foreign currency forward contracts, commodity futures contracts, collars and swaps,
which are described further in Note 3, Derivative Financial Instruments.
Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis
Assets and liabilities recognized or disclosed at fair value on a nonrecurring basis include items such as property, plant and
equipment, goodwill and other intangible assets, equity and cost method investments, and other assets. These assets are
measured at fair value if determined to be impaired. Impairment of property, plant, and equipment is included at Note 1,
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. During fiscal 2016 and 2015, there were no other material fair value adjustments.
Fair Value of Other Financial Instruments
The estimated fair value of our long-term debt based on the quoted market price (Level 2) is included at Note 9, Debt.
Note 5:

Inventories (in millions)
Oct 2, 2016

Coffee:
Unroasted
Roasted
Other merchandise held for sale
Packaging and other supplies
Total

Sep 27, 2015

$

561.6
300.4
308.6
207.9

$

529.4
279.7
318.3
179.0

$

1,378.5

$

1,306.4

Other merchandise held for sale includes, among other items, serveware and tea. Inventory levels vary due to seasonality,
commodity market supply and price fluctuations.
As of October 2, 2016, we had committed to purchasing green coffee totaling $466 million under fixed-price contracts and an
estimated $641 million under price-to-be-fixed contracts. As of October 2, 2016, approximately $7 million of our price-to-befixed contracts were effectively fixed through the use of futures contracts. Price-to-be-fixed contracts are purchase
commitments whereby the quality, quantity, delivery period and other negotiated terms are agreed upon, but the date, and
therefore the price, at which the base "C" coffee commodity price component will be fixed has not yet been established. For
most contracts, either Starbucks or the seller has the option to "fix" the base "C" coffee commodity price prior to the delivery
date. For other contracts, Starbucks and the seller may agree upon pricing parameters determined by the base "C" coffee
commodity price. Until prices are fixed, we estimate the total cost of these purchase commitments. We believe, based on
relationships established with our suppliers in the past, the risk of non-delivery on these purchase commitments is remote.
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Note 6:

Equity and Cost Investments (in millions)
Oct 2,
2016

Equity method investments
Cost method investments
Total

$
$

Sep 27,
2015

305.7
48.8
354.5

$
$

306.4
45.6
352.0

Equity Method Investments
As of October 2, 2016, we had a 50% ownership interest in each of the following international equity method investees:
President Starbucks Coffee (Shanghai); Starbucks Coffee Korea Co., Ltd.; President Starbucks Coffee Corporation (Taiwan)
Company Limited; and Tata Starbucks Limited (India). These international entities operate licensed Starbucks® retail stores.
We also license the rights to produce and distribute Starbucks-branded products to our 50% owned joint venture, The North
American Coffee Partnership with the Pepsi-Cola Company, which develops and distributes bottled Starbucks® beverages,
including Frappuccino® coffee drinks, Starbucks Doubleshot® espresso drinks, Starbucks Refreshers® beverages, and
Starbucks® Iced Espresso Classics.
In the first quarter of fiscal 2016, we sold our 49% ownership interest in our Spanish joint venture, Starbucks Coffee España,
S.L. ("Starbucks Spain"), to our joint venture partner, Sigla S.A. (Grupo Vips), for a total purchase price of $30.2 million. This
transaction resulted in an insignificant pre-tax gain, which was included in interest income and other, net on our consolidated
statements of earnings.
In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014, we sold our 50% equity method ownership interest in our Malaysian joint venture, Berjaya
Starbucks Coffee Company Sdn. Bhd., to our joint venture partner, Berjaya Food Berhad, for a total purchase price of $88.0
million. This transaction resulted in a pre-tax gain of $67.8 million, which was included in interest income and other, net on our
consolidated statements of earnings.
Our share of income and losses from our equity method investments is included in income from equity investees on our
consolidated statements of earnings. Also included in this line item is our proportionate share of gross profit resulting from
coffee and other product sales to, and royalty and license fee revenues generated from, equity investees. Revenues generated
from these related parties were $164.2 million, $153.4 million, and $219.2 million in fiscal years 2016, 2015 and 2014,
respectively. Related costs of sales were $97.5 million, $94.5 million, and $121.2 million in fiscal years 2016, 2015 and 2014,
respectively. As of October 2, 2016 and September 27, 2015, there were $55.7 million and $36.7 million of accounts receivable
from equity investees, respectively, on our consolidated balance sheets, primarily related to product sales and royalty revenues.
Cost Method Investments
As of October 2, 2016, we had $23 million invested in equity interests of entities that develop and operate Starbucks® licensed
stores in several global markets. We have the ability to acquire additional interests in some of these cost method investees at
certain intervals. Depending on our total percentage ownership interest and our ability to exercise significant influence over
financial and operating policies, additional investments may require application of the equity method of accounting.
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Note 7:

Supplemental Balance Sheet Information (in millions)

Property, Plant and Equipment, net
Oct 2, 2016

Land
Buildings
Leasehold improvements
Store equipment
Roasting equipment
Furniture, fixtures and other
Work in progress
Property, plant and equipment, gross
Accumulated depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, net

$

$

Sep 27, 2015

46.6 $
458.4
5,892.9
1,931.7
605.4
1,366.9
271.4
10,573.3
(6,039.5)
4,533.8

$

46.6
411.5
5,409.6
1,707.5
542.4
1,281.7
242.5
9,641.8
(5,553.5)
4,088.3

Accrued Liabilities
Oct 2, 2016

Accrued compensation and related costs
Accrued occupancy costs
Accrued taxes
Accrued dividends payable
Accrued capital and other operating expenditures
Total accrued liabilities
Note 8:

Sep 27, 2015

$

510.8
137.5
368.4
365.1
617.3

$

522.3
137.2
259.0
297.0
539.8

$

1,999.1

$

1,755.3

Other Intangible Assets and Goodwill

Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets
(in millions)
Trade names, trademarks and patents
Other indefinite-lived intangible assets
Total indefinite-lived intangible assets

Oct 2, 2016

$
$

207.8
15.1
222.9

Sep 27, 2015

$
$

202.8
15.1
217.9

Additional disclosure regarding changes in our intangible assets due to acquisitions is included at Note 2, Acquisitions and
Divestitures.
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Goodwill
Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by reportable operating segment (in millions):
China/
Asia Pacific

Americas

Goodwill balance at September 28, 2014
Acquisition/(divestiture)
Impairment
Other
Goodwill balance at September 27, 2015

$

Acquisition/(divestiture)
Other
Goodwill balance at October 2, 2016

Channel
Development

EMEA

74.9 $
815.6
—
(86.4)

59.1 $
—
—
(1.7)

$

219.0 $
(2.5)
—
(5.3)
211.2 $

804.1

57.4

$

—
0.4
211.6

—
140.8
944.9

$

$

$

23.8
—
—
—
23.8

$

—
—
23.8

(2.6)
$

0.3
55.1

All Other
Segments

$

$

Total

479.4 $
—
(0.5)
—
478.9

$ 1,575.4

5.3
$

856.2
813.1
(0.5)
(93.4)

2.7
141.5
$ 1,719.6

484.2

"Other" primarily consists of changes in the goodwill balance as a result of foreign currency translation.
Finite-Lived Intangible Assets
Oct 2, 2016
Gross
Carrying
Amount

(in millions)
Acquired and reacquired rights
Acquired trade secrets and processes
Trade names, trademarks and patents
Licensing agreements
Other finite-lived intangible assets
Total finite-lived intangible assets

$

$

361.3
27.6
29.4
16.0
7.2
441.5

Accumulated
Amortization

$

$

Sep 27, 2015
Gross
Carrying
Amount

Net Carrying
Amount

(114.5) $
(11.0)
(15.2)
(2.8)
(4.6)
(148.1) $

246.8
16.6
14.2
13.2
2.6
293.4

$

$

308.6
27.6
24.5
13.4
6.5
380.6

Accumulated
Amortization

$

$

Net Carrying
Amount

(52.5) $
(8.2)
(13.0)
(1.1)
(3.3)
(78.1) $

256.1
19.4
11.5
12.3
3.2
302.5

Amortization expense for finite-lived intangible assets was $57.3 million, $50.0 million, and $8.7 million during fiscal 2016,
2015 and 2014, respectively.
Estimated future amortization expense as of October 2, 2016 (in millions):
Fiscal Year Ending

2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
Thereafter
Total estimated future amortization expense

$

$

62.0
60.6
59.5
59.4
33.9
18.0
293.4

Additional disclosure regarding changes in our intangible assets due to acquisitions is included at Note 2, Acquisitions and
Divestitures.
Note 9:

Debt

Revolving Credit Facility and Commercial Paper Program
In the first quarter of fiscal 2016, we replaced our 2013 credit facility with our new $1.5 billion unsecured, revolving 2016
credit facility (the "credit facility") with various banks, of which $150 million may be used for issuances of letters of credit.
The credit facility is available for working capital, capital expenditures and other corporate purposes, including acquisitions
and share repurchases, and is currently set to mature on November 6, 2020. Starbucks has the option, subject to negotiation and
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agreement with the related banks, to increase the maximum commitment amount by an additional $750 million. Borrowings
under the credit facility will bear interest at a variable rate based on LIBOR, and, for U.S. dollar-denominated loans under
certain circumstances, a Base Rate (as defined in the credit facility), in each case plus an applicable margin. The applicable
margin is based on the better of (i) the Company's long-term credit ratings assigned by Moody's and Standard & Poor's rating
agencies and (ii) the Company's fixed charge coverage ratio, pursuant to a pricing grid set forth in the credit agreement. The
current applicable margin is 0.565% for Eurocurrency Rate Loans and 0.00% (nil) for Base Rate Loans. The credit facility
contains provisions requiring us to maintain compliance with certain covenants, including a minimum fixed charge coverage
ratio, which measures our ability to cover financing expenses. As of October 2, 2016, we were in compliance with all
applicable covenants. No amounts were outstanding under our credit facility as of October 2, 2016.
Under our commercial paper program, we may issue unsecured commercial paper notes up to a maximum aggregate amount
outstanding at any time of $1 billion, with individual maturities that may vary but not exceed 397 days from the date of issue.
Amounts outstanding under the commercial paper program are required to be backstopped by available commitments under our
credit facility discussed above. The proceeds from borrowings under our commercial paper program may be used for working
capital needs, capital expenditures and other corporate purposes, including, but not limited to, business expansion, payment of
cash dividends on our common stock and share repurchases. As of October 2, 2016, availability under our commercial paper
program was approximately $1 billion (which represents the full committed credit facility amount, as no amounts were
outstanding under our commercial paper program).
Long-term Debt
In May 2016, we issued long-term debt in an underwritten registered public offering, which consisted of $500 million of
10-year 2.450% Senior Notes (the "2026 notes") due June 2026. Interest on the 2026 notes is payable semi-annually on June 15
and December 15 of each year, commencing on December 15, 2016.
In February 2016, we issued long-term debt in an underwritten registered public offering, which consisted of $500 million of
5-year 2.100% Senior Notes (the "2021 notes") due February 2021. In May 2016, we reopened this offering with the same
terms and issued an additional $250 million of Senior Notes (collectively, the "2021 notes") for an aggregate amount
outstanding of $750 million. Interest on the 2021 notes is payable semi-annually on February 4 and August 4 of each year,
commencing on August 4, 2016.
In July 2015, we redeemed our $550 million of 6.250% Senior Notes (the "2017 notes") originally scheduled to mature in
August 2017. The redemption resulted in a charge of $61.1 million, which is presented separately as loss on extinguishment of
debt within other income and expenses on our consolidated statements of earnings. This loss primarily relates to the optional
redemption payment as outlined in the 2017 notes indenture, as well as non-cash expenses related to the previously capitalized
original issuance costs and accelerated amortization of the unamortized discount. In connection with the redemption, we also
reclassified $2.0 million from accumulated other comprehensive income to interest expense on our consolidated statements of
earnings related to remaining unrecognized losses from interest rate contracts entered into in conjunction with the 2017 notes
and designated as cash flow hedges.
In June 2015, we issued long-term debt in an underwritten registered public offering, which consisted of $500 million of 7-year
2.700% Senior Notes (the "2022 notes") due June 2022, and $350 million of 30-year 4.300% Senior Notes (the "2045 notes")
due June 2045. Interest on the 2022 and 2045 notes is payable semi-annually on June 15 and December 15 of each year,
commencing on December 15, 2015.
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Components of long-term debt including the associated interest rates and related fair values by calendar maturity (in millions,
except interest rates):
Oct 2, 2016

Issuance

Face Value

2016 notes
2018 notes
2021 notes
2021 notes
2022 notes
2023 notes
2026 notes
2045 notes
Total
Aggregate unamortized
premium/(discount)
Total
(1)

$

$

Sep 27, 2015

Estimated Fair
Value

400.0 $
350.0
500.0
250.0
500.0
750.0
500.0
350.0
3,600.0

400
357
511
255
526
839
509
417
3,814

2.2
3,602.2

Face Value

$

Estimated Fair
Value

400.0 $
350.0
—
—
500.0
750.0
—
350.0
2,350.0

Stated Interest
Rate

400
354
—
—
503
790
—
355
2,402

0.875%
2.000%
2.100%
2.100%
2.700%
3.850%
2.450%
4.300%

Effective
Interest Rate (1)

0.941%
2.012%
2.293%
1.600%
2.819%
2.860%
2.511%
4.348%

(2.5)
$

2,347.5

Includes the effects of the amortization of any premium or discount and any gain or loss upon settlement of related treasury
locks or forward-starting interest rate swaps utilized to hedge the interest rate risk prior to the debt issuance.

The indentures under which the above notes were issued also require us to maintain compliance with certain covenants,
including limits on future liens and sale and leaseback transactions on certain material properties. As of October 2, 2016, we
were in compliance with each of these covenants.
The following table summarizes our long-term debt maturities as of October 2, 2016 by fiscal year (in millions):

Fiscal Year

Total

2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
Thereafter
Total

$

$

400.0
—
350.0
—
750.0
2,100.0
3,600.0

Interest Expense
Interest expense, net of interest capitalized, was $81.3 million, $70.5 million, and $64.1 million in fiscal 2016, 2015 and 2014,
respectively. In fiscal 2016, 2015 and 2014, $0.9 million, $3.6 million, and $6.2 million, respectively, of interest was
capitalized for asset construction projects.
Note 10:

Leases

Rent expense under operating lease agreements (in millions):
Fiscal Year Ended

Oct 2, 2016

Minimum rent
Contingent rent
Total
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1,092.5
130.7
1,223.2

Sep 27, 2015

$
$

1,026.3
111.5
1,137.8

Sep 28, 2014

$
$

907.4
66.8
974.2

Minimum future rental payments under non-cancelable operating leases and lease financing arrangements as of October 2,
2016 (in millions):
Operating
Leases

Fiscal Year Ending

2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
Thereafter
Total minimum lease payments

$

$

Lease Financing
Arrangements

1,125.1
1,006.2
896.4
821.3
740.5
2,695.5
7,285.0

$

$

4.3
4.3
4.3
4.3
4.1
40.7
62.0

We have subleases related to certain of our operating leases. During fiscal 2016, 2015 and 2014, we recognized sublease
income of $14.6 million, $11.9 million, and $13.3 million, respectively. Additionally, as of October 2, 2016 and September 27,
2015, the gross carrying values of assets related to build-to-suit lease arrangements accounted for as financing leases were
$92.7 million and $66.8 million, respectively, with associated accumulated depreciation of $6.2 million and $2.5 million,
respectively.
Note 11:

Equity

In addition to 2.4 billion shares of authorized common stock with $0.001 par value per share, we have authorized 7.5 million
shares of preferred stock, none of which was outstanding at October 2, 2016.
Included in additional paid-in capital in our consolidated statements of equity as of October 2, 2016 and September 27, 2015 is
$39.4 million related to the increase in value of our share of the net assets of Starbucks Japan at the time of its initial public
stock offering in fiscal 2002. Also included in additional paid-in capital as of October 2, 2016 and September 27, 2015 is $1.7
million, which represents the difference between the carrying value of the remaining outstanding noncontrolling interests in
Starbucks Japan prior to obtaining full ownership and the cash paid to acquire the noncontrolling interests.
We repurchased 34.9 million shares of common stock at a total cost of $2.0 billion, and 29.0 million shares at a total cost of
$1.4 billion for the years ended October 2, 2016 and September 27, 2015, respectively. On April 21, 2016, we announced that
our Board of Directors approved an increase of 100 million shares to the program. As of October 2, 2016, 117.8 million shares
remained available for repurchase under current authorizations.
During fiscal years 2016 and 2015, our Board of Directors declared the following dividends (in millions, except per share
amounts):
Dividend Per Share

Record date

Total Amount

Payment Date

Fiscal Year 2016:
First quarter
Second quarter
Third quarter
Fourth quarter

$
$
$
$

0.20
0.20
0.20
0.25

February 4, 2016
May 5, 2016
August 4, 2016
November 17, 2016

$
$
$
$

294.9
293.0
293.2
365.1

February 19, 2016
May 20, 2016
August 19, 2016
December 2, 2016

First quarter
Second quarter
Third quarter

$
$
$

0.16
0.16
0.16

February 5, 2015
May 7, 2015
August 6, 2015

$
$
$

240.1
240.1
239.0

February 20, 2015
May 22, 2015
August 21, 2015

Fourth quarter

$

0.20

November 12, 2015

$

297.0

November 27, 2015

Fiscal Year 2015:

Comprehensive Income
Comprehensive income includes all changes in equity during the period, except those resulting from transactions with our
shareholders. Comprehensive income is comprised of net earnings and other comprehensive income. Accumulated other
comprehensive income reported on our consolidated balance sheets consists of foreign currency translation adjustments and
other and the unrealized gains and losses, net of applicable taxes, on available-for-sale securities and on derivative instruments
designated and qualifying as cash flow and net investment hedges.
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Changes in accumulated other comprehensive income ("AOCI") by component, for year ended October 2, 2016, net of tax:

(in millions)
October 2, 2016
Net gains/(losses) in AOCI, beginning of period
Net gains/(losses) recognized in OCI before
reclassifications
Net (gains)/losses reclassified from AOCI to
earnings
Other comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to
Starbucks
Net gains/(losses) in AOCI, end of period

Availablefor-Sale
Securities

Cash Flow
Hedges

(0.1) $

$

$

Net gains/(losses) in AOCI, beginning of period
Net gains/(losses) recognized in OCI before
reclassifications
Net (gains)/losses reclassified from AOCI to
earnings
Other comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to
Starbucks
Purchase of noncontrolling interest
Net gains/(losses) in AOCI, end of period

$

(226.2) $

(199.4)

—

104.5

24.6

(1.0)

67.4

—

—

66.4

1.2

(14.7)

—

104.5

91.0

$

10.9

Cash Flow
Hedges

(0.4) $

$

1.3

Total

(82.1)

1.1

$

$

Translation
Adjustment
and Other

2.2

Availablefor-Sale
Securities

(in millions)
September 27, 2015

25.6

Net
Investment
Hedges

46.3

$

1.3

Net
Investment
Hedges

$

3.2

$

(121.7) $

Translation
Adjustment
and Other

$

(23.8) $

(108.4)

Total

25.3

0.9

30.8

2.7

(185.6)

(151.2)

(0.6)

(51.5)

(4.6)

14.3

(42.4)

0.3
—
(0.1) $

(20.7)

(1.9)

—
25.6

—
1.3

$

$

(171.3)
(31.1)
(226.2) $

(193.6)
(31.1)
(199.4)

Impact of reclassifications from AOCI on the consolidated statements of earnings (in millions):
Amounts Reclassified from AOCI
Fiscal Year Ended

AOCI
Components

Oct 2, 2016

Gains on available-for-sale securities
Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges
Interest rate hedges
Cross-currency swaps
Foreign currency hedges
Foreign currency/coffee hedges

$

(1)

Gains/(losses) on net investment hedges
Translation adjustment(2)
Starbucks Japan
Other

1.6

Sep 27, 2015

$

5.0
(101.1)
4.9

3.2
46.2
14.0

11.4
—

8.6
7.2

—
—
(78.2)
$

1.0

11.8
(66.4) $

Affected Line Item in
the Statements of Earnings

Interest income and other, net
Interest expense
Interest income and other, net
Revenue
Cost of sales including occupancy costs
Gain resulting from acquisition of joint venture

(7.2) Gain resulting from acquisition of joint venture
(7.1) Interest income and other, net
65.9 Total before tax
(23.5) Tax (expense)/benefit
42.4 Net of tax

(1)

Release of pretax cumulative net gains in AOCI related to our net investment derivative instruments used to hedge our
preexisting 39.5% equity method investment in Starbucks Japan.

(2)

Release of cumulative translation adjustments to earnings upon sale or liquidation of foreign business.
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Note 12:

Employee Stock and Benefit Plans

We maintain several equity incentive plans under which we may grant non-qualified stock options, incentive stock options,
restricted stock, restricted stock units ("RSUs") or stock appreciation rights to employees, non-employee directors and
consultants. We issue new shares of common stock upon exercise of stock options and the vesting of RSUs. We also have an
employee stock purchase plan ("ESPP").
As of October 2, 2016, there were 86.7 million shares of common stock available for issuance pursuant to future equity-based
compensation awards and 13.9 million shares available for issuance under our ESPP.
Stock-based compensation expense recognized in the consolidated financial statements (in millions):
Fiscal Year Ended

Options
RSUs
Total stock-based compensation expense recognized in the
consolidated statements of earnings
Total related tax benefit
Total capitalized stock-based compensation included in net
property, plant and equipment and inventories on the consolidated
balance sheets

Oct 2, 2016

Sep 27, 2015

Sep 28, 2014

$

42.7
175.4

$

37.8
172.0

$

41.8
141.4

$
$

218.1
73.0

$
$

209.8
72.3

$
$

183.2
63.4

$

1.5

$

1.9

$

1.9

Stock Option Plans
Stock options to purchase our common stock are granted at the fair value of the stock on the grant date. The majority of options
become exercisable in four equal installments beginning a year from the grant date and generally expire 10 years from the grant
date. Options granted to non-employee directors generally vest over one to three years. Nearly all outstanding stock options are
non-qualified stock options.
The fair value of stock option awards was estimated at the grant date with the following weighted average assumptions for
fiscal years 2016, 2015 and 2014:
Employee Stock Options
Granted During the Period
Fiscal Year Ended

Expected term (in years)
Expected stock price volatility
Risk-free interest rate
Expected dividend yield
Weighted average grant price
Estimated fair value per option granted

2016

2015

$

3.9
23.9%
1.2%
1.3%
60.20
$

$

10.54

$

2014

4.2
22.3%
1.1%
1.6%
39.89
$
6.58

$

4.5
26.8%
1.1%
1.3%
40.12
8.36

The expected term of the options represents the estimated period of time until exercise and is based on historical experience of
similar awards, giving consideration to the contractual terms, vesting schedules and expectations of future employee behavior.
Expected stock price volatility is based on a combination of historical volatility of our stock and the one-year implied volatility
of Starbucks traded options, for the related vesting periods. The risk-free interest rate is based on the implied yield available on
U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issues with an equivalent remaining term. The dividend yield assumption is based on our anticipated
cash dividend payouts. The amounts shown above for the estimated fair value per option granted are before the estimated effect
of forfeitures, which reduce the amount of expense recorded in the consolidated statements of earnings.
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Stock option transactions for the year ended October 2, 2016 (in millions, except per share and contractual life amounts):
Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price
per Share

Shares
Subject to
Options

Outstanding, September 27, 2015
Granted
Exercised
Expired/forfeited
Outstanding, October 2, 2016
Exercisable, October 2, 2016
Vested and expected to vest, October 2, 2016

33.6 $
6.1
(6.7)
(1.7)
31.3
20.1
30.1

23.81
60.20
20.61
40.94
30.59
21.01
29.78

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Contractual
Life (Years)

6.0

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value

$

1,150

5.8
4.4
5.7

771
670
765

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above, which is the amount by which the market value of the underlying stock
exceeded the exercise price of outstanding options, is before applicable income taxes and represents the amount optionees
would have realized if all in-the-money options had been exercised on the last business day of the period indicated.
As of October 2, 2016, total unrecognized stock-based compensation expense, net of estimated forfeitures, related to nonvested
options was approximately $38 million, before income taxes, and is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period
of approximately 2.8 years. The total intrinsic value of options exercised was $254 million, $358 million, and $258 million
during fiscal years 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The total fair value of options vested was $37 million, $36 million, and
$44 million during fiscal years 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
RSUs
We have both time-vested and performance-based RSUs. Time-vested RSUs are awarded to eligible employees and nonemployee directors and entitle the grantee to receive shares of common stock at the end of a vesting period, subject solely to the
employee’s continuing employment or the non-employee director's continuing service. The majority of time-vested RSUs vest
in two equal annual installments beginning a year from the grant date. Our performance-based RSUs are awarded to eligible
employees and entitle the grantee to receive shares of common stock if we achieve specified performance goals during the
performance period and the grantee remains employed during the subsequent vesting period. The majority of performancebased RSUs vest in two equal annual installments beginning two years from the grant date.
RSU transactions for the year ended October 2, 2016 (in millions, except per share and contractual life amounts):
Weighted
Average
Grant Date
Fair Value
per Share

Number
of
Shares

Nonvested, September 27, 2015
Granted
Vested
Forfeited/canceled
Nonvested, October 2, 2016

10.7 $
4.1
(4.9)
(1.6)
8.3

36.35
58.81
34.44
45.82
46.15

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Contractual
Life (Years)

1.0

0.9

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value

$

620

448

For fiscal 2015 and 2014, the weighted average fair value per RSU granted was $38.56 and $40.07, respectively. As of
October 2, 2016, total unrecognized stock-based compensation expense related to nonvested RSUs, net of estimated forfeitures,
was approximately $116 million, before income taxes, and is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of
approximately 2.0 years. The total fair value of RSUs vested was $169 million, $137 million and $103 million during fiscal
years 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
ESPP
Our ESPP allows eligible employees to contribute up to 10% of their base earnings toward the quarterly purchase of our
common stock, subject to an annual maximum dollar amount. The purchase price is 95% of the fair market value of the stock
on the last business day of the quarterly offering period. The number of shares issued under our ESPP was 0.5 million in fiscal
2016.
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Deferred Compensation Plan
We have a Deferred Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors under which non-employee directors may, for any fiscal
year, irrevocably elect to defer receipt of shares of common stock the director would have received upon vesting of restricted
stock units. The number of deferred shares outstanding related to deferrals made under this plan is not material.
Defined Contribution Plans
We maintain voluntary defined contribution plans, both qualified and non-qualified, covering eligible employees as defined in
the plan documents. Participating employees may elect to defer and contribute a portion of their eligible compensation to the
plans up to limits stated in the plan documents, not to exceed the dollar amounts set by applicable laws.
Our matching contributions to all U.S. and non-U.S. plans were $86.2 million, $70.9 million and $73.0 million in fiscal years
2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
Note 13:

Income Taxes

Components of earnings before income taxes (in millions):
Oct 2, 2016

Fiscal Year Ended

United States
Foreign
Total earnings before income taxes

$
$

Sep 27, 2015

3,415.7
782.9
4,198.6

$

2,837.2
1,065.8
3,903.0

$

Sep 28, 2014

$
$

2,572.4
587.3
3,159.7

Provision/(benefit) for income taxes (in millions):
Oct 2, 2016

Fiscal Year Ended

Current taxes:
U.S. federal
U.S. state and local
Foreign
Total current taxes
Deferred taxes:
U.S. federal
U.S. state and local
Foreign
Total deferred taxes
Total income tax expense

$

Sep 27, 2015

704.1
166.5
218.5
1,089.1

$

801.0
150.1
172.2
1,123.3

351.3
25.8
(86.5)
$

Sep 28, 2014

$

56.5
4.0
(40.1)

290.6
1,379.7

20.4
1,143.7

$

822.7
132.9
128.8
1,084.4
12.0
(4.9)
0.5

$

7.6
1,092.0

Reconciliation of the statutory U.S. federal income tax rate with our effective income tax rate:
Fiscal Year Ended

Oct 2, 2016

Sep 27, 2015

Statutory rate
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit
Benefits and taxes related to foreign operations
Domestic production activity deduction
Gain resulting from acquisition of joint venture
Other, net

35.0%
3.0
(2.2)
(1.9)

Effective tax rate

Sep 28, 2014

35.0%
2.6
(1.9)
(0.7)

—

35.0%
2.8
(2.1)
(2.2)
(3.7)

(1.0)

(0.5)

(0.4)

32.9%

29.3%

34.6%
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U.S. income and foreign withholding taxes have not been provided on approximately $3.3 billion of cumulative undistributed
earnings of foreign subsidiaries and equity investees. We intend to reinvest these earnings for the foreseeable future. If these
amounts were distributed to the U.S., in the form of dividends or otherwise, we would be subject to additional U.S. income
taxes, which could be material. Determination of the amount of unrecognized deferred income tax liabilities on these earnings
is not practicable because of the complexities with its hypothetical calculation, and the amount of liability, if any, is dependent
on circumstances existing if and when remittance occurs.
Tax effect of temporary differences and carryforwards that comprise significant portions of deferred tax assets and liabilities (in
millions):
Oct 2, 2016

Deferred tax assets:
Property, plant and equipment
Accrued occupancy costs
Accrued compensation and related costs
Stored value card liability
Stock-based compensation
Net operating losses
Litigation charge
Other
Total
Valuation allowance
Total deferred tax asset, net of valuation allowance
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets and goodwill
Other
Total
Net deferred tax asset
Reported as:
Deferred income tax assets
Deferred income tax liabilities (included in Other long-term liabilities)
Net deferred tax asset

$

$
$

Sep 27, 2015

56.8 $
104.5
88.6
124.2
138.3
79.0
862.3
197.4
1,651.1 $
(70.3)

54.4
95.6
81.6
97.2
135.5
93.4
931.0
171.3
1,660.0
(143.7)

1,580.8

1,516.3

$

(445.7)
(175.9)
(88.5)
(710.1)
$

870.7

(150.5)
(176.7)
(51.7)
(378.9)
$

885.4
(14.7)
$

870.7

1,137.4
1,180.8
(43.4)

$

1,137.4

(1)

We have adjusted the presentation of certain gross deferred tax assets and liabilities as of September 27, 2015 in the above
table to conform to our presentation as of October 2, 2016.
The valuation allowance as of October 2, 2016 and September 27, 2015 is primarily related to net operating losses and other
deferred tax assets of consolidated foreign subsidiaries. The net change in the total valuation allowance was a decrease of $73.4
million and $23.1 million for fiscal 2016 and 2015, respectively.
As of October 2, 2016, we had state tax credit carryforwards of $24.9 million with an expiration date of fiscal 2024 and foreign
net operating loss carryforwards of $264.2 million, the majority of which has no expiration date.
Uncertain Tax Positions
As of October 2, 2016, we had $146.5 million of gross unrecognized tax benefits of which $102.0 million, if recognized, would
affect our effective tax rate. We recognized a benefit of $3.6 million, an expense of $0.7 million and an expense of $5.9 million
of interest and penalties in income tax expense, prior to the benefit of the federal tax deduction, for fiscal 2016, 2015 and 2014,
respectively. As of October 2, 2016 and September 27, 2015, we had accrued interest and penalties of $7.7 million and $11.3
million, respectively, before the benefit of the federal tax deduction, included within other long-term liabilities on our
consolidated balance sheets.
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The following table summarizes the activity related to our unrecognized tax benefits (in millions):
Oct 2, 2016

Beginning balance
Increase related to prior year tax positions
Decrease related to prior year tax positions
Increase related to current year tax positions
Decrease related to current year tax positions
Decreases related to settlements with taxing authorities
Decrease related to lapsing of statute of limitations
Ending balance

$

Sep 27, 2015

150.4 $
—
(23.6)
33.7
—
(3.1)
(10.9)

$

146.5

Sep 28, 2014

112.7 $
7.9
(0.9)

88.8
1.4
(2.2)

32.0
(0.6)
(0.7)
$

—
150.4

26.7
(1.9)
(0.1)
$

—
112.7

We are currently under examination, or may be subject to examination, by various jurisdictions inside and outside the U.S. as
well as U.S. state and municipal taxing jurisdictions for fiscal years 2006 through 2015. We are no longer subject to U.S.
federal or state examination for years prior to fiscal year 2011, with the exception of one city. We are no longer subject to
examination in any material international markets prior to 2006.
There is a reasonable possibility that $18.6 million of the currently remaining unrecognized tax benefits may be recognized by
the end of fiscal 2017 as a result of a lapse of the statute of limitations.
Note 14:

Earnings per Share

Calculation of net earnings per common share ("EPS") — basic and diluted (in millions, except EPS):
Fiscal Year Ended

Net earnings attributable to Starbucks
Weighted average common shares outstanding (for basic
calculation)
Dilutive effect of outstanding common stock options and RSUs
Weighted average common and common equivalent shares
outstanding (for diluted calculation)
EPS — basic
EPS — diluted

Oct 2, 2016

$

$
$

2,817.7

Sep 27, 2015

$

2,757.4

Sep 28, 2014

$

2,068.1

1,471.6
15.1

1,495.9
17.5

1,506.3
20.0

1,486.7
1.91
1.90

1,513.4
1.84
1.82

1,526.3
1.37
1.35

$
$

$
$

Potential dilutive shares consist of the incremental common shares issuable upon the exercise of outstanding stock options
(both vested and non-vested) and unvested RSUs, calculated using the treasury stock method. The calculation of dilutive shares
outstanding excludes out-of-the-money stock options (i.e., such options’ exercise prices were greater than the average market
price of our common shares for the period) because their inclusion would have been antidilutive. We had 5.4 million and 5.3
million out-of-the-money stock options as of October 2, 2016 and September 28, 2014, respectively. There were no
out-of-the-money stock options as of September 27, 2015.
Note 15:

Commitments and Contingencies

Legal Proceedings
On November 12, 2013, the arbitrator in our arbitration with Kraft Foods Global, Inc. (now known as Kraft Foods Group, Inc.)
("Kraft") ordered Starbucks to pay Kraft $2,227.5 million in damages plus prejudgment interest and attorneys' fees. We
estimated prejudgment interest, which included an accrual through the estimated payment date, and attorneys' fees to be
approximately $556.6 million. As a result, we recorded a litigation charge of $2,784.1 million in our fiscal 2013 operating
results, and in the first quarter of fiscal 2014, Starbucks paid all amounts due to Kraft under the arbitration including
prejudgment interest and attorneys' fees, and fully extinguished the litigation charge liability. Of the $2,784.1 million litigation
charge accrued in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013, $2,763.9 million was paid, and the remainder was released as a litigation
credit to reflect a reduction to our estimated prejudgment interest payable as a result of paying our obligation earlier than
anticipated.
Starbucks is party to various other legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business, including, at times, certain
employment litigation cases that have been certified as class or collective actions, but is not currently a party to any legal
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proceeding that management believes could have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.
Note 16:

Segment Reporting

Our chief executive officer and chief operating officer comprise the Company's Chief Operating Decision Maker function
("CODM"). Segment information is prepared on the same basis that our CODM manages the segments, evaluates financial
results, and makes key operating decisions.
We have four reportable operating segments: 1) Americas, inclusive of the U.S., Canada, and Latin America; 2) China/Asia
Pacific ("CAP"); 3) Europe, Middle East, and Africa ("EMEA") and 4) Channel Development.
Americas, CAP, and EMEA operations sell coffee and other beverages, complementary food, packaged coffees, single-serve
coffee products and a focused selection of merchandise through company-operated stores and licensed stores. Our Americas
segment is our most mature business and has achieved significant scale. Certain markets within our CAP and EMEA operations
are still in the early stages of development and require a more extensive support organization, relative to their current levels of
revenue and operating income, than our Americas operations. The Americas, CAP and EMEA segments also include certain
foodservice accounts, primarily in Canada, Japan and the U.K.
Channel Development operations sell a selection of packaged coffees and single-serve products, as well as a selection of
premium Tazo® teas globally. Channel Development operations also produce and sell a variety of ready-to-drink beverages,
such as Frappuccino® coffee drinks, Starbucks Doubleshot® espresso drinks, Starbucks Refreshers® beverages and chilled
multi-serve beverages. The U.S. foodservice business, which is included in the Channel Development segment, sells coffee and
other related products to institutional foodservice companies.
Consolidated revenue mix by product type (in millions):
Fiscal Year Ended

Oct 2, 2016

Beverage
Food
Packaged and single-serve coffees and teas
Other(1)
Total
(1)

$ 12,383.4
3,495.0
2,866.0
2,571.5
$ 21,315.9

Sep 27, 2015

58% $ 11,115.4
16%
3,085.3
14%
2,619.9
12%
2,342.1
100% $ 19,162.7

Sep 28, 2014

58% $ 9,458.4
16%
2,505.2
14%
2,370.0
12%
2,114.2
100% $ 16,447.8

58%
15%
14%
13%
100%

"Other" primarily consists of royalty and licensing revenues, beverage-related ingredients, serveware, and ready-to-drink
beverages, among other items.
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Information by geographic area (in millions):
Fiscal Year Ended

Net revenues:
United States
Other countries
Total
Long-lived assets(1):
United States
Other countries
Total
(1)

Oct 2, 2016

$
$

$
$

Sep 27, 2015

15,774.8
5,541.1
21,315.9

$

6,027.2
3,541.8
9,569.0

$

$

$

Sep 28, 2014

14,123.7
5,039.0
19,162.7

$

5,805.4
2,639.9
8,445.3

$

$

$

12,590.6
3,857.2
16,447.8

5,450.9
1,449.7
6,900.6

Long-lived assets as of September 27, 2015 and September 28, 2014 have been adjusted for the adoption of new accounting
guidance related to the reclassification of deferred income taxes as discussed in Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies.

No customer accounts for 10% or more of our revenues. Revenues are shown based on the geographic location of our
customers. Revenues from countries other than the U.S. consist primarily of revenues from Japan, Canada, China and the U.K.,
which together account for approximately 77% of net revenues from other countries for fiscal 2016.
Management evaluates the performance of its operating segments based on net revenues and operating income. The accounting
policies of the operating segments are the same as those described in Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.
Operating income represents earnings before other income and expenses and income taxes. Management does not evaluate the
performance of its operating segments using asset measures. The identifiable assets by segment disclosed in this note are those
assets specifically identifiable within each segment and include cash and cash equivalents, net property, plant and equipment,
equity and cost investments, goodwill, and other intangible assets. Assets not attributed to reportable operating segments below
are corporate assets and are primarily comprised of cash and cash equivalents available for general corporate purposes,
investments, assets of the corporate headquarters and roasting facilities, and inventory.
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The table below presents financial information for our reportable operating segments and All Other Segments for the years
ended October 2, 2016, September 27, 2015 and September 28, 2014.
(in millions)
Fiscal 2016
Total net revenues
Depreciation and amortization expenses
Income from equity investees
Operating income/(loss)
Total assets

Americas

China /
Asia Pacific

EMEA

Channel
Development

All Other
Segments

Segment
Total

$ 14,795.4
590.1
—
3,742.0
3,424.6

$ 2,938.8
180.6
150.1
631.6
2,740.2

$ 1,124.9
40.8
1.5
151.6
552.1

$ 1,932.5
2.8
166.6
807.3
67.1

$

524.3 $ 21,315.9
13.3
827.6
—
318.2
(38.4)
5,294.1
861.1
7,645.1

Fiscal 2015
Total net revenues
Depreciation and amortization expenses
Income from equity investees
Operating income/(loss)
Total assets

$ 13,293.4
522.3
—
3,223.3
2,726.7

$ 2,395.9
150.7
119.6
500.5
2,230.5

$ 1,216.7
52.0
3.1
168.2
749.1

$ 1,730.9
2.7
127.2
653.9
87.3

$

525.8 $ 19,162.7
16.3
744.0
—
249.9
(24.8)
4,521.1
1,785.3
7,578.9

Fiscal 2014
Total net revenues
Depreciation and amortization expenses
Income from equity investees
Operating income/(loss)
Total assets

$ 11,980.5
469.5
—
2,809.0
2,521.4

$ 1,129.6
46.1
164.0
372.5
939.8

$ 1,294.8
59.4
3.7
119.2
663.0

$ 1,546.0
1.8
100.6
557.2
84.6

$

496.9 $ 16,447.8
15.2
592.0
—
268.3
(26.8)
3,831.1
825.2
5,034.0

The following table reconciles total segment operating income in the table above to consolidated earnings before income taxes
(in millions):
Fiscal Year Ended

Oct 2, 2016

Total segment operating income
Unallocated corporate operating expenses
Consolidated operating income
Gain resulting from acquisition of joint venture
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Interest income and other, net
Interest expense
Earnings before income taxes
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$

Sep 27, 2015

5,294.1 $
(1,122.2)
4,171.9
—
—
108.0
(81.3)

$

4,198.6

Sep 28, 2014

4,521.1 $
(920.1)

3,831.1
(750.0)

3,601.0
390.6
(61.1)

3,081.1
—
—
142.7
(64.1)

43.0
(70.5)
$

3,903.0

$

3,159.7

Note 17:

Selected Quarterly Financial Information (unaudited; in millions, except EPS)

First
Quarter

Fiscal 2016(1):
Net revenues
Operating income
Net earnings attributable to Starbucks
EPS — diluted

Second
Quarter

Third
Quarter

Fourth
Quarter

Full
Year

$

5,373.5
1,058.0
687.6
0.46

$

4,993.2
864.2
575.1
0.39

$

5,238.0
1,022.3
754.1
0.51

$

5,711.2
1,227.5
801.0
0.54

$

21,315.9
4,171.9
2,817.7
1.90

$

4,803.2
915.5
983.1

$

4,563.5
777.5
494.9

$

4,881.2
938.6
626.7

$

4,914.8
969.4
652.5

$

19,162.7
3,601.0
2,757.4

Fiscal 2015:
Net revenues
Operating income
Net earnings attributable to Starbucks
EPS — diluted
(1)

0.65

0.33

0.41

0.43

1.82

The fiscal year ended on October 2, 2016, included 53 weeks, with the 53rd week falling in our fourth fiscal quarter.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Starbucks Corporation
Seattle, Washington
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Starbucks Corporation and subsidiaries (the "Company") as
of October 2, 2016 and September 27, 2015, and the related consolidated statements of earnings, comprehensive income,
equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended October 2, 2016. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Starbucks
Corporation and subsidiaries as of October 2, 2016 and September 27, 2015, and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended October 2, 2016, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.
We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of October 2, 2016, based on criteria established in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
and our report dated November 18, 2016 expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Seattle, Washington
November 18, 2016
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
Not applicable.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Disclosure Controls and Procedures
We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that material information required to be disclosed in
our periodic reports filed or submitted under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. Our disclosure
controls and procedures are also designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports we file or submit
under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our principal executive officer and
principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2016, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our
management, including our chief executive officer and our chief financial officer, of the effectiveness of the design and
operation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act.
Based upon that evaluation, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls and
procedures were effective, as of the end of the period covered by this report (October 2, 2016).
There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the
Exchange Act) during our most recently completed fiscal quarter that materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially
affect internal control over financial reporting.
The certifications required by Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 are filed as exhibits 31.1 and 31.2, respectively,
to this 10-K.
Report of Management on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. Internal
control over financial reporting is a process to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of our financial reporting
for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Internal
control over financial reporting includes maintaining records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect our
transactions; providing reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary for preparation of our financial
statements; providing reasonable assurance that receipts and expenditures are made in accordance with management
authorization; and providing reasonable assurance that unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of company assets that
could have a material effect on our financial statements would be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Because of its
inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting is not intended to provide absolute assurance that a misstatement
of our financial statements would be prevented or detected.
Management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the
framework and criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (the "2013 Framework"), issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. This evaluation included review of the documentation
of controls, evaluation of the design effectiveness of controls, testing of the operating effectiveness of controls and a conclusion
on this evaluation. Based on this evaluation, management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was
effective as of October 2, 2016.
Our internal control over financial reporting as of October 2, 2016 has been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent
registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which is included herein.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Starbucks Corporation
Seattle, Washington
We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Starbucks Corporation and subsidiaries (the "Company") as of
October 2, 2016, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting,
included in the accompanying Report of Management on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal
control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of
internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company’s
principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company’s
board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a
timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
October 2, 2016, based on the criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.
We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),
the consolidated financial statements as of and for the fiscal year ended October 2, 2016, of the Company and our report dated
November 18, 2016 expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Seattle, Washington
November 18, 2016
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Item 9B. Other Information
None.
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PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance
Information regarding our executive officers is set forth in Item 1 of Part 1 of this Report under the caption "Executive Officers
of the Registrant."
We adopted a code of ethics that applies to our chief executive officer, chief operating officer, chief financial officer, controller
and other finance leaders, which is a "code of ethics" as defined by applicable rules of the SEC. This code is publicly available
on our website at www.starbucks.com/about-us/company-information/corporate-governance. If we make any amendments to
this code other than technical, administrative or other non-substantive amendments, or grant any waivers, including implicit
waivers, from a provision of this code to our chief executive officer, chief operating officer, chief financial officer or controller,
we will disclose the nature of the amendment or waiver, its effective date and to whom it applies on our website at
www.starbucks.com/about-us/company-information/corporate-governance or in a report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC.
The remaining information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections entitled "Proposal 1 —
Election of Directors" and "Beneficial Ownership of Common Stock — Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting
Compliance," "Corporate Governance — Board Committees and Related Matters" and "Corporate Governance — Audit and
Compliance Committee" in our definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on March 22,
2017 (the "Proxy Statement").

Item 11. Executive Compensation
The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the sections entitled "Executive Compensation,"
"Compensation of Directors," "Corporate Governance — Compensation and Management Development Committee" and
"Compensation Committee Report" in the Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Shareholder Matters
The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the sections entitled "Equity Compensation Plan
Information" and "Beneficial Ownership of Common Stock" in the Proxy Statement.

Item 13. Certain Relationships, Related Transactions and Director Independence
The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the section entitled "Certain Relationships and Related
Transactions" and "Corporate Governance — Affirmative Determinations Regarding Director Independence and Other
Matters" in the Proxy Statement.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services
The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the sections entitled "Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm Fees" and "Policy on Audit Committee Pre-Approval of Audit and Permissible Non-Audit Services of the
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm" in the Proxy Statement.

90

Starbucks Corporation

2016 Form 10-K

PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
(a) The following documents are filed as a part of this 10-K:
1.

Financial Statements

The following financial statements are included in Part II, Item 8 of this 10-K:
• Consolidated Statements of Earnings for the fiscal years ended October 2, 2016, September 27, 2015, and
September 28, 2014;
• Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the fiscal years ended October 2, 2016, September 27,
2015, and September 28, 2014;
• Consolidated Balance Sheets as of October 2, 2016 and September 27, 2015;
• Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the fiscal years ended October 2, 2016, September 27,
2015, and September 28, 2014;
• Consolidated Statements of Equity for the fiscal years ended October 2, 2016, September 27, 2015, and September 28,
2014;
• Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements; and
• Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
2.

Financial Statement Schedules

Financial statement schedules are omitted because they are not required or are not applicable, or the required information is
provided in the consolidated financial statements or notes described in Item 15(a)(1) above.
3.

Exhibits

The Exhibits listed in the Index to Exhibits, which appears immediately following the signature page and is incorporated herein
by reference, are filed as part of this 10-K.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

STARBUCKS CORPORATION

By: /s/

Howard Schultz

Howard Schultz
chairman and chief executive officer
November 18, 2016
POWER OF ATTORNEY
Know all persons by these presents, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Howard Schultz
and Scott Maw, and each of them, as such person’s true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, with full power of substitution
and resubstitution, for such person and in such person’s name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all
amendments to this report, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and
authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in connection therewith, as fully to
all intents and purposes as such person might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-infact and agents, or any of them or their or such person’s substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue
thereof.
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated as of November 18, 2016.
Signature

By:

/s/

Title

chairman and chief executive officer

Howard Schultz

Howard Schultz
By:

/s/

Scott Maw

executive vice president, chief financial officer
(principal financial officer and principal accounting
officer)

Scott Maw
By:

/s/

William W. Bradley

director

William W. Bradley
By:

/s/

director

Mary N. Dillon

Mary N. Dillon
By:

/s/

director

Robert M. Gates

Robert M. Gates
By:

/s/

director

Mellody Hobson

Mellody Hobson
By:

/s/

Kevin R. Johnson

Kevin R. Johnson
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director

Signature

By:

/s/

Joshua Cooper Ramo

Title

director

Joshua Cooper Ramo
By:

/s/

James G. Shennan, Jr.

director

James G. Shennan, Jr.
By:

/s/

Clara Shih

director

Clara Shih
By:

/s/

Javier G. Teruel

director

Javier G. Teruel
By:

/s/

Myron E. Ullman, III

director

Myron E. Ullman, III
By:

/s/

Craig E. Weatherup

director

Craig E. Weatherup
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS
Incorporated by Reference
Exhibit
Number

3.1
3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4
4.5

4.6
4.7
4.8

4.9
4.10
4.11

4.12
4.13

4.14
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Exhibit Description

Form

File No.

Date of Filing

Exhibit
Number

Restated Articles of Incorporation of
Starbucks Corporation
Amended and Restated Bylaws of
Starbucks Corporation (As amended
and restated through September 13,
2016)
Indenture, dated as of September 15,
2016, by and between Starbucks
Corporation and U.S. Bank National
Association
Indenture, dated as of August 23,
2007, by and between Starbucks
Corporation and Deutsche Bank Trust
Company Americas, as trustee
Second Supplemental Indenture, dated
as of September 6, 2013, by and
between Starbucks Corporation and
Deutsche Bank Trust Company
Americas, as trustee (3.850% Senior
Notes due October 1, 2023)
Form of 3.850% Senior Notes due
October 1, 2023
Third Supplemental Indenture, dated
as of December 5, 2013, by and
between Starbucks Corporation and
Deutsche Bank Trust Company
Americas, as trustee (0.875% Senior
Notes due 2016 and 2.000% Senior
Notes due 2018)
Form of 0.875% Senior Notes due
December 5, 2016
Form of 2.000% Senior Notes due
December 5, 2018
Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated
as of June 10, 2015, by and between
Starbucks Corporation and Deutsche
Bank Trust Company Americas, as
trustee (2.700% Senior Notes due June
15, 2022 and 4.300% Senior Notes
due June 15, 2045)
Form of 2.700% Senior Notes due
June 15, 2022
Form of 4.300% Senior Notes due
June 15, 2045
Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as
of February 4, 2016, by and between
Starbucks Corporation and Deutsche
Bank Trust Company Americas, as
trustee (2.100% Senior Notes due
February 4, 2021)
Form of 2.100% Senior Notes due
February 4, 2021
Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated
as of May 16, 2016, by and between
Starbucks Corporation and Deutsche
Bank Trust Company Americas, as
trustee (2.450% Senior Notes due June
15, 2026)
Form of 2.450% Senior Notes due
June 15, 2026

10-Q

0-20322

4/28/2015

3.1

8-K

0-20322

9/16/2016

3.1

S-3ASR

333-213645

9/15/2016

4.1

S-3ASR

333-190955

9/3/2013

4.1

8-K

0-20322

9/6/2013

4.2

8-K

0-20322

9/6/2013

4.3

8-K

0-20322

12/5/2013

4.2

8-K

0-20322

12/5/2013

4.3

8-K

0-20322

12/5/2013

4.4

8-K

0-20322

6/10/2015

4.2

8-K

0-20322

6/10/2015

4.3

8-K

0-20322

6/10/2015

4.4

8-K

0-20322

2/4/2016

4.2

8-K

0-20322

2/4/2016

4.3

8-K

0-20322

5/16/2016

4.4

8-K

0-20322

5/16/2016

4.5
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Filed
Herewith

Incorporated by Reference
Exhibit
Number

10.1*
10.2*

10.3

10.4*

10.5*

10.6*
10.7*

10.8*
10.9*
10.10*

10.11*

10.12*

10.13*

10.14*

Exhibit Description

Form

File No.

Date of Filing

Exhibit
Number

Starbucks Corporation Amended and
Restated 1989 Stock Option Plan for
Non-Employee Directors
Starbucks Corporation Employee
Stock Purchase Plan — 1995 as
amended and restated through April 1,
2009, and as restated on April 9, 2015
to reflect adjustments for the 2-for-1
forward stock split effective on such
date
Amended and Restated Lease, dated
as of January 1, 2001, between First
and Utah Street Associates, L.P. and
Starbucks Corporation
Starbucks Corporation Executive
Management Bonus Plan, as amended
and restated November 10, 2015,
effective September 28, 2015
Starbucks Corporation Management
Deferred Compensation Plan, as
amended and restated effective
January 1, 2011
Starbucks Corporation UK Share Save
Plan
Starbucks Corporation Directors
Deferred Compensation Plan, as
amended and restated effective
September 29, 2003
Starbucks Corporation Deferred
Compensation Plan for Non-Employee
Directors, effective October 3, 2011
Starbucks Corporation UK Share
Incentive Plan, as amended and
restated effective November 14, 2006
Starbucks Corporation 2005 LongTerm Equity Incentive Plan, as
amended and restated effective
March 20, 2013, and as restated on
April 9, 2015 to reflect adjustments
for the 2-for-1 forward stock split
effective on such date
2005 Key Employee Sub-Plan to the
Starbucks Corporation 2005 LongTerm Equity Incentive Plan, as
amended and restated effective
November 15, 2005
2005 Non-Employee Director SubPlan to the Starbucks Corporation
2005 Long-Term Equity Incentive
Plan, as amended and restated
effective March 22, 2016
Form of Stock Option Grant
Agreement for Purchase of Stock
under the Key Employee Sub-Plan to
the 2005 Long-Term Equity Incentive
Plan
Form of Global Stock Option Grant
Agreement for Purchase of Stock
under the Key Employee Sub-Plan to
the 2005 Long Term Equity Incentive
Plan

10-K

0-20322

12/23/2003

10.2

10-Q

0-20322

4/28/2015

10.5

10-K

0-20322

12/20/2001

10.5

--

--

--

--

10-Q

0-20322

2/4/2011

10.2

10-K

0-20322

12/23/2003

10.9

10-K

0-20322

12/23/2003

10.10

10-K

0-20322

11/18/2011

10.11

10-K

0-20322

12/14/2006

10.12

10-Q

0-20322

4/28/2015

10.4

10-Q

0-20322

2/10/2006

10.2

10-Q

0-20322

04/26/2016

10.1

10-Q

0-20322

5/2/2012

10.1

--

--

--

--
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Incorporated by Reference
Exhibit
Number

10.15*

10.16*

10.17

10.18
10.19*
10.20*

10.21*

10.22*

10.23*
10.24*
10.25*
10.26*
10.27*

10.28*
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Exhibit Description

Form

File No.

Date of Filing

Exhibit
Number

Form of Stock Option Grant
Agreement for Purchase of Stock
under the 2005 Non-Employee
Director Sub-Plan to the Starbucks
Corporation 2005 Long-Term Equity
Incentive Plan
Form of Restricted Stock Unit Grant
Agreement under the 2005 NonEmployee Director Sub-Plan to the
Starbucks Corporation 2005 LongTerm Equity Incentive Plan
Credit Agreement dated November 6,
2015 among Starbucks Corporation,
Bank of America, N.A., in its capacity
as Administrative Agent, Swing Line
Lender and L/C Issuer, and the other
Lenders from time to time a party
thereto.
Form of Commercial Paper Dealer
Agreement between Starbucks
Corporation, as Issuer, and the Dealer
Letter Agreement dated February 21,
2008 between Starbucks Corporation
and Clifford Burrows
Form of Time Vested Restricted Stock
Unit Grant Agreement (U.S.) under
the Key Employee Sub-Plan to the
2005 Long-Term Equity Incentive
Plan
Form of Time Vested Global
Restricted Stock Unit Grant
Agreement under the Key Employee
Sub-Plan to the 2005 Long-Term
Equity Incentive Plan
Form of Performance Based Global
Restricted Stock Unit Grant
Agreement under the Key Employee
Sub-Plan to the 2005 Long-Term
Equity Incentive Plan
Letter Agreement dated November 30,
2009 between Starbucks Corporation
and John Culver
Letter Agreement dated May 16, 2012
between Starbucks Corporation and
Lucy Lee Helm
Letter Agreement dated January 29,
2014 between Starbucks Corporation
and Troy Alstead
Letter Agreement dated January 29,
2014 between Starbucks Corporation
and Scott Maw
Exclusive Aircraft Sublease (S/N
6003) dated as of September 27, 2013
by and between Cloverdale Services,
LLC and Starbucks Corporation
Offer Letter dated January 22, 2015
between Starbucks Corporation and
Kevin Johnson

10-Q

0-20322

04/26/2016

10.2

10-Q

0-20322

04/26/2016

10.3

8-K

0-20322

11/6/2015

10.1

8-K

0-20322

7/29/2016

10.1

10-Q

0-20322

5/8/2008

10.3

10-K

0-20322

11/18/2011

10.30

--

--

--

--

X

--

--

--

--

X

10-Q

0-20322

2/2/2010

10.3

10-K

0-20322

11/14/2014

10.33

8-K

0-20322

1/29/2014

10.1

8-K

0-20322

1/29/2014

10.2

10-Q

0-20322

4/29/2014

10.3

8-K

0-20322

1/22/2015

10.1
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Exhibit
Number

12
21
23
24
31.1

31.2

32**
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Exhibit Description

Form

File No.

Date of Filing

Exhibit
Number

Filed
Herewith

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to
Fixed Charges
Subsidiaries of Starbucks Corporation
Consent of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm
Power of Attorney (included on the
Signatures page of this Annual Report
on Form 10-K)
Certification of Principal Executive
Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
As Adopted Pursuant to Section 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of Principal Financial
Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
As Adopted Pursuant to Section 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Certifications of Principal Executive
Officer and Principal Financial Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
The following financial statements
from the Company’s 10-K for the
fiscal year ended October 2, 2016,
formatted in XBRL: (i) Consolidated
Statements of Earnings, (ii)
Consolidated Statements of
Comprehensive Income, (iii)
Consolidated Balance Sheets, (iv)
Consolidated Statements of Cash
Flows, (v) Consolidated Statements of
Equity, and (vi) Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements

—

—

—

—

X

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

X
X

__

__

__

__

X

—

—

—

—

X

—

—

—

—

X

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

X

* Denotes a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
**Furnished herewith.
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